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INVESTOR RELATIONS
SimCorp pursues an open dialogue with investors and analysts about the 

company’s business and financial performance. In order to ensure that 

all SimCorp’s stakeholders have equal access to corporate information, 

news is released to NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen A/S, the media and on 

SimCorp’s website, where users can also subscribe to SimCorp’s news 

service.

SimCorp’s Investor Relations department handles all contact with investors 

and the press on issues relating to the company’s shares. 

Investor Relations can be reached on:

Telephone +45 35 44 88 00

Fax +45 35 44 87 89

E-mail investor@simcorp.com

Website www.simcorp.com

This annual report can be downloaded in a Danish and an English version 

from SimCorp’s website. The original, Danish text shall be the governing 

text for all purposes, and in case of any discrepancy the Danish wording 

shall be applicable.

DISCLAIMER
The forward-looking statements regarding the Group’s future financial 

situation involve factors of uncertainty and risk, which could cause actual 

developments to deviate from the expectations indicated. Such forward-

looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. They involve 

risk and uncertainty, and the actual performance may deviate materially 

from that expressed in such forward-looking statements due to a variety 

of factors. The principal factors of uncertainty and risk are dealt with in 

further detail under the heading ‘Risk management’ on page 23 and in 

note 29, ‘Financial instruments and risks’ in this annual report. 

Readers are warned not to rely unduly on the forward-looking statements. 

The Group’s revenue will continue to be impacted by relatively few, but 

large system orders, and such orders are expected to be won at relatively 

irregular intervals. The terms agreed in the individual licence agreements 

will determine the impact on the order book and on licence revenue 

recognised for any specific financial reporting period. Accordingly, licence 

revenue is likely to vary considerably from one quarter to the next. Unless 

required by law or corresponding obligations, SimCorp A/S is under no 

duty and undertakes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking 

statement after the distribution of this document, whether as a result of 

new information, future events or otherwise.



2011 at a glance

•	  SimCorp posted EBIT of EUR 46.3m (DKK 345m), an increase 

of EUR 11.1m relative to 2010. The EBIT margin was 23.8%. 

The profit for the year was EUR 34.0m, and the Board of 

Directors intends to recommend to the shareholders at 

the annual general meeting that dividends be paid to 

shareholders at the rate of DKK 30.00 per share of DKK 

10 each.

•	 	SimCorp generated revenue of EUR 194.8m (DKK 1.45bn) in 

2011, an increase of EUR 9.4m or 5% compared with last year.

•	 	The	order	inflow	–	representing	the	licence	value	of	new	

orders plus the licence value of add-on licences to customers 

was EUR 40.4m compared to EUR 49.3m in 2010.

•	 	Income	recognised	from	new	licences	and	add-on	licences	

amounted to EUR 47.2m, a decrease of 4% relative to 

2010.

•	 	The	 level	of	 sales	and	supply	of	professional	 services	

amounted to EUR 57.0m, an increase of 3% relative to 2010

•	 	Recurring	maintenance	 income	continued	 to	 increase	

strongly, up 14% relative to 2010 to EUR 88.6m.

•  Overall business growth measured as total revenue growth 

plus net growth in the licence order book totalled 1% in 

2011.

•	 	The	expansion	of	SimCorp’s activities in North America 

continued	 throughout	2011,	 and	business	with	exist-

ing clients increased. SimCorp won three new li -  

  cence agreements in North America.

•	 	SimCorp	strengthened	its	position	in	the	European	market,	

winning four new contracts in the mature Central European 

market as well as two new license contracts in the UK while 

also	extending	its	business	with	existing	clients	throughout	

Europe.

•	 	Net	staff	growth	in	2011	was	7,	bringing	the	total	number	

of employees to 1,118 at 31 December 2011.

•	 	The	Group’s	operating	activities	generated	a	cash	inflow	

of EUR 38.4m, compared with EUR 28.5m in 2010 and cash 

holdings amounted to EUR 48.1m at 31 December 2011, 

which is EUR 5.5m more than in 2010. Cash and cash equiva-

lents equal 41% of total assets.

•	 	SimCorp	purchased	treasury	shares	for	EUR	13.2m	in	2011	

compared to EUR 10.8m in 2010. 

 

•	 	For	2012,	SimCorp	expects	to	generate	revenue	growth	of	

at least 5% measured in local currencies, while producing an 

EBIT	margin	of	at	least	22%.	At	1	January	2012,	the	Group	

had secured contracts worth EUR 134m of the projected 2012 

revenue, which is 7% more than secured at 1 January 2011.

To CONTENTS
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PETER L. RAVN
Chief Executive Officer

When planning our activities for 2011 we were experiencing a market 

characterised by increased uncertainty. We therefore decided to embark 

on new initiatives only when we were confident that we would achieve 

our predefined level of profitability for the full year. Throughout 2011 

we successfully balanced our objective of protecting profitability with 

our commitment to substantial strategic investment in carefully selected 

initiatives. Our ambitions and expectations for the licence order inflow 

during 2011 were high. Ultimately we achieved an order inflow of EUR 

40m, regrettably below our initial guidance to the market. Needless to say 

this was disappointing. However, the lower-than-expected order inflow is 

not an indication of weakened competitiveness, but rather the result of a 

small number of potential clients delaying their decisions to enter into new 

contracts. The nine new clients who did sign up for SimCorp Dimension in 

2011 – three of them in North America – illustrate our strong competitive 

position. Compared with previous years, our existing clients were somewhat 

more reluctant to purchase extra licences, hence the licence order inflow 

from existing clients was a modest EUR 28m (2010: EUR 35m). 

The global financial crisis continues to show new and unanticipated facets. 

In 2011, Europe in particular experienced events that would have been 

considered highly unlikely only a few years ago, but which are now being 

seriously considered as possible future scenarios. One example is scepti-

cism about the euro. Instead of a gradual trend towards more predictable 

and stable market conditions, developments in 2011 added even more 

uncertainty. In addition, legislative initiatives and associated regulations 

are not being implemented as swiftly as anticipated. SimCorp services the 

financial industry, and as such our business has also experienced turbulent 

times. Apprehension in the financial industry is seen first and foremost in 

the buying pattern – especially when it comes to applying new technologies 

and embarking on change projects. The length of the decision making 

cycles has increased, and in particular significant change projects and 

major technology deals are now frequently being put on hold. Financial 

institutions and companies are squeezing already approved budgets, and 

strict cost control is the general approach. 

Not surprisingly, financial market behaviour affects the overall sentiment 

for companies servicing the financial industry. Fortunately, there are also 

bright spots in the current environment. There are companies investing 

in IT as part of major change projects – particularly in organisations with 

long term investment horizons. There is a spirit of getting back to basics 

while introducing new ideas and initiatives. Focus is first and foremost on 

improving process flows and existing business models to achieve a higher 

degree of automation. Buy-side institutions review their operating models 

to identify whether gains can be made by insourcing or outsourcing parts of 

the value-chain. As processing significant amounts of data is a prerequisite 

for operating buy-side institutions, they are increasingly focusing on 

the availability of data for the relevant processes and the possibility of 

consolidating data based on one true set of data. In 2011, SimCorp initiated 

a new SaaS offering (Software as a Service) based on SimCorp Dimension. 

We believe that going forward an increasing number of clients will find 

it attractive to base their investment management operations on a SaaS 

solution and that our SaaS solution will be a strong offering for those who 

prefer standard and off-the-shelf solutions to the flexible and configurable 

traditional SOP (Software on Premise) delivery model.

In the software business the efficiency and effectiveness of R&D are 

fundamental for profitable growth. We allocate R&D resources to the 

functionalities we believe will be our clients’ highest priorities. At the same 

time we spend significant resources on keeping our technology platform 

up to date. Fully in line with our commitment to our clients, we continually 

improve our software, version by version. SimCorp operates in a niche 

market and it is essential for our future business that we have referential 

clients and clients who are satisfied with our products and services. In 2011 

SimCorp initiated ‘Net Promoter Score’ (NPS), a technique that will provide 

an instant measure of client satisfaction and a tool enabling us to react fast 

on clients’ feedback. We continually strive to improve client satisfaction in 

all our doings and we believe that going forward this will become an even 

more important part of our corporate culture. 

The global financial crisis affects everyone. However, we have demonstrated 

the robustness of our business since 2008 when the global financial crisis 

set in, and our strengthened position in growth markets gives us reason to 

believe in SimCorp’s continued and sustained growth. SimCorp’s approach 

to cost containment and our ability to balance profitability with investment 

in strategic initiatives have proven successful in the current, uncertain 

environment. Going forward we will continue to take a cautious approach 

to expanding our cost base, however we will also ensure that we continue 

to anticipate market developments and maintain our capacity to meet the 

demands of our clients. 

I want to thank SimCorp’s employees and stakeholders for their cooperation 

and support in 2011 and I look forward to continuing our good relationship 

with all of you. 

Market	uncertainty	prevails	–	 
SimCorp prepares for the future 

In 2011 SimCorp generated revenue of EUR 195m and produced EBIT of EUR 46m – an 
improvement of EUR 9m and EUR 11m, respectively, compared with 2010. This perform
ance was satisfactory given the challenging market conditions, and we are particularly 
pleased to note the significant improvement in profitability.

To CONTENTS



 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

DKK/EUR rate of exchange at 31 December 7.4566  7.4506  7.4415  7.4544  7.4342
      
Profit, EUR'000      
    
Revenue 156,780 174,737 180,375 185,375 194,815
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation 41,411 41,776 44,147 39,923 50,399
and amortisation (EBITDA)
Profit from operations (EBIT) 38,396 38,432 39,670 35,199 46,340
Financial items 2,027 4,124 11 (1,962) 833
Profit before tax, continuing operations 40,423 42,556 39,681 33,237 47,173
Profit for the year, continuing operations 28,665 31,510 26,729 24,390 33,956
Profit for the year, discontinued operations 10,334 (351) 196 0 0
Profit for the year 38,999 31,159 26,925 24,390 33,956
Total comprehensive income for the year 35,166 26,218 28,488 26,817 34,384
     
Balance sheet, EUR'000     
Share capital 6,616 6,616 6,179 6,179 6,179
Equity 73,525 62,699 75,654 77,520 83,184
Property, plant and equipment  3,501 10,898 9,341 8,779 7,813
Cash, bonds and cash equivalents 46,904 25,463 44,305 42,689 48,149
Total assets 109,652 96,463 116,390 113,011 119,478
     
Cash	flows,	EUR'000     
Cash flow from operating activities, continuing operations 32,372 27,154 37,006 28,513 38,396
Cash flow from investing activities, net 5,561 (7,333) (1,025) (2,945) (2,878)
Cash flow from financing activities (52,326) (14,056) (17,391) (27,528) (30,044)
Cash flow, discontinued operations 626 0 0 0 0
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (13,767) 5,765 18,590 (1,960) 5,474
     
Employees     
Average number of employees 771 949 1,045 1,077 1,048
     
Profit, DKK'000     
Revenue 1,169,047 1,301,899 1,342,261 1,381,859 1,448,294
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation 308,785 311,259 328,520 297,602 374,676
and amortisation (EBITDA)
Profit from operations (EBIT) 286,307 286,341 295,204 262,387 344,501
Financial items 15,115 30,724 82 (14,626) 6,193
Profit before tax, continuing operations 301,421 317,065 295,286 247,761 350,694
Profit for the year, continuing operations 213,745 234,768 198,904 181,813 252,436
Profit for the year, discontinued operations 77,053 (2,615) 1,459 0 0
Profit for the year 290,798 232,153 200,363 181,813 252,436
Total comprehensive income for the year 262,219 195,340 211,993 199,905 255,618
     
Balance sheet, DKK'000     
Share capital 49,250 49,250 46,000 46,000 46,000
Equity 548,244 467,146 562,979 577,865 618,406
Property, plant and equipment  26,106 81,200 69,511 65,442 58,083
Cash, bonds and cash equivalents 349,745 189,711 329,696 318,221 357,949
Total assets 817,628 718,709 866,116 842,429 888,223
     
Cash	flows,	DKK'000     
Cash flow from operating activities, continuing operations 241,382 202,314 275,380 212,547 285,444
Cash flow from investing activities, net 41,465 (54,633) (7,628) (21,953) (21,396)
Cash flow from financing activities (390,176) (104,729) (129,415) (205,205) (223,353)
Cash flow, discontinued operations 4,668 0 0 0 0
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (102,662) 42,953 138,337 (14,611) 40,695

Key ratios     
EBIT margin (%) 24.5 22.0 22.0 19.0 23.8
ROIC (return on invested capital) (%) 104.2 96.2 89.9 79.0 108.8
Debtor turnover rate 5.2 7.4 7.0 6.1 7.1
Equity ratio (%) 67.1 65.0 65.0 68.3 69.6
Return on equity (%) 33.1 42.8 36.3 30.0 40.0
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 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Per share data

Basic earnings per share of 1 DKK – EPS (EUR)  0.82  0.68  0.60  0.54 0.77 
Diluted earnings per share of 1 DKK – EPS-D (EUR) 0.82  0.68  0.59  0.54  0.76
Basic earnings per share of 1 DKK,  0.60 0.69 0.59 0.54 0.77
continuing operations – EPS (EUR)
Diluted earnings per share of 1 DKK,  0.60 0.69 0.59 0.54 0.76
continuing operations – EPS-D (EUR)
Cash flow per share of 1 DKK – CFPS (EUR) 0.68 0.59 0.82 0.63 0.87
Average number of shares of DKK 1 47,425,845 45,950,030 45,123,595 44,998,925 44,107,079
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The uncertainty in the financial markets experienced in 2010 continued into 2011 impact
ing SimCorp negatively on the total order inflow achieved, which declined by 18% to EUR 
40m. As a result of SimCorp’s focus on internal efficiencies and the implementation of a cost 
containment programme in late 2010 SimCorp managed to exceed the minimum earnings 
guidance significantly yielding EBIT of more than EUR 46m corresponding to an EBIT 
margin of 23.8% compared to 19.0% in 2010.

Business targets for 2011 
As outlined in the 2010 annual report, SimCorp’s business 

development in 2011 focused primarily on profitable growth 

and increased efficiency gains based on the following specific 

operational targets: 

–  Signing new SimCorp Dimension licence agreements in 

SimCorp’s growth markets: North America, France and the UK

–  Increasing the number of clients in other European countries, 

continuing to generate add-on licence sales to clients already 

using SimCorp Dimension and retaining SimCorp’s solid 

market position

–  Retaining focus on the Group’s activities in Australia, Singa-

pore and Hong Kong and signing new licence agreements in 

this region

–  Further enhancing SimCorp’s service offerings by providing 

services for operational support

–  Continuing focus on efficiency enhancement and competence 

building.

Achievement of targets
Despite the continued uncertainty in the financial markets 

and difficult market conditions for software product suppliers, 

SimCorp continued to see demand for its solutions in 2011, 

albeit at a lower-than-expected level resulting in a total order 

inflow of EUR 40m, comprising nine new licence agreements 

and add-on licence agreements with around 100 clients. 

More than half of the new licence agreements were made 

in the designated growth markets North America and the 

UK supporting the momentum gained in those markets. The 

remaining new licence agreements were all made in the Central 

European market giving comfort to SimCorp’s ability to grow 

in its mature markets. No new licence agreements were made 

in Asia during the year.

The total order inflow decline was driven by a lower order inflow 

both for new licence agreements and for add-on licence agree-

ments. Particularly for add-on licences SimCorp saw challenges 

during 2011. While the historic conversion rate of add-on licences 

as a percentage of the installed licence base has been between 

8%–10% the conversion rate in 2011 stood at 6.4% against 9.0% 

in 2010. The lower conversion rate is a result of fewer M&A trans-

actions by SimCorp’s clients, a reduced need for additional users 

and the impact of migrating clients from their existing SimCorp 

Dimension Front Office solution on to the new SimCorp Dimension 

Front Office solution. 

Despite the lower-than-expected total order inflow SimCorp 

remains competitive in the market and continues to gain market 

share in the geographies in which SimCorp operates.

 

Financial review

“Despite the continued uncertainty in 
the financial markets and difficult 
market conditions for software product 
suppliers, SimCorp continued to see 
demand for its solutions in 2011.” 

To CONTENTS
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–  SimCorp continued to expand its activities in North America 

in 2011. SimCorp’s US subsidiary won three new licence 

agreements with large and reputable organisations in both 

Canada and in the US.

–  SimCorp’s French subsidiary continued its market activities and 

gained increased momentum in the French market during the 

year, although increased sales did not include any new clients 

in 2011.

–  SimCorp’s UK subsidiary signed licence agreements both with 

a London/Boston-based asset manager and a UK-based asset 

manager in 2011.

–  SimCorp continued to strengthen its position with existing 

clients in the German-speaking part of Europe by increasing 

its already stable business volume with a number of existing 

clients, and more importantly adding four new clients to the 

already extensive list of clients in central Europe. 

–  SimCorp Dimension retained its market leading position in 

the Nordic region in 2011. A number of long-term strategic 

cooperation agreements with existing clients were signed 

during the year.

–  Maintenance income increased by 14% as a result of more 

implementation projects being completed. 

–  Although the activity level in the first months of 2011 was 

below 2010, revenue from professional services increased 

by 3% on a full-year basis as a result of increased transpar-

ency and focus on efficiency combined with a more evenly 

distributed order inflow for new licence agreement during 

the year. In addition, the introduction of ‘operational services’ 

in the professional services division has increased agility and 

enhanced the ability of consultants to maintain high utilisation 

rates throughout the year.

–  Average development capacity increased in 2011 and the total 

year end development staff increased by ten.

–  The Group took on a net number of seven new employees in 

2011. 

The 2010 annual report set out revenue and profit guidance 

for 2011. The guidance predicted revenue and overall business 

growth in local currencies of more than 5% and an EBIT margin 

above 20%. The licence base of EUR 455m was assumed to grow 

organically by approximately 8% from add-on licences. 

In a company announcement dated 3 January 2012 (Company  

announcement 1/2012) SimCorp updated the expectations to its 

full year performance for 2011 to a total licence order inflow of 

EUR 40m and business growth to be around 1.0%. The expecta-

tions to revenue growth was updated to 4–5% and the EBIT 

margin expectations was updated to be between 23 and 24%.

 

SimCorp ended the year with business growth of 1.0% (revenue 

growth plus net growth in the licence order book), revenue growth 

of 5.1% and an EBIT margin of 23.8%. The order inflow was EUR 

40.4m compared with the initial guidance of minimum EUR 49.3m. 

Despite challenging market conditions SimCorp almost met 

expectations: revenue increased by 5.1% (4.6% in local curren-

cies), SimCorp over-performed on earnings with an EBIT margin 

of 23.8%, and fell short on order inflow and hence business 

growth by 1.0%. On balance, SimCorp considers the performance 

satisfactory in current trading conditions and takes comfort in 

the resilience of revenue and the significantly improved earnings. 

“SimCorp remains competitive in the 
market and continues to gain market 
share in the geographies in which 
SimCorp operates.”

To CONTENTS



Revenue per market unit, 2010 and 2011
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Revenue 
SimCorp generated total revenue of EUR 195m in 2011, equal to 

an increase of 5.1% over 2010. Exchange rate fluctuations for 

the year had a positive impact of EUR 0.9m on revenue, equal to 

0.5 percentage points.

Over the past few years, SimCorp has increasingly based its 

revenue on relationships with existing clients with approximately 

95% of 2011 revenue being generated by companies that were 

clients at the beginning of the year. This is in line with 2010.

Around 100 clients have expanded their use of SimCorp Dimension 

during 2011. This includes the 15 largest clients who on average 

bought add-on licences worth EUR 0.7m each. SimCorp’s existing 

clients made additional investments in SimCorp Dimension in 

2011, and the proportion of clients with a licence base of more 

than EUR 2m increased from around 51% at 31 December 2010 

to around 54% at 31 December 2011, accounting for 85% 

of the licence base, that is, the contract value of all software 

licences installed. 

Around 28% of SimCorp’s total revenue was generated by the ten 

largest clients, but no single client accounted for more than 4% 

of revenue. In 2010, the ten largest clients accounted for 30% of 

SimCorp’s total revenue. 

SimCorp derives revenue from three sources: licence fees; fees 

from professional services; and maintenance income. The total 

licence order intake decreased by 18% to EUR 40.4m of which 

the nine new SimCorp Dimension solutions sold in 2011 comprised 

EUR 11.7m. The order book decreased from EUR 14.9m at  

1 January 2011 to EUR 8.1m at 1 January 2012, however SimCorp 

enters 2012 with a significantly higher level of secured revenue for 

the full year than ever before totalling EUR 134m – an increase of 

EUR 9m compared to 2010.

SimCorp’s total licence revenue in 2011 was EUR 47.2m, which 

was 4% lower than last year. This was 24% of the Group’s total 

revenue, slightly lower than the indications at the beginning of 

the year of 25–30%. Licence fees were generated partly from 

the completion of a number of implementation projects, and 

partly from the sale of nine new SimCorp Dimension solutions. 

Revenue recognised from sale of initial licenses accounted for 

EUR 16.9m compared with EUR 11.1m in 2010. Revenue recog-

nised from add-on licences to clients accounted for EUR 30.3m 

compared with EUR 38.0m last year. Fees from professional 

services at EUR 57.0m were 3.0% higher than in 2010. Fees 

from professional services accounted for 29% of total revenue 

in 2011, within the range of 25–30% that was indicated at the 

beginning of the year.

Maintenance income continues to increase with the completion 

and implementation of new client installations and new func-

tionality to existing clients, it increased by 13.9% over last year 

to stand at EUR 88.6m. Maintenance income accounted for 45% 

of consolidated revenue, in line with indications at the beginning 

of the year. On full installation and implementation at clients’ 

premises, licence agreements won in 2011 will increase annual 

maintenance income by around EUR 8m.

Costs
SimCorp’s total operating expenses (including amortisation and 

depreciation) decreased in 2011 by 1% to EUR 148.7m. This 

reduction in operating expenses is the result of fewer major cost 

items, and the effect of a cost containment programme.

Compared with 2010 costs not incurred in 2011 included 

SimCorp’s corporate seminar held in 2010 of EUR 1.5m, and the 

absence of costs for the discount on employee shares related to 

the 2010 corporate bonus of EUR 1.5m. 

Financial review    Management report    09
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Exchange rate fluctuations decreased costs by EUR 0.1m, equating 

to 0.1 percentage points.

The Group’s sales and marketing capacity was increased further in 

2011 in order to enhance efforts in North America and France, to 

respond to demand for stronger sales efforts in the more estab-

lished markets from existing clients, and to enable the Group to 

compete strongly in current market conditions. SimCorp’s total sales 

and distribution costs thus increased by 5% to EUR 24.5m in 2011. 

The capacity to support clients in production and intensify delivery 

of professional services increased as a result of increased focus on 

utilisation of professional services staff. SimCorp was thus able to 

increase revenue from professional services while reducing cost 

of sales during the year. The Group’s cost of sales decreased by 

a total of 4% to EUR 66.8m. 

As a result of the increased focus on efficiency throughout the 

Group, the software development function has also focused 

on improved workflows and testing procedures, and reduced 

non-value-adding tasks thereby reducing R&D costs by 3% to 

EUR 44.2m. 

Administrative expenses, including the costs of certain initiatives 

to improve the efficiency of internal business processes, increased 

by 11% to EUR 13.1m.

Consolidated results
SimCorp generated EBIT of EUR 46.3m in 2011 compared with 

EUR 35.2m in 2010, an increase of EUR 11.1m. The EBIT margin 

increased to 23.8% compared with 19.0% in 2010. Exchange rate 

fluctuations for the year had a positive impact of 0.5 percentage 

point on the EBIT margin. 

Cash holdings and foreign exchange adjustments generated financial 

income of EUR 2.6m including the effect of the economic hedge of 

Swiss franc (CHF) entered into in August 2011 of EUR 1.3m. Financial 

expenses, primarily relating to foreign exchange adjustments, 

amounted to EUR 1.9m. Continuing operations thus generated a 

pre-tax profit for the year of EUR 47.2m against EUR 33.2m in 2010.

The tax charge for 2011 amounts to EUR 13.2m against EUR 8.8m 

in 2010. The effective tax rate was 28% compared to 27% in 2010.

 

The consolidated profit for the year was thus EUR 34.0m against 

EUR 24.4m in 2010. After foreign currency translation differences 

and other items of EUR 0.4m, total comprehensive income for the 

year amounted to EUR 34.4m against EUR 26.8m in 2010.

Balance sheet
SimCorp had total assets of EUR 119.5m at 31 December 2011. 

Cash holdings amounted to EUR 48.1m, or EUR 5.5m more than 

at the year-earlier date. Total receivables stood at EUR 47.8m at 

31 December 2011 against EUR 44.1m at 31 December 2010. 

SimCorp has not made any provisions for bad debt in 2011. 

The Group’s non-current assets decreased by EUR 2.2m to EUR 

17.0m in 2011. Goodwill was EUR 0.9m at 31 December 2011. 

The carrying amount of acquired software decreased from EUR 

1.2m to EUR 1.1m, while deferred tax decreased by EUR 1.3m 

to EUR 3.9m. Property, plant and equipment stood at EUR 7.8m 

against EUR 8.8m in 2010 after relatively modest investments in 

technical equipment.

Changes in equity
The Group’s equity increased during the year from EUR 77.5m 

to EUR 83.2m. Comprehensive income amounted to EUR 34.4m 
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and the net effect of the sale of employee shares and share-based 

payment of EUR 2.3m increased equity. Dividend payments of EUR 

17.9m and purchases of treasury shares of EUR 13.2m reduced 

equity by EUR 31.1m.

Cash position and investing activities
Operating activities generated a net cash inflow of EUR 38.4m, 

and there was a net cash outflow of EUR 2.9m from investing 

activities. SimCorp thus generated a net cash inflow of EUR 35.5m.

The Group’s investing activities, primarily in improved technologi-

cal infrastructure, comprised purchases of intangible assets of EUR 

0.6m; leasehold improvements of EUR 0.1m; computing and 

communication equipment (technical equipment) of EUR 2.1m; 

and office and other equipment worth EUR 0.2m.

SimCorp purchased 109,346 treasury shares with a nominal value 

of DKK 10 each in 2011 and at an average share price of DKK 

897.01 per share of DKK 10. SimCorp did not sell any treasury 

shares as part of the year’s employee share programme but 

delivered 12,450 treasury shares with a nominal value of DKK 10 

each in connection with the exercise of stock options by employees 

and members of the Executive Management Board. Moreover, 

887 shares of DKK 10 each were used to remunerate members 

of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution adopted 

by the shareholders in general meeting.

At 31 December 2011, SimCorp held 245,256 treasury shares with 

a nominal value of DKK 10 each (5.3% of the total share capital) 

at an acquisition value of EUR 27.4m and a market value of EUR 

28.9m at 31 December 2011.

 

SimCorp A/S
In 2011, the parent company generated revenue of EUR 82.4m, an 

increase of EUR 5.7m compared with 2010. The parent company 

received dividends totalling EUR 24.3m from subsidiaries in 2011 

compared with EUR 29.8m in 2010. Profit after tax for the year was 

EUR 32.2m against EUR 32.7m in 2010. Equity increased by EUR 

3.7m to EUR 68.3m including share capital of EUR 6.2m, retained 

earnings of EUR 44.5m and a proposed dividend of EUR 17.6m.

Profit allocation
The Board of Directors intends to recommend to shareholders at 

the annual general meeting that, out of the parent company's 

total comprehensive income of EUR 32.4m, dividends of EUR 

17.6m be declared, representing DKK 30.00 per share with a 

nominal value of DKK 10, and that EUR 14.9m be transferred to 

retained earnings.

Significant events occurring after the end of the 
financial year
No significant events have occurred after the balance sheet date 

that affect the 2011 annual report.
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“The Board of Directors intends to recommend to shareholders  
at the annual general meeting that, out of the total recognised 
comprehensive income of EUR 32.4m, dividends of EUR 17.6m 
be declared, representing DKK 30.00 per share with a nominal
value of DKK 10.”
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Based on the three cornerstones of our business: compelling 

solutions, loyal clients and highly skilled employees, SimCorp 

continues to grow in a market characterised by volatility. 

SimCorp develops, sells and provides software solutions and 

related services to the international financial industry. SimCorp’s 

product, SimCorp Dimension, is an advanced software solution 

for professional investment managers that supports all elements 

of the investment management process. 

Today, SimCorp operates in six global regions: North America 

including the USA and Canada; Central Europe including Germany, 

Austria and Switzerland; Western Europe including Belgium, 

the Netherlands, Luxembourg and France; Asia Pacific including  

Australia, Singapore and Hong Kong; the United Kingdom; and the 

Nordic region including Norway, Sweden, Finland and Denmark. 

SimCorp’s product, SimCorp Dimension, is one of the most 

comprehensive standard systems of its kind. It comes with add-on 

services, and its extended modularity enables it to be configured 

to support a client’s entire investment management process, 

from front office to back office or any part thereof. It can thus 

be tailored to the exact needs of any individual client, regardless 

of size, geography or sector. 

SimCorp’s clients include financial institutions, asset and fund 

managers, insurance companies, pension funds, mutual funds, 

banks and mortgage lenders. 

Revenue is derived from three principal activities; sales of software 

licences, provision of maintenance services and professional 

services including packaged services as well as traditional time 

and material-based services. 

The market
Undeniably the world has experienced its worst crisis since the 

Great Depression, and a full recovery is still a long time coming. 

Many blame former years’ lavish greed and spending – and the 

fact that clarity and overall understanding of processes and vis-

ibility into activities have been dim, if not altogether lacking. As a 

consequence, the market is now rightfully demanding increased 

transparency and visibility into processes and practices, and the 

Creating and capturing value  
in uncertain times
Maintaining SimCorp’s profile as a growth company is a strategic priority. Continued  
focus on sustained profitable growth is a key element of the targets for 2012 and beyond.  
SimCorp’s growth is based on delivery of modern services and solutions deriving from a 
forwardlooking solutions development strategy, a dynamic market strategy and a successful 
knowl edge strategy embedded throughout the organisation. 

Clients

–  establishing long-term strategic relationships with 

clients 

– maintaining maximum client satisfaction ratings 

 

Solutions

–  providing modular, flexible and value-adding  

products and services 

–  continuously enhancing system functionality  

as well as technical infrastructure 

Expertise

–  attracting and retaining highly qualified employees 

–  continuously developing employees’ and managers’ 

skills and capabilities 

To CONTENTS
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Educational background

• At 31 December 2011 SimCorp had 1,118 employees located at 20 offices 

 around the world. The average age of SimCorp staff was approximately 38 years 

 and the average length of service was six years at 31 December 2011. 

• SimCorp is an international company with some 40 different nationalities 

 being present among its staff.

• In 2011 40 employees were on international assignments to SimCorp 

 companies outside Denmark.

• On average, SimCorp employees each spent approximately three weeks 

 on self-study, internal and external training in 2011. 

• In 2011 118 employees have participated in SimCorp Leadership Academy. 

• A total of roughly 550 SimCorp Dimension certifications were completed 

 in 2011. Of these, 110 people completed the certification programme, 

 SimCorp Academy. 

M.Sc. 55 %

Bachelor 19 %

Ph.D. 7 %

Other 19 %

Economics/finance 30 %

Computer science 14 %

Science 15 %

Engineering 13 %

Other 28 %

financial industry that SimCorp serves is struggling to restore the 

trust of former years. Because a number of asset managers have 

failed to protect their investors, the industry’s collective reputation 

has been severely tested and in many cases shattered. As a direct 

result, the industry has seen a wave of new legislative initiatives 

being introduced to increase control and supervision. Most 

notable are Solvency II, UCITS IV, Basel III and the Dodd-Frank Act 

just to mention a few – all of which are intended to secure the 

sound operation of financial institutions and the fiduciary asset 

management activities they perform on behalf of their clients. 

The prospects of prolonged and sustained volatility, continued 

uncertainty in financial markets as well as an accelerating flow of 

new legislative demands are bound to drive a number of techno-

logical requirements, and hence what is required from a software 

provider such as SimCorp. Client focus in 2012 and beyond will 

indisputably be compliance reporting, further automation of 

processes to reduce operational costs and data consistency to 

mitigate risks across all elements of the investment management 

process. Many firms will begin positioning and planning for 

growth and consequently will look for scalable IT solutions that 

allow for new business and growth, while at same time catering 

for the above challenges. 

The market for investment management solutions, in which 

SimCorp competes, is characterised by two governing trends: 

best-of-breed solutions and fully integrated, all-in-one systems. 

The best-of-breed approach implies that the investment manager 

has a wide range of solutions and software products to solve the 

many different investment processing needs. This model has an 

inherent risk of data inconsistency, since data has to be keyed in 

several times, and in many different places. Reconciliation of data 

becomes cumbersome and time-consuming, and most importantly 

the ability to get and provide a consolidated overview of the 

business may become challenging, if not impossible. 

The other trend, is the integrated, all-in-one system strategy. 

Data is keyed in once and then consolidated in real-time across 

all domains. This allows the investment manager a full overview 

of the business at all times. More importantly, it allows the invest-

ment manager to continually provide overview and transparency 

to clients, regulators and to the market in general. While mitigat-

ing risk, it also reduces operating costs and enables investment 

managers to scale and grow, simply by handling increased volumes 

on the same platform. 

SimCorp’s solution, SimCorp Dimension is a seamless enterprise 

solution, which provides modular and fully integrated applica-

tion support for front-to-back processes in leading buy-side 

institutions. It is internationally recognised as a comprehensive, 

yet completely modular system that supports all elements of 

the investment management process: analysis of investment 

opportunities; order placing; order management; performance 

measurement; reconciliation; bookkeeping; reporting; risk 

monitoring and control. The entire workflow is integrated on a 

single platform allowing the investment manager to access data 

that is continually updated in real time. 

“SimCorp’s solution, SimCorp 
Dimension is a seamless enterprise 
solution, which provides modular and 
fully integrated application support for 
fronttoback processes in leading 
buyside institutions.”
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Risk monitoring, control and regulatory reporting, in particular, 

are considered key requirements for the future as owners and 

authorities alike increasingly demand regular insight into corporate 

business procedures. As the market for investment management 

is consolidating and many clients operate in several geographies 

on shared IT platforms, there is increasing demand for scalability 

of investment management systems with the ability to handle 

financial instruments in different jurisdictions with different report-

ing rules for multiple regulatory bodies. SimCorp Dimension fully 

meets these requirements in a cost-effective and timely manner. 

The business
Since SimCorp’s establishment in 1971, and particularly in the past 

decade, SimCorp has recorded sustained, high organic growth 

based on configurable standard software for professional invest-

ment managers in the international financial markets. SimCorp is 

recognised as a reliable provider of high-quality services based on 

modern, innovative software development, which has resulted in 

solid financial performance – although, in recent years, SimCorp’s 

business, and in particular the growth rates, have been affected 

by the global financial crisis. 

SimCorp derives revenue from three main activities: sales of 

software licenses, maintenance services and professional services. 

Sales of software licenses fall into two categories – sales of new 

software to new customers and additional sales of software to 

existing clients. Sales of new software licences to new customers 

are large, irregular transactions, which vary significantly over time, 

and accordingly, licence revenue fluctuates considerably from 

one quarter to the next. However, due to SimCorp’s diversified 

business model and strong client base, the company is less 

vulnerable to these fluctuations, because a greater part of the 

revenue derives, for example, from professional service activities 

and maintenance services, which are generated consistently and 

with a high degree of predictability. 

Today, the market and our clients are increasingly demanding more 

business related services with the aim of reducing overall costs 

and making business more scalable. Investment managers want 

to focus on their core business, which typically does not include 

system operations. SimCorp will also offer its software as a service 

(SaaS), a software delivery model, which provides our standard 

software and workflow support in a ready-to-use format. A global 

partner provides the technical infrastructure. With a SaaS solution 

SimCorp runs the software and all of its components, as well as 

the operational work, including upgrading and patching. Clients 

can then focus on their core business, while rightfully expecting the 

software to ‘run on its own’. SimCorp sees an increasing demand 

for this delivery model as less complex institutions will want to avoid 

the demands of running and maintaining a large software platform, 

while at the same time have access to all required functionality 

delivered in a standard configured version. 

Clients can consequently choose the model that best fits their 

business requirements and enjoy the benefits of embedded 

operational services (upgrades, test and validation, capacity 

management), business logic (processes and configuration), data 

management, as well as easy access to new functionality and 

easy on-boarding. 

Where it makes practical and financial sense, SimCorp’s 

market strategy involves increased focus on setting up business 

partnerships with third-party providers. SimCorp will enter into 

a business partnership with a third-party provider when it can 

achieve business advantages that provide a competitive edge 

and added value for SimCorp as well as for SimCorp’s clients. 

Business partnerships include product partnerships characterised 

by the partner offering products or infrastructure platforms that 

can be integrated or incorporated with SimCorp’s own solutions, 

or development partners offering tools SimCorp can use in its 

in-house development process. In addition, SimCorp works 

with implementation partners who offer additional professional 

services provided either through SimCorp or directly to the client.

The clients 
A trusting and loyal cooperation with its clients based on mutual 

respect is paramount to SimCorp and its continued growth. Not 

only because clients generate revenue, but particularly because 

satisfied clients are references for new clients. Trustworthy 

references are key when new clients choose a provider, and it is 

thus vital that SimCorp maintains its reputation among clients 

as a reliable business partner consistently providing high-quality, 

value-adding solutions. 
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“SimCorp derives revenue from three 
main activities: sales of software 
licenses, maintenance services and 
professional services.”
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When a company decides to implement SimCorp Dimension as the 

platform for its future business activities, it also chooses to enter 

into a long-term, strategic partnership with SimCorp. SimCorp is 

proud to report that it enjoys long-standing partnerships with all 

its clients, who all benefit from the cooperation. Among others, 

the cooperation entails that parts of SimCorp’s product develop-

ment are done in close collaboration with the clients. In this way 

SimCorp can combine specific client needs with general market 

demands – thus ultimately enabling the clients to best meet the 

demands made by the financial markets and regulators. 

SimCorp’s client engagement is strengthened through regional 

market units hosting local user community meetings allowing 

clients to discuss relevant topics with SimCorp and importantly 

with other SimCorp Dimension users. Annually, SimCorp also 

hosts an international user community meeting, gathering clients 

throughout the world for a three-day conference focusing on 

SimCorp Dimension best practices and system roadmap. In 2011, 

the conference attracted some 400 users representing clients from 

18 countries around the world. 

SimCorp’s clients include some of the financially strongest invest-

ment managers in the industry, and our partnership, which is based 

on mutual trust and respect, constitutes a solid foundation for 

continued, extended business relationships. It is imperative that 

clients are confident about SimCorp’s ability to be at the forefront of 

developments in the global financial markets and to continue to meet 

clients’ present and future business requirements. Today, more than 

170 international financial institutions globally base their investment 

management activities on the SimCorp Dimension software. 

The solutions
SimCorp’s product, SimCorp Dimension, is an advanced software 

solution for professional investment managers that supports all 

elements of the investment management process. As SimCorp’s 

clients base their core business on the SimCorp Dimension software, 

the responsibility to provide solutions on which clients can rely 

confidently is not taken lightly. Despite the fact that the market 

environment is currently turbulent and characterised by a high level 

of uncertainty, SimCorp continues to invest substantial resources 

in innovation as well as product enhancements and new services 

development. Consequently, SimCorp offers product updates every 

six months. The updates that are based on the systematic collection 

and prioritising of client and market requirements provide enhanced 

system functionality as well as improved technical infrastructure, 

ensuring that SimCorp’s clients always use a modern software 

product based on a market conforming technology. Product devel-

opment is primarily carried out in Copenhagen. However, SimCorp 

also operates development units in Kiev, Ukraine; Bad Homburg, 

Germany; and Shenfield, UK.

The ongoing development of SimCorp’s product is predominantly 

market-driven, based on extensive market research and the sys-

tematic collection and prioritising of market requirements and 

demands. However, as product development also takes place in 

close collaboration with the clients, SimCorp is able to combine 

specific client needs with general market demands, and con-

sequently enable the clients to even better meet the demands of 

the industry in order to stand prepared for the future.

The product development strategy for SimCorp Dimension is based 

on a domain concept designed to enhance functionality, facilitate 

the implementation process and enhance the strategic aspects 

of SimCorp Dimension. The domains are based on clients’ typical 

business processes, e.g. trading, performance measurements or 

accounting. Focusing the product strategy on such domains allows 

SimCorp to optimise the functional match between SimCorp 

Dimension and client requirements thus reducing time-to-market. 

This latter factor is a key parameter for success in future financial 

markets, which see demands and conditions changing at an ever 

increasing pace. Investment managers worldwide are subject to 

ever intensifying scrutiny and competition and thus experience a 

demand for making their in-house processes more transparent and 

efficient while also reducing operating costs. SimCorp continues to 

devote a large part of its development resources to measures that 

can make clients’ processes more efficient. Naturally, SimCorp’s in-

house knowledge management and strategy are organised around 

the domains used in the company’s product development strategy.

A key element of the product development strategy of SimCorp 

Dimension is extensive quality assurance and testing prior to the 

release of new software versions. SimCorp constantly raises and 

follows up on its quality targets to ensure that they are aligned 

with expected market developments.

The	SimCorp	experts	–	the	employees	
To continuously strengthen SimCorp’s market position, the 

organisation is entirely dependent on highly skilled employees with 
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“SimCorp continues to devote a large 
part of its development resources to 
measures that can make clients’ 
processes more efficient.”
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extensive financial expertise and software know-how. Today, more 

than 80% of SimCorp’s employees hold academic degrees, mostly 

in finance, economics, IT or engineering.

In order to offer clients added value when they choose a SimCorp 

Dimension solution, it is essential that SimCorp’s employees have 

up-to-date knowledge of financial instruments and investment 

management processes, including international and national 

standards, as well as legislation and other requirements. Compre-

hensive knowledge of financial theory and software development 

combined with extensive experience and insight into clients’ 

business processes are therefore crucial for SimCorp’s business 

activities and the ability to develop and offer clients competitive, 

high-quality solutions.

As highly qualified employees are essential in developing, selling 

and implementing world-class software, SimCorp continuously 

focuses on recruiting and retaining highly skilled, top-performing 

employees. Ongoing training and strengthening of knowledge 

sharing are key elements in these efforts. SimCorp promotes 

knowledge sharing by way of, among other things, job rotation, 

short- and long-term international assignments, secondments, and 

implementation of adequate information technology to support 

business processes and provide easy access to relevant knowledge. 

The efforts also include focused management and measurement 

of employee performance and development of skills to ensure that 

competent employees are rewarded and motivated to ongoing 

learning in step with the development of SimCorp’s business. 

All employees in SimCorp thus participate in regular employee 

performance reviews, at least annually, to identify and to follow up 

on specific, individual objectives related to the company’s overall 

targets. This enables individual employees to see and understand 

their own contribution to the company’s performance, while 

management is able to monitor target achievement on an ongoing 

basis and to refocus efforts, if required. 

For the purpose of achieving its ambitious targets, SimCorp 

operates a comprehensive training programme, which aims to 

efficiently translate general knowledge into specialised skills and 

ensure that all employees update and develop their qualifications 

on a regular basis. It is important for SimCorp that employees are 

able to translate their theoretical knowledge into practice in order to 

fully utilise their skills for the benefit of clients and colleagues alike.

An important feature of SimCorp’s training programme is the 

SimCorp Academy certification programme, which is mandatory 

for all SimCorp Dimension consultants. SimCorp Academy builds 

competences in and around the use and implementation of 

SimCorp Dimension and thus gives all SimCorp consultants the 

very best qualifications for offering clients high-quality service 

and contributing to discussions and analyses. SimCorp Academy is 

the first step of a three-level professional training programme for 

SimCorp Dimension followed by domain specific competence build-

ing at specialist and expert levels respectively. SimCorp Academy 

courses are also available to SimCorp’s clients, enabling them to 

take full advantage of their system solution. 

Another initiative is SimCorp’s competence building programme, 

GROW, which is intended to identify potential career paths in 

SimCorp and the competences required to get there. GROW 

currently comprises 30 different job profiles within the Group with 

related personal target profiles and competence requirements. 

Individual employees are able to relate their own, actual profile to a 

potential career path, thereby making the requirements for personal 

and professional development clear. All employee résumés are 

made available online for colleagues, containing formal education, 

training, job and project experience as well as other relevant busi-

ness experience. Employee competences are searchable, thereby 

increasing knowledge-sharing throughout the organisation.

Finally, SimCorp also operates a comprehensive leadership training 

programme, the SimCorp Leadership Academy, to ensure that 

SimCorp always has management resources that are among the 

best in the industry with the ability to develop, challenge and 

strengthen both employee competences and corporate culture. 

As with all other training in SimCorp, the elements of the SimCorp 

Leadership Academy are closely linked to the practical development 

of experience in the organisation in order to fully optimise the 

benefit derived from training.

Building awareness
The market for investment management software like SimCorp 

Dimension is generally considered a niche market. Still, there 

is a constant need to present one’s offering to the market and 

continuously build and enhance awareness. As part of SimCorp’s 
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“SimCorp operates a comprehensive 
training programme, which aims to 
efficiently translate general knowledge 
into specialised skills and ensure that 
all employees update and develop their 
qualifications on a regular basis.”
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efforts to increase awareness, SimCorp is building a strong global 

thought leader position as a platform for sales execution. The 

strategic message is: mitigate risk, reduce cost and enable growth. 

Elements of SimCorp’s thought leader programme include among 

others the publication of Journal of Applied IT & Investment Man-

agement – a magazine with a global circulation of currently 24,000 

copies that goes out to SimCorp clients and subscribers world-wide. 

The magazine is also presented in selected airline business lounges. 

Leading professors, industry analysts, management consultants, in-

dustry senior executives and leading financial institutions contribute 

to the Journal that is published three times a year. 

Online, SimCorp has built a comprehensive resource portal that 

covers all major regulatory changes and requirements. The portal, 

which is continuously updated, includes among other items expert 

views and best practices, test and assessment tools, IT implication 

analyses as well as SimCorp Dimension positioning statements. 

A key component of SimCorp’s thought leadership programme is the 

independent research institution, SimCorp StrategyLab, established 

in the spring of 2009. In close collaboration with internationally 

recognised academics and established industry experts, SimCorp 

StrategyLab carries out its own research and analysis of trends 

and challenges in the financial sector. SimCorp StrategyLab also 

contributes competent suggestions for structural IT methods and 

tools, which are intended to minimise risk and propose strategic cost 

savings in order to create a basis for growth in the financial industry. 

The industry experts include several of SimCorp’s clients who – by 

taking part in the research – not only strengthen their partnership 

with SimCorp, but also ensure that a more operational approach is 

taken to the strategic issues that SimCorp StrategyLab deals with. 

In 2011, SimCorp StrategyLab hosted the SimCorp StrategyLab 

Copenhagen Summit. More than 25 global thought leaders 

representing the investment management industry and renowned 

academics convened at the SimCorp StrategyLab Copenhagen Sum-

mit 2011 to discuss key investment management industry challenges 

in the current financial environment. The meetings addressed the 

following three industry sectors: investment funds; pension and 

insurance funds; and asset management. Identification and analysis 

of 12 key challenges related to risk, cost and growth were discussed. 

The main conclusions from the meetings have been collected in three 

white papers, published in September 2011, which combine the 

consensus reached in each of the discussions, as well as on-going 

research among academics, policymakers and industry associations.

Going forward SimCorp StrategyLab will continue to suggest 

ways to meet the challenges and to share best practices in the 

financial industry. 

The intelligence derived from the SimCorp StrategyLab research is 

used by SimCorp to remain at the forefront of the financial industry, 

its challenges and its possibilities. SimCorp believes that the work 

of SimCorp StrategyLab, and its publications, contributes positively 

to SimCorp’s image among professional investment managers.

SimCorp StrategyLab was founded and is sponsored by SimCorp as 

a private and independent research institution, formally organised 

with a board of directors chaired by SimCorp CEO Peter L. Ravn. 

Professor Ingo Walter is director of SimCorp StrategyLab. Ingo 

Walter holds a Seymour Milstein Professorship of Finance, Corporate 

Governance and Ethics and acts as Vice Dean of the faculty at Stern 

School of Business, New York University.

Creating and capturing value during  
uncertain times 
SimCorp is a growth company, and as such maintaining focus on 

sustained profitable growth is a key target for 2012 and beyond.

SimCorp’s strategic development is based on a number of broad 

targets, which management has broken down into measurable 

components so as to enable the company to track progress. 

The general targets are categorised within the fields of market 

growth, product development through innovation and quality 

assurance as well as competency building. These focus areas aim 

to ensure a sustained strong financial performance through growth 

and improved efficiency for the benefit of all the company’s 

stakeholders. Accordingly, the foundation for SimCorp’s growth 

is based on three cornerstones: modern solutions with a forward-

looking service and product development strategy, a committed 

market strategy and a consistent knowledge strategy embedded 

throughout the organisation. The application of SimCorp’s solid 

business model, using these elements, will ensure that SimCorp 

will generate satisfactory financial results. 

Despite the current challenging market conditions, SimCorp stands 

well prepared for the future and its challenges, supported by a sound 

business strategy, the Group’s loyal clients, competent employees 

and unique software product and services. Management believes 

that the investment management industry will notice and acknowl-

edge that SimCorp has an offering that will enable them to meet 

the increased challenges better and eventually prevail as winners.
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SimCorp’s longterm ambition is to generate significant annual revenue growth, and the 
company’s ambition is to get back to twodigit annual growth rates. Relentless focus on  
increasing new sales, growing extra sales to existing clients, and continual efforts to  
delivering professional services to our clients substantiate our confidence in the future.

Market developments
Market conditions in the financial industry in general – and on 

the buy side in particular – did not improve significantly during 

2011. While European equities gained 6% during the first quarter 

of 2011, a year-end decline of around 12% leaves the market 

disappointed. These market swings, repetitive bursts of euphoria 

and disappointment seem to be largely driven by the macroeco-

nomic news flow and political initiatives – or the lack thereof. The 

repercussions of the global financial crisis are still being worked 

through and will potentially introduce even more complexity 

with doubts about the long term viability of the euro, the EU 

and increasing sovereign debt issues in a number of European 

countries. On the other hand the North American market appears 

to be in somewhat better shape than Europe, and Asia seems to 

be in a better situation than Europe providing some balance to 

the overall outlook for SimCorp going into 2012. However, the 

general macro picture provides little reason to change SimCorp’s 

cautious view on the overall outlook.

Reluctance to invest is still a general trend in the market. As a 

consequence, competition for the limited number of opportunities 

in the market has intensified. However, SimCorp continued to win 

market share during 2011. SimCorp’s unique product offering 

combined with its world class employees gives comfort to both 

existing and new clients considering investments in software 

despite difficult times. This is because of SimCorp’s ability to add 

value to their businesses and to demonstrate the tangible benefits 

that materialise within short periods of time, enabling clients to 

become winners in their currently volatile and difficult markets.

Further, legislative changes are typically compelling for investment 

decisions, and in many countries legislation relevant to invest-

ment managers has been or is in the process of being modified 

as a direct result of the financial crisis. Although the legislative 

framework is coming into place, many regulators are still in the 

process of updating regulations based on new legislation. Thus, 

several countries still experience a lack of clarity about their future 

regulatory environment, which again causes uncertainty about the 

requirements to operating systems. However, transparency in this 

area is expected to improve gradually during 2012.

There are indications in the market that major IT projects are 

being considered as the increased urgency of legacy system 

replacement combined with a greater confidence in the long 

term financial environment has encouraged potential clients to 

consider improved operating platforms. Furthermore, liquidity 

risk, credit risk and the need for transparency in areas such as 

exchange traded derivatives and collateral will drive changes and 

thus investments through the buy side industry.

SimCorp believes that investment managers’ IT budgets for 2012 

will increase modestly compared with 2011. Investment managers 

continue to perform thorough due diligence before new invest-

Targets and outlook

“SimCorp continued to win market 
share during 2011. SimCorp’s unique 
product offering combined with its 
world class employees gives comfort  
to both existing and new clients 
considering investments in software 
despite difficult times.”
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ment decisions are made, and such decisions will only be made if 

they can be based on solid business cases.

The most important focus areas in the investment management 

market are expected to be:

–  Risk management, monitoring and control as well as additional 

reporting requirements from regulators

–  Cost savings and efficiency enhancement of in-house 

processes

–  Compliance with new legislation and regulation in a cost-

effective manner

–  Establishing scalable platforms allowing for a substantial 

increase in assets under management

–  The ability to offer improved service to clients.

In recent years, SimCorp has put substantial efforts into develop-

ing new and improved functionality in SimCorp Dimension, and 

SimCorp is convinced that its product’s competitive strength 

has been enhanced. SimCorp remains focused on increasing 

competitiveness, especially by maturing its front office offerings 

for portfolio management, compliance and dealing support, and 

by offering a world class middle and back office solution that 

meets the requirements of the post crisis challenges.

SimCorp will also respond to the increasing market demand for 

‘Software as a Service’ (SaaS) and expects to bring the first client 

live on SimCorp Dimension as a SaaS solution during 2012.

SimCorp’s unique value proposition is based on a scalable 

and highly modular enterprise solution, offering high-quality 

software products with state-of-the-art functionalities and 

features.

SimCorp continues to streamline its internal development process 

to increase productivity and effectiveness to better address market 

trends. The overall aim is to continuously improve time to market 

and product quality.

Supported by the functionality provided by SimCorp Dimension 

and substantial, sustained investment in both new functionalities 

and competences, the Group stands well-positioned to perform 

in a changing market environment, while also being structurally 

prepared for future market developments – short term, medium

term and long term. On this basis, SimCorp expects to continue 

to gain market share.

Operational targets for 2012
Despite the lack of two-digit growth over the last three years 

SimCorp still considers itself a growth company, and as such, 

staying focused on executing on the opportunities while at the 

same time maintaining sustained profitability are core elements 

of the targets for 2012 and beyond. 

Market focus will be a continuance of the 2011 focus areas.

The operational business targets for 2012 include:

–  Signing new SimCorp Dimension licence agreements in 

SimCorp’s growth markets: North America, France and the 

UK. In particular, SimCorp expects to increase sales and 

marketing activities in the North American market, which in 

itself presents the largest growth opportunity for SimCorp

–  Increasing the number of clients in other European countries, 

continuing to generate add-on licence sales to clients already 

using SimCorp Dimension and retaining SimCorp’s solid 

market position

–  Continued roll out of the new front office solution

–  Respond to the increased market demand for SaaS solutions 

and managed services solutions

–  Further enhancing SimCorp’s service offerings by providing 

additional services for operational support

–  Continuing focus on efficiency enhancement, operational 

efficiencies and competence building.

Revenue and profit outlook for 2012
The Group expects revenue growth of more than 5% measured 

in local currencies, and the EBIT margin for 2012 is expected to 

be 22% or more. 

SimCorp’s long-term target is to generate significant, annual 

revenue growth, and the company’s ambition is to get back to 

two-digit annual growth rates. Although the relative revenue 

impact of individual orders is decreasing, growth in the Group’s 

revenue will continue to be impacted by relatively few but large 

SimCorp Dimension orders and such orders are expected to be 

won at relatively irregular intervals. Accordingly, income will vary 

considerably from one reporting period to the next. 

“R&D is expected to account for  
around 30% of total expenses.”
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SimCorp expects the pattern of interim results for 2012 to follow 

that seen in previous years, when performance reported in the 

second and in particular in the fourth quarters were significantly 

stronger than in the first and the third quarters.

The projected percentage breakdown of revenue for 2012 is as fol-

lows: Licence fees approximately 25–30%; fees from professional 

services approximately 25–30%; and maintenance income around 

45%. While there is no change to the overall breakdown of the 

revenue compared with last year the mix between fee income from 

initial licences and additional licences is expected to change slightly 

as the relative share of initial licence fee is expected to increase. 

The licence fee revenue from additional licence agreements is 

expected to be between 6% and 10% of the installed licence 

base at the beginning of the year (EUR 496m). 

Clients who already had business relations with SimCorp at  

1 January 2012 are expected to account for more than 90% of 

total revenue in 2012. Business with existing clients is typically less 

dependent on general economic conditions in the short term, as 

it mainly consists of regular maintenance income.

Revenue from clients in the process of implementing a SimCorp 

Dimension solution consists mainly of professional service fees and 

licence income from licence agreements already entered into (order 

book) as and when such implementation projects are completed.

Maintenance income is stable and can be reliably predicted. 

Fees from professional services are primarily based on hourly-paid 

services and can be divided into three categories – implementation 

of initial licence agreements, implementation of additional licence 

agreements and operational consulting services. The distribution 

of the total revenue from professional services between these 

three types of services is expected to be fairly even.

Staff costs are expected to account for around two thirds of the 

company’s expenses in 2012. R&D is expected to account for 

around 30% of total expenses and the relative share is expected to 

decrease, while sales and distributions cost are expected to grow 

due to planned activities in North America. Administrative expenses 

are expected to be stable.

SimCorp expects to continue to gain market share. This belief 

is based upon the Group’s ability to meet market requirements 

and its substantial, sustained investment in R&D and people. The 

investments made in past years have positioned SimCorp to adapt 

to rapidly changing markets, as well as to respond to structural 

trends, short term, medium term and long term.

“SimCorp remains focused on increasing competitiveness, especially 
by maturing its front office offerings for portfolio management, 
compliance and dealing support, and by offering a world class 
middle and back office solution that meets the requirements of the 
post crisis challenges.”
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In a changing and highly volatile business environment in which performance depends on  
the ongoing achievement of a number of success criteria, SimCorp’s business activities involve 
a range of commercial and financial risks that may affect the Group’s continued operations 
and development.

The section below contains a brief description of the most 

important strategic and tactical risks, which SimCorp believes are 

of particular importance to the company and a brief description 

of the risk prevention measures implemented to mitigate these 

risks. A detailed description of the financial risks that the Group 

is exposed to is provided in note 29 to the financial statements. 

On an overall level, management believes that SimCorp stands 

well prepared to meet the challenges described. The Group 

continually monitors factors that are subject to uncertainty and 

thus involve a potential risk and such continuous risk monitoring 

is reported to the Board of Directors, on a quarterly basis. These 

reports also include the probability of potential risks as well as 

an assessment of the possible impact of the company’s financial 

performance – considering the various options for mitigation – for 

a given period of time.

Strategic risks

Markets

The ability to anticipate and respond to important trends in 

the market for professional investment managers is critical to 

SimCorp’s ability to continuously win market share. It therefore 

poses a strategic market risk that the competitors identify such 

trends earlier than SimCorp. There is also a risk that the competi-

tors are able to expand their international services and distribution 

capacity not only faster but also more efficiently than SimCorp.

Corporate culture

SimCorp’s business is founded on specialist expertise and in-

novation. Therefore, it is imperative that SimCorp continues to 

attract, retain and develop the most skilled employees and is able 

to identify and incentivise the best management talent. Failure to 

do so involves a risk to the company’s continued development. In 

addition, the Group considers that failure to continue to maintain, 

protect and retain SimCorp’s corporate values as a fundamental 

element of business execution and development constitutes a 

genuine risk.

Product innovation

System requirements in the market are to be met through continu-

ous product innovation and improved technical infrastructure and 

technical capabilities of the software product. If SimCorp fails to 

constantly provide a functional solution based on a technology 

platform conforming to market standards, it poses a risk for 

significant loss of market share.

Solutions and services

As a provider of client services as well as software as a service 

(SaaS), the ability to provide fully standardised end-to-end serviced 

solutions that cover all elements such as technical infrastructure, 

WAN lines, third-party integration, databases, data interfaces and 

software applications as well as other required components is key. 

Such services are delivered by SimCorp and any subcontractor that 

Risk management

“The Group continually monitors factors 
that are subject to uncertainty and thus 
involve a potential risk and such con
tinuous risk monitoring is reported to 
the Board of Directors, on a quarterly 
basis.”
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SimCorp engages. If SimCorp fails to balance the requirements 

of the clients and the agreements with the subcontractors, the 

Group risks not only impairing the clients’ businesses but also its 

own. The most apparent risk, in this case, is the possible breach 

of service level agreements and other committed standards. 

Tactical and operational risks

Clients

An important risk which the Group has to consider on a regular 

basis, not least in the light of recent years’ developments in the 

financial markets, is the extent of macroeconomic conditions that 

may impact both existing and new clients’ incentives to invest. 

Also new, specific requirements or legislation in local markets may 

influence the current interest for SimCorp’s product.

Skills	–	development	and	sharing

Being a knowledge-based business, SimCorp’s ability to constantly 

develop and challenge its employees is crucial. Failure to provide 

the right individual challenges, the right training and effective 

tools to efficiently share knowledge with due consideration of 

the company’s situation and potential therefore constitutes a 

risk to the Group.

Quality products

SimCorp’s ability to constantly present the best quality software 

products to its clients is central. Inadequate quality control and 

testing of the Group’s products prior to the release of new 

software versions therefore involves the risk of reduced client 

satisfaction and loyalty.

Execution

Improving the efficiency of business processes is a permanent 

focus area for SimCorp. Failure by the company to adequately 

enhance the efficiency of its own business processes as and when 

it enhances its capacity involves a risk that the proportion of costs 

will rise in connection with continued business growth.

Impact	on	the	external	environment

SimCorp’s activities comprise the development, sale and im-

plementation of software and services, including general office 

activities and business travel, primarily in connection with servicing 

clients. Although SimCorp's products and business activities as 

such do not involve a direct impact on the environment, the daily 

energy consumption, first and foremost, and business travel have 

an environmental impact. Such activities are nonetheless neces-

sary working in a global business with international subsidiaries.

IT resources

Being a technology company whose core business is based 

on modern information technology, SimCorp’s failure to 

adequately protect itself against IT risks represents a significant 

risk. Un authorised access to SimCorp’s network/data constitutes a 

potential risk comprising applications as well as the infrastructure/

technical environment and data stored on SimCorp’s network. 

Theft of code and know-how as well as virus attacks also represent 

potential risks. This again entails a risk of prolonged system 

breakdown that may impair productivity and potentially make 

SimCorp unable to service its clients.

Legal risks

Protecting SimCorp’s vital business interests is essential to the 

Group’s continued operations and development. This includes 

legal risks that may influence SimCorp’s business. SimCorp believes 

that contractual risks are most critical, followed by legal risks 

related to regulatory requirements.

Contractual risks imply that client contracts or other agreements 

impose abnormal obligations on SimCorp if they are not drafted 

in a balanced way taking into account local business practices, 

clients’ legitimate requirements as well as protection of the 

Group’s material business interests. Regulatory requirements 

with respect to, for example, data protection, confidentiality 

agreements, IPR and fraud constitute a risk if SimCorp fails to meet 

such requirements or does not implement the requirements into 

its business procedures in a timely fashion. SimCorp is subject to 

tax and fiscal policies in the countries where the Group operates. 

Changes to this in the countries in question may affect SimCorp’s 

tax and fiscal situation and hence pose a risk.

Currency	risks	and	financial	exposure

Due to the nature of SimCorp’s operations, investments and 

financing, the Group is exposed to changes in currency exchange 

rates. In a global business environment where a growing part of 

SimCorp’s revenue derives from non-Euro currencies, there is a 

potential risk if SimCorp fails to adequately hedge its currency 

exposure. A detailed analysis and description of the financial risk  

exposure is provided in note 29 to the financial statements. 

“Protecting SimCorp’s vital business 
interests is essential to the Group’s con
tinued operations and development.”
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Risks related to the financial reporting process

Generally, the financial reporting process involves a risk that 

the company has an inadequate overview of or insight into 

applicable legislation and potential business risks. There is also a 

risk of inadequate internal controls to avoid significant errors and 

omissions in financial reporting. The Danish Financial Statements 

Act requires that the presentation of the financial statements 

should include a description of the main features of the Group’s 

internal controls and risk management in relation to the financial 

reporting process. The full wording of SimCorp management’s 

statutory description, confer the Danish Financial Statements Act 

§ 107 b, is available at the company’s website www.simcorp.

com/corpgov2011UK.

Risk mitigation

Risk	mitigation	–	clients	and	markets

Through extensive market research and industry analyses, SimCorp 

keeps abreast of trends and tendencies in the global, financial mar-

kets. This combined with its employees’ extensive industry insight 

provide SimCorp with detailed knowledge of existing and potential 

markets and of functional, structural and legal requirements. 

Further to that, SimCorp’s business model provides for very close 

and longstanding relationships with its clients, which allows for 

SimCorp to continuously be at the forefront of trends in the 

market. To ensure the company’s distribution capacity, SimCorp’s 

international distribution network is expanded and extended in a 

controlled process, aiming to strike a balance between short-term 

profitability and preparing for the future. This is done by setting 

up new local distribution entities. 

Macroeconomic conditions are consistently monitored, and 

SimCorp’s software solutions are developed in step with require-

ments defined by the market, either specifically or indirectly as a 

consequence of economic trends. In 2009, SimCorp established 

the independent research institution, SimCorp StrategyLab, which 

in collaboration with academia and experts from the financial 

sector, researches and analyses market trends and investigates 

forward-looking patterns within the investment management 

industry, providing SimCorp with valuable insights into financial 

markets trends.

Risk	mitigation	–	corporate	culture	and	know-how

Each year, SimCorp allocates substantial resources to in-house 

and external training and to developing the professional and 

personal skills of its employees. An extensive in-house leadership 

development programme has been established, aiming to ensure 

that SimCorp always has management resources that are among 

the best in the industry with the ability to develop, challenge and 

strengthen both employee competences and corporate culture 

on an ongoing basis. All ongoing training is closely linked to the 

practical development of experience in the organisation in order 

to optimise the benefit derived from training.

Additionally, the Group also makes increasing use of modern 

information technology, including among others video conference 

facilities, providing opportunities for virtual meetings between 

colleagues, independently of time and place.

Risk	mitigation	–	products

SimCorp offers updated product versions every six months. 

Updates are based on the systematic collection and prioritising 

of client and market requirements and provide enhanced system 

functionality as well as improved technical infrastructure. Due to 

SimCorp Dimension’s high configurability and flexibility, among 

other factors, a key element of the product development strategy 

is extensive quality assurance and consecutive testing prior to the 

release of new software versions.

SimCorp continuously raises and follows up on its internal quality 

targets to ensure that they are aligned with expected market 

developments.

Risk	mitigation	–	solutions	and	services

For the purpose of mitigating the risks that SimCorp undertakes 

as a provider of full-service packages, the Group has established 

various measures to control both external and internal risk. Exter-

nally, a due diligence process is conducted on each subcontractor 

that the company engages in the services area. This is to make 

sure that the supplier has the sufficient strength – financially, 

organisationally as well as product-wise – to meet SimCorp’s 
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“Macroeconomic conditions are con
sistently monitored, and SimCorp’s 
software solutions are developed in  
step with require ments defined by the 
market, either specifically or indirectly 
as a consequence of economic trends.”
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requirements. Internally, a clear description of the roles in each 

delivery component provides an overview and allows for a clear 

segregation of duties. Moreover, SimCorp consultants undergo 

continuous training and development to ensure they possess the 

required knowledge and experience about operational services in 

order to provide added value for SimCorp’s clients.

Risk	mitigation	–	execution

SimCorp has developed, set up and operates an infrastructure and 

in-house systems that allow it to monitor individual components 

of the business processes. This creates a comprehensive overview, 

providing constant focus, risk prevention and the foundation for 

continued efficiency enhancements.

Risk	mitigation	–	impact	on	the	external	environment

As part of SimCorp’s Corporate Social Responsibility commitment, 

the Group aims to reduce its impact on the environment and 

to act with the greatest possible respect for its surroundings. 

Among other initiatives, the company has replaced IT hardware 

with low-energy equipment, implemented video conferencing 

equipment at subsidiary locations to reduce the need to travel, 

and set up automatic light and heating controls to minimise energy 

consumption outside working hours. The company regularly looks 

for new initiatives to reduce its energy consumption and the 

impact on the external environment.

Risk	mitigation	–	IT	resources

SimCorp continuously monitors its global, technical infrastructure, 

aiming to predict and minimise risks in connection with production 

and the operation of SimCorp’s business. Through established pro-

cedures SimCorp has solutions to quickly restore critical business 

services. SimCorp also operates a high security level in connection 

with access to data. The company has implemented strict access 

control to the physical environment as well as to its network and 

stored information. The controls are monitored and reviewed on 

a regular basis in order to optimise security in this area. 

Risk	mitigation	–	legal	risks

It is vital to the company that it continues to claim and protect 

the copyright to its products and strike a balance in the legal 

obligations to which the company may become subject. The 

company thus ensures the specific text of all contracts entered 

into by the Group as well as the correct wording of statements 

and declarations.

SimCorp is also responsible for monitoring and assessing the 

scope of new legislation that may affect SimCorp’s own business 

procedures, including the identification of significant tax risks as 

well as preparing documentation to covering these.

Risk	mitigation	–	currency	risks	and	financial	exposure	

SimCorp’s finance department manages the Group’s currency 

exposure pursuant to SimCorp’s currency policy and monitors that 

currency positions and payments are hedged in order to keep the 

overall currency exposure within the limits defined by the Group’s 

currency policy. The company has implemented a number of 

business procedures and controls to enhance the transparency of 

individual activities and providing a better overview of financial 

exposure. See note 29, ‘Financial instruments and risks’.

Risk	mitigation	–	the	financial	reporting	process

The company has implemented various business procedures and 

controls to ensure compliance of the processes in connection with 

and relating to financial reporting. They are based on a range of 

general principles, policies and procedures, which are assessed 

and adjusted by SimCorp’s Board of Directors and Executive 

Management Board on a regular basis. Furthermore, the company 

has set up a controller function to check the financial reporting 

of subsidiaries and associates, and established a whistleblower 

function.

The Executive Management Board monitors compliance with 

relevant legislation and reports to the Board of Directors.

“SimCorp has developed, set up and operates an infrastructure and 
inhouse systems that allow it to monitor individual components 
of the business processes. This creates a comprehensive overview, 
providing constant focus, risk prevention and the foundation for 
continued eff iciency enhancements.”
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In a very limited number of areas SimCorp has decided not to 

comply with the recommendations issued by NASDAQ OMX 

Copenhagen A/S. In these few cases SimCorp considers that the 

limited size and/or complexity of its business does not justify full 

compliance with the recommendations. Consequently, SimCorp 

is not in full compliance on the matters of separate nomination, 

remuneration and audit committees. 

On the subject of nomination, the Chairman, the Deputy Chairman 

and the CEO are asked by the Board of Directors to identify new, 

potential board members. The Board of Directors discusses a 

short-list of candidates and decides collectively whom are to be 

nominated by the Board of Directors. 

SimCorp’s remuneration policy, which is available at the company’s 

website, lays forward a clear description of SimCorp’s remunera-

tion principles and procedures. At the annual general meeting 

2012 SimCorp’s Board of Directors proposes minor adjustments to 

be made in respect of the remuneration policy, primarily with the 

objective of allowing SimCorp’s Board on a case-by-case basis to 

approve the separate remuneration of one or more Board mem-

bers for activities which are outside the normal duties assigned 

to such Board member. Further the policy is suggested updated 

to reflect the changes to the long-term incentive programme 

made as a consequence of recent changes to Danish legislation.

Finally, the duties relating to audit are led by an appointed, 

independent member of the board, however they are discharged 

collectively by the Board of Directors acting as audit committee. 

The Board of Directors has decided that, based on the audit 

requirements, it is expedient for the Board to act collectively 

as an audit committee under section 31 of the Danish Act on 

Registered and State-Authorised Public Accountants. Accordingly, 

the Board of Directors must at all times ensure that at least one 

independent Board member has the required audit or accounting 

competences. All Board meeting agendas also include a recurring 

item concerning the discussion of matters related to the collective 

responsibility of the Board of Directors as an audit committee.

A revision of the corporate governance recommendations issued 

by NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen A/S in 2011 includes a new recom-

mendation on diversity. The recommendation suggests that the 

topic of diversity is discussed annually by the Board aiming to ensure 

that the company has and follows up on specific goals for diversity 

at management levels in the organisation. SimCorp’s management 

principles are based on providing equal opportunities for all employ-

ees to develop and exercise leadership. SimCorp interprets ‘diversity’ 

as relating to nationality, age, educational background, seniority 

and gender, and as such SimCorp aims to a level of management 

diversity that reflects the diversity of its employees. 

In the principles for the overall management of SimCorp that are 

embodied in the company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines 

(statutory corporate governance statement pursuant to section 

107 b of the Danish Financial Statements Act for the financial 

year 2011), SimCorp accounts for all recommendations and how 

the company interprets them. These guidelines are available at 

the company’s website at www.simcorp.com/corpgov2011UK. 

The Board’s work with corporate governance 
guidelines for SimCorp
The corporate governance guidelines provide the overall direction 

for SimCorp’s Board of Directors and Executive Management Board 

when defining working procedures and principles. The guidelines 

are intended to ensure the efficient and adequate management of 

SimCorp within the framework defined by applicable legislation, 

rules and recommendations for Danish listed companies and by  

SimCorp’s articles of association, mission, corporate vision and values.

Corporate	Governance

SimCorp’s Board of Directors has reviewed and discussed each of the recommendations for 
corporate governance issued by NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen A/S and has assessed that  
with a few exceptions SimCorp is in full compliance with the recommendations.
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SimCorp’s relationship with its stakeholders
SimCorp’s management objective is, in all respects, to promote the 

long-term interests of the company, and thus of all stakeholders. 

The objective of creating long-term value assumes, among other 

things, that SimCorp sets up durable and constructive relationships 

with the Group’s primary stakeholders: shareholders, clients, 

employees and suppliers. Such professional and commercial 

relations are based on the Group’s mission and on mutual trust 

and responsibility. SimCorp’s information policy plays a key role. 

The policy is designed to ensure that stakeholders simultaneously 

receive timely, relevant and full information on the Group’s activities 

to the extent such disclosure would not be detrimental or potentially 

detrimental to SimCorp’s existing or future competitive position. 

In order to enable shareholders and equity market participants 

to make an independent, professional evaluation and analysis of 

SimCorp’s commercial and financial position and future prospects, 

SimCorp publishes material information on the company’s financial 

results, business activities and strategic goals. Part of this disclosure 

is a regular element of SimCorp’s interim reports. With the intention 

of strengthening communication between the company and its 

shareholders, SimCorp makes increasing use of information tech-

nology. Consequently all communication with shareholders takes 

place electronically, including notices to convene general meetings.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Corporate Social Responsibility in SimCorp is firmly based on the 

Group’s core values and SimCorp’s ‘Corporate Governance Guide-

lines’ (‘Retningslinjer for den overordnede ledelse af SimCorp’) as 

adopted by SimCorp’s Board of Directors. SimCorp’s commitment 

to sustainable development of the company is based on combining 

financial performance with socially responsible behaviour and 

environmental awareness. 

Overall, SimCorp aims at maintaining and enhancing its profes-

sional and commercial relations with internal and external 

stakeholders based on mutual respect. SimCorp endeavours to 

comply with applicable legislation, local as well as international. 

In the conduct of business, SimCorp maintains a high ethical 

standard and strives to perform its activities with integrity and 

responsibility. SimCorp is greatly committed to proper and diligent 

conduct in respect of the services and products we provide to our 

clients. We commit ourselves to mutually value-adding, long-term 

relationships with our clients with respect for each individual cli-

ent’s business and social environment. We expect our existing and 

potential clients to share our standards for sound and responsible 

behaviour and trust them to operate in a legal and ethical manner. 

We respect the individuality of our employees and offer each 

equal opportunity for learning and growing in accordance with 

their individual needs and capabilities as well as the company’s 

situation. Our communication policy ensures our shareholders 

equal, adequate and timely access to information on our business.

We pursue an open dialogue with all investors and analysts about 

the company’s activities and financial performance. We aim to 

reduce our environmental impact and act with sustained reliability 

and respect for our surroundings. The company’s approach to 

Corporate Social Responsibility is described in more detail in 

the document entitled Corporate Social Responsibility (statutory 

corporate social responsibility statement pursuant to section 99 a 

of the Danish Financial Statements Act) posted on the company’s 

website at www.simcorp.com/CSR2011UK.

The work of the Board of Directors and the 
Executive	Management	Board
The Board of Directors is a collective body for promoting the 

long-term interests of the company in all respects. The Board 

of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the overall strategic 

management and the financial and managerial control of the 

Group are conducted adequately in all respects. Thus, the Board of 

Directors acts as a sparring partner to the Executive Management 

Board in relation to strategic initiatives and monitors the Group’s 

financial condition, risk management and business activities on 

an ongoing basis. In 2011 SimCorp’s Board of Directors held 

seven meetings. At these meetings, the Board followed up on the 

Group’s current business and financial performance and discussed 

the Group’s overall strategy. In addition, the Board of Directors 

held an off-site strategy seminar in August 2011 to discuss the 

Group’s long-term strategy.

Composition and qualifications of the Board  
of Directors
The Board of Directors is composed so as to ensure its indepen-

dence of any special interests. The Board of Directors should 

therefore consist of a number of members which is sufficient to 

enable an appropriate distribution of tasks among the members 

as well as an effective and rapid decision-making process. It is 

essential that the Board of Directors acts as an efficient, visionary 

and result-oriented dialogue partner for SimCorp’s Executive Man-

agement Board. Therefore, the Board of Directors has defined the 

ideal profile for the Board’s aggregate competences to ensure that 

its members between them represent the required professional 

breadth and knowledge of the industry as well as the required 
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business and financial competences. These competences have been 

identified within the areas of strategy, finance and operations, as 

well as organisation and management. The ideal profile is updated 

regularly allowing for SimCorp’s strategic position and challenges.

As provided in the company’s articles of association, SimCorp’s 

Board of Directors consists of between three and six members 

elected by the company’s shareholders in addition to members 

elected by and from the company’s employees in Denmark. The 

Board currently consists of four members elected by the share-

holders and two members elected by the employees. Members 

of SimCorp’s Board of Directors are elected for one year at a time, 

and employee-elected members for four years. Pursuant to the 

articles of association, no candidate for Board membership may 

have reached the age of 70 on the date of the general meeting. 

The chairman shall ensure that new Board members are thor-

oughly introduced to the Board’s work. The shareholders elect 

new members to the Board of Directors at SimCorp’s annual 

general meeting. The retiring Board nominates candidates and 

explains the reasons for their nomination. If a Board member 

elected by the employees leaves SimCorp or is otherwise absent 

for a prolonged period of time, the alternate elected by the 

employees will replace such member. 

Self-assessment
The Board of Directors carries out an annual self-assessment. 

Thus, SimCorp’s Board of Directors and Executive Management 

Board, again in November 2011, performed a self-assessment 

process headed by the Chairman of the Board based on written 

contributions from the individual members. The Deputy Chairman 

of the Board is responsible for carrying out the assessment of the 

Chairman. The self-assessment process comprises an evaluation 

of the work and contribution of the Executive Management 

Board and the Board of Directors within the areas of strategy, 

finance and operations, as well as organisation and management. 

Furthermore, individual evaluations are performed of each Board 

member’s work and contributions to the Board’s work as a whole. 

The results of the self-assessment were discussed by the Board. 

The discussion included an evaluation of the collaboration between 

the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board as 

well as a review of the implementation of the initiatives agreed in 

the self-assessment process conducted in 2010. As a result of the 

self-assessment, the Board of Directors concluded that its collective 

work is efficient and that the competences described in the ideal 

profile are represented by the aggregate competences of the Board 

of Directors. However, the Board also noted that, due to the rela-

tively small number of Board members, the Board’s competences in 

certain areas rely on individual persons. Finally, the Board decided 

that in 2012 the annual self-assessment will also be analysed and 

assessed by an external consultant in order to further ensure that 

the general principles for good corporate governance are upheld. 

Risk management
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for SimCorp 

maintaining appropriate procedures to monitor, measure and 

manage the company’s risks and for such procedures being firmly 

embedded in the company’s organisation. A general description 

of risks is provided in the section headed ‘Risk management’ on 

page 23. As part of its risk management, the company has set up a 

whistleblower body which, in addition to usual control functions, is 

intended to provide access to report on suspected irregularities in the 

business. The whistleblower body enables employees, management, 

SimCorp Board members and other stakeholders of SimCorp (such as 

supplier representatives, clients or shareholders) to report suspicion 

of any instances of neglect or other matters that may potentially 

harm SimCorp’s business, be it financially, in terms of reputation 

or otherwise. The whistleblower body has been authorised by the 

Danish Data Protection Agency. The Board of Directors is responsible 

for appointing a representative, who must possess the requisite 

professional qualifications and integrity enabling such representative 

to manage the whistleblower policy in a trustworthy and responsibly 

independent manner. The Board of Directors has appointed such 

representative to manage the whistleblower body and act as 

gatekeeper, currently the Group’s General Counsel.

In order to avoid that any overtly unfounded information is passed 

on and to ensure that the recipient of information is the right 

person to handle such information, the Board of Directors has 

instructed the gatekeeper to apply a criterion of materiality in 

deciding whether to pass on information while also considering 

for whom such information is relevant.

All reports not immediately categorised as obviously unfounded 

will, depending on the nature of the matter, be forwarded to the 

CEO or the Chairman of the Board of Directors or to both (or to 

the company’s external legal advisor if the information concerns 

the Chairman of the Board and/or the CEO), who will consider 

additional analyses and measures in connection with the matters 

reported. Reports and queries received through the whistleblower 

system will be treated as confidential.
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SimCorp shares
SimCorp’s share capital amounts to a nominal value of DKK 

46,000,000 divided into 46,000,000 shares of DKK 1 each. Each 

share carries one vote, and all shares are freely transferable. All 

shares confer equal rights on their holders. 

SimCorp shares (ISIN code DK0016026164) are listed on NASDAQ 

OMX Copenhagen A/S under the symbol SIM and classified under 

sector code 45103010. SimCorp shares are listed and traded in 

denominations of DKK 10 on NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen A/S. 

That is, the total, listed number traded shares is 4,600,000.

The official share price at 31 December 2011 was DKK 877 for each 

traded share with a nominal value of DKK 10, equal to a market 

capitalisation of EUR 543m (DKK 4.1bn). The price of SimCorp’s 

shares fell by 2% in 2011. By comparison, the OMXC20 index, the 

NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen A/S blue chip index, fell by 14.8%, 

while the index for medium-sized companies (MidCap+), of which 

the SimCorp share is a component, fell by 21.6%. Relative to 

2010, the average daily turnover of SimCorp shares on NASDAQ 

OMX Copenhagen A/S decreased by 14% to EUR 0.97m, and the 

annualised share price volatility in 2011, that is, the average daily 

price variation (standard deviation), was 30%, as compared with 

21% for the OMXC20 index in the same period.

Shareholder structure
At 31 December 2011, SimCorp had around 7,000 registered 

shareholders representing more than 91% of the company’s share 

capital, a reduction of approximately 300 registered shareholders 

during the year. At the same time share capital held by sharehold-

ers registered by name increased by 5 percentage points compared 

to 2010. More than 55% of the company’s registered share capital 

is now held in foreign securities accounts, as compared with 52% 

at 31 December 2010. The number of shareholders with securities 

accounts in Denmark constituted around 88% of the total number 

of shareholders. Approximately 55% of the share capital is held 

or managed by the 25 largest shareholders.

The distribution of shareholders is listed below:

 

Holding /  Number of Relative share Total relative

no. of shares registered of all registered share of

of DKK 10 shareholders shareholders capital

 

10,000 <    63   0.9% 70.0%

5,000 < 9,999    35   0.5%  5.6%

1,000 < 4,999   132   1.9%  5.8%

100 < 999 1,185  17.0%  6.6%

< 100 5,555  79.7%  3.0%

 

Total 6,970 100.0% 91.0%

 

As in 2010, around 11% of the company’s share capital was held by 

the company’s management and by approximately 600 employees. 

Furthermore, SimCorp estimates that Danish and foreign institutional 

investors held some 55% of the company’s shares. Approximately 

25% of SimCorp shares were managed by investors who are 

also clients of SimCorp. The company held 5.3% of the shares as 

treasury shares. In addition, the following shareholder has notified 

the company, as required by section 55 of the Danish Companies 

Act, that it holds more than 5% of the company’s share capital:

–  The Danish Labour Market Supplementary Pension Fund (ATP), 

Denmark, 6.3%.

Employee share programme
As the minimum criteria for the short-term corporate incentive 

programme for 2010 were not met, no shares were offered under 

the employee share programme for 2011. 

Shareholder information
At 31 December 2011, SimCorp had around 7,000 registered shareholders representing  
more than 91% of the company’s share capital. Approximately 25% of SimCorp shares were 
managed by investors who are also clients of SimCorp.
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The Group plans to continue the employee share programme in 

the future. Tax legislation regulating employee share programmes 

differs from country to country. As a consequence hereof, and also 

taking the recent change in the Danish tax legislation on employee 

shares into account, all employees will be offered to opt for restricted 

stock units or employee shares under the same employee share 

programme. Both the employee shares and the restricted stock 

units will have a vesting period of three years and the restricted 

stock units are further subject to employment at the time they vest. 

Share based incentive schemes
In 2003, SimCorp introduced a stock option programme for the 

Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board, senior 

managers and key employees. The stock option programme was 

intended to provide the company’s management and selected key 

employees with a special incentive to contribute to the company’s 

positive long-term performance and thus to the positive develop-

ment in the price of the company’s shares. This stock option 

programme was replaced by a restricted stock unit programme 

as published in the annual report for 2009. 

On 1 April 2011, a total grant of 16,214 restricted stock units of 

DKK 10 each were approved to the Executive Management Board 

and the employees and an additional grant of 122 restricted stock 

units of each DKK 10 were approved in second half of 2011 in 

connection with the employment of a Senior Vice President. The 

restricted stock units will vest after three years, subject to con-

tinuing employment. Furthermore, the restricted stock units are 

subject to conditions relating to average annual minimum revenue 

growth and average annual minimum net operating profit after tax 

for the financial years 2011–2013. If the two latter conditions are 

only partially satisfied, the undertaking with respect to the number 

of shares transferred after three years will be reduced, and may 

possibly lapse completely. The restricted stock unit programme for 

2012 will continue and comprises restricted stocks with a market 

value of approximately EUR 2.0m on the date of grant. Treasury 

shares will be acquired to cover the programme obligations.

SimCorp’s share based incentive schemes are further detailed in 

note 7 to the financial statements.

In accordance with SimCorp’s remuneration policy, which is 

available on the company’s website, members of the Board of 

Directors will in 2012 continue to receive SimCorp shares with a 

total value equal to one third of their total remuneration. It is the 

assessment of the Board of Directors that these remuneration 

principles ensure an appropriate alignment of the interests of 

the Board of Directors with SimCorp's shareholders in general.

Shares, stock options and restricted stock units 
held by management
As at 31 December 2011, the six members of the company’s Board 

of Directors held a total of 12,023 SimCorp shares of DKK 10. The 

four members of the Group’s Executive Management Board held 

a total of 42,930 SimCorp shares of DKK 10.

SimCorp’s rules for insider trading in the company’s shares provide 

that members of SimCorp’s Board of Directors and Executive 

Management Board may not trade in SimCorp shares if they hold 

inside, price-sensitive information and under no circumstances 

beyond a period of four weeks following the publication of the 

company’s interim reports and annual reports. This also applies to 

all other individuals identified as permanent insiders. Pursuant to 

the Danish Securities Trading Act, SimCorp has reported changes 

in related party shareholdings to the NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen 

A/S apart from two instances where permanent insiders’ exercise 

of options was not reported in due time. SimCorp identified the 

error and immediately notified the Danish FSA and NASDAQ OMX 

Share price performance, 2011

DKK per share

31 December 10 31 March 11 30 June 11 30 September 11 31 December 11

600

OMXC20 (rebased)SimCorp MidCap+ (rebased)

600

600

1,200
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global investment industry by ringing 

the closing bell at the NASDAQ MarketSite 
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Copenhagen A/S. The Danish FSA noted that the Company itself 

had identified the error, had reported the error instantly and had 

corrected the internal procedures immediately to mitigate future 

errors. Hence, no further action was sanctioned from the Danish FSA 

apart from filing a formal notification to the Company. All reports on 

permanent insiders’ trades are available at the company’s website.

Additional information on the holdings of shares, stock options 

and restricted stock units in SimCorp by members of the Board 

of Directors, the Executive Management Board and other related 

parties is disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.

Annual general meeting
The annual general meeting of SimCorp A/S will be held at 

15:00 on Thursday, 29 March 2012, at SimCorp’s headquarters, 

Weidekampsgade 16, Copenhagen, Denmark.

Carl Christian Ægidius has informed the Board of Directors that he 

does not wish to stand for re-election. The Board of Directors has 

updated the ideal competence profile for the Board of Directors 

and compared the competences held by the individual board 

members with the ideal competence profile, thus enabling the 

Board of Directors to identify specific areas that require competency 

strengthening – also seen in the light of Carl Christian Ægidius’ 

resignation. Consequently, the Board of Directors intends to propose 

that Peter Schütze be elected new member and Vice Chairman of 

the Board of Directors.

Peter Schütze, born 1948, is a Danish citizen. He holds a master 

of science in economics (cand.polit) from the University of 

Copenhagen. As former CEO of Nordea Bank Danmark A/S and 

member of Group Executive Management in Nordea AB, Peter 

Schütze holds more than 40 years of experience from the financial 

industry. Peter Schütze is regarded as independent.

To ensure continuity in the composition of the Board of Directors, 

the remaining three members elected by the shareholders and cur-

rently serving on the Board of Directors, will stand for re-election at 

SimCorp’s annual general meeting. Brief biographies of the current 

members of the Board of Directors can be found on page 78–79.

The Board of Directors intends to propose that the total remunera-

tion to the Board of Directors for the financial year 2012 remains 

unchanged relative to 2008, 2009, 2010, and 2011 and that, as 

previously, it be composed of cash remuneration totalling EUR 

0.21m (DKK 1.6m), representing two thirds of the total remunera-

tion, and SimCorp shares at market value of around EUR 0.11 (DKK 

0.8m) representing one third of the remuneration, totalling EUR 

0.32m (DKK 2.4m). See ‘Guidelines for Incentive Remuneration of 

Employees, Board and Management’ at the company’s website.

The Board of Directors further intends to propose that the share-

holders authorise the company to acquire treasury shares at a total 

nominal value of up to 10% of the company’s share capital. See 

section 198 of the Danish Companies Act. The Board of Directors 

intends to recommend to the shareholders at the annual general 

meeting that the share capital be reduced by 1,000,000 shares 

at DKK 1 each by cancellation of treasury shares. Following this 

cancellation, the nominal share capital will be DKK 45,000,000 

comprising 45,000,000 shares of DKK 1 each. The change requires 

an amendment to the articles of association. 

Furthermore, the Board of Directors intends to propose a number 

of amendments to SimCorp’s articles of association, including the 

introduction of a voluntary scheme for electing employees for 

SimCorp A/S’ Board of Directors.  

The agenda for the annual general meeting including any propos-

als will be published on Wednesday, 7 March 2012, on which date 

the notice convening the meeting will be sent to all shareholders 

registered with their e-mail addresses.

Dividends
Maintaining a composition of assets that does not raise ques-

tions about the company’s financial stability is vital to SimCorp’s 

continued international expansion. Management believes this 

objective may be achieved when cash holdings exceed 10% of 

the coming year’s projected revenue.

On this assumption, the company intends to pay dividends of at 

least 50% of profit for the year. Additionally generated cash will 

be used to buy treasury shares provided the company does not 

anticipate specific cash requirements. The Board of Directors has 

considered SimCorp’s cash position and liquidity forecast, and on 

the basis thereof the Board of Directors intends to recommend 

to the shareholders at the annual general meeting that dividends 

of EUR 17.6m, equal to DKK 30.00 per share of DKK 10 nominal 

value, be distributed for the financial year 2011 corresponding to 

a payout ratio of 54%. In order to be eligible for dividends, shares 

must be registered in the custody account on or before 28 March 

2012. The ex-dividend date is 29 March 2012. Dividends for the 

financial year 2011 are expected to be available on 4 April 2012. 
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Statement by the Board of Directors and  
the	Executive	Management	Board

The Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board 

have today considered and approved the annual report for 2011 

of SimCorp A/S.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the 

International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 

and Danish disclosure requirements for listed companies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements and the 

parent company financial statements give a true and fair view

of the Group’s and the parent company’s assets, liabilities and 

financial position as of 31 December 2011 and of the results of 

the parent company’s and the Group’s operations and cash flows 

for the financial year 1 January–31 December 2011. 

In our opinion the Management report gives a true and fair view 

of developments in the activities and financial position of the 

Group and the parent company, the results for the year and the 

financial position of the Group and the parent company, as well 

as a description of the significant risk and uncertainty factors that 

may affect the Group and the parent company.

We recommend that the annual report be adopted by the 

shareholders at the annual general meeting.

Copenhagen, 29 February 2012

Signatures

Peter L. Ravn 

Chief Executive Officer 

Jesper Brandgaard

Chairman

Jacob Goltermann

Executive	Management	Board

Board of Directors

Torben B. Munch 

Chief Operation Officer

Carl Christian Ægidius

Vice Chairman

Raymond John

Georg Hetrodt

Chief Technology Officer

Hervé Couturier

Thomas Johansen

Chief Financial Officer

Simon Jeffreys
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Independent auditors’ report

To the shareholders of SimCorp A/S 

Independent auditors' report on the consolidated financial 
statements and the parent company financial statements
We have audited the consolidated financial statements and the parent 

company financial statements of SimCorp A/S for the financial year  

1 January–31 December 2011. The consolidated financial statements 

and the parent company financial statements comprise [income state-

ment, statement of comprehensive income, balance sheet, statement of 

changes in equity, cash flow statement and notes, including a summary 

of significant accounting policies] for the Group as well as for the parent 

company. The consolidated financial statements and the parent com-

pany financial statements are prepared in accordance with International  

Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and Danish disclosure 

requirements for listed companies.

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial 
statements and the parent company financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial 

statements and parent company financial statements that give a true and 

fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as 

adopted by the EU and Danish disclosure requirements for listed companies 

and for such internal control that Management determines is necessary to 

enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements and parent 

company financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements and the parent company financial statements based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards 

on Auditing and additional requirements under Danish audit regulation.  

This requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and  

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the 

consolidated financial statements and the parent company financial 

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 

the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements 

and the parent company financial statements. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks 

of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements and 

the parent company financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control 

relevant to the Company's preparation of consolidated financial statements 

and parent company financial statements that give a true and fair view in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the Company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and the 

parent company financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit has not resulted in any qualification.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements and the parent 

company financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group's 

and the parent company's financial position at 31 December 2011 and of 

the results of the Group's and the parent company's operations and cash 

flows for the financial year 1 January – 31 December 2011 in accordance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 

and Danish disclosure requirements for listed companies.

Statement on the Management's review
Pursuant to the Danish Financial Statements Act, we have read the 

Management's review. We have not performed any further procedures 

in addition to the audit of the consolidated financial statements and the 

parent company financial statements. On this basis, it is our opinion that 

the information provided in the Management's review is consistent with 

the consolidated financial statements and the parent company financial 

statements.

Copenhagen, 29 February 2012 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Danmark

Statsautoriseret Revisionsaktieselskab 

Fin T. Nielsen Mikkel Sthyr

State Authorised State Authorised 

Public Accountant Public Accountant

KPMG

Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab

Finn L. Meyer Michael Sten Larsen 

State Authorised State Authorised

Public Accountant Public Accountant
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PARENT	COMPANY	 	 	 	 GROUP

 
2010

 
2011

   
2010

 
2011

 EUR'000 EUR'000 Note  EUR'000 EUR'000
    INCOME STATEMENT
    
 76,715 82,393 3, 4, 5 Revenue 185,375 194,815
 
 25,231 26,267 6, 7, 8 Cost of sales 69,580 66,830
 
 51,484 56,126  Gross	profit 115,795 127,985
 
 17,444 14,727  Other operating income 93 196
 
 41,045 39,944 6, 7, 8 Research and development costs 45,459 44,194
 
 9,286 9,599 6, 7, 8 Sales and distribution costs 23,390 24,492
 
 11,507 12,493 6, 7, 8, 9 Administrative expenses 11,790 13,145
 
 11 10  Other operating expenses 50 10
 
 7,079  8,807  Profit (loss) from operations (EBIT) 35,199 46,340
 
 –  –  10 Share of profit after tax in associates 48 107
 
 31,991 27,167 11 Financial income 1,983 2,610
 
 5,148 1,822 12 Financial expenses 3,993 1,884
 
 33,922 34,152  Profit	before	tax 33,237 47,173
 
 1,230 1,967 13 Tax on the profit for the year 8,847 13,217
 
 32,692 32,185  Profit for the year 24,390 33,956
 
    Earnings per share  
 
   14 Basic earnings per share of DKK 1 – EPS (EUR) 0.54 0.77
 
   14 Diluted earnings per share of DKK 1 – EPS-D (EUR) 0.54 0.76

PARENT	COMPANY	 	 	 	 GROUP

 
2010

 
2011

   
2010

 
2011

 EUR'000 EUR'000 Note  EUR'000 EUR'000
    STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 32,692 32,185  Profit for the year 24,390 33,956

    Other comprehensive income  
    
  (139) 253   Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations 2,427  428
 
 (139) 253   Other comprehensive income after tax 2,427  428
 
 32,553 32,438  Total comprehensive income  26,817 34,384
 
    Proposed distribution  
 
 17,915 17,573  Dividend  
 
 14,638  14,865  Transferred to retained earnings 
     
 
 32,553 32,438

Income statement and statement of comprehensive income
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€

PARENT	COMPANY	 	 	 	 GROUP

 2010 2011   2010 2011
 

EUR'000 EUR'000 Note  EUR'000 EUR'000
   
  32,692  32,185  Profit for the year 24,390  33,956
 
 (18,612) (17,726) 32 Adjustments 19,324  18,888
 
 (19,116) 35   Changes in working capital (4,119) 844
 
 
 (5,036) 14,494   Cash from operating activities before financial items 39,595  53,688 
 
 612  892   Financial income received 680  599 
 
 (716) (750)  Financial expenses paid (734) (512)
 
 (1,104) (2,923) 13 Income tax paid (11,028) (15,379)
 
 (6,244) 11,713   Net cash from operating activities 28,513  38,396
 
 
 (47) (1,341) 16 Share capital to new subsidiaries –  –
 
 5,926  0 16 Proceeds from capital decrease in subsidiary –  –
 
 1,163  1,197 16 Loan, subsidiaries –  –
 
 (2,712) (2,207) 16 Repayment of loan, subsidiaries –  –
 
 0 98 10 Repayment of loan, associates 0 98
 
 (408) (561) 15 Purchase of intangible fixed assets (415) (561)
 
 (1,796) (1,920) 15 Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,570) (2,398)
 
 11  25  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 71  68 
 
 (78) (54) 17 Purchase of financial assets (129) (105)
 
 1  7 17 Proceeds from sale of financial assets 98 20
 
 29,833  24,272 16 Dividends from subsidiaries –  –
 
 31,893  19,516  Net cash from/used in investment activities (2,945) (2,878)
 
 25,649  31,229  Net cash from operating and investment activities 25,568  35,518
 
 823  0  Sale of employees shares 823  0
 
 706  929  Exercise of options 706  929
 
 (18,255) (17,793)  Dividends paid (18,255) (17,793)
 
 (10,802) (13,180)  Acquisition of treasury shares (10,802) (13,180)
 
 (27,528) (30,044)  Net cash used in financing activities (27,528) (30,044)
 
 (1,879) 1,185   Change in cash and cash equivalents (1,960) 5,474 
 
    Total	cash	flows	for	the	year  
 
 38,362 36,548  Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 44,305 42,689
 
 65 (97)  Foreign exchange adjustment of cash and cash equivalents 344  (14)
 
 36,548 37,636  Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 42,689 48,149
 
      
 
 The Group has credit facilities with banks for EUR 10.0m (2010: EUR 10.0m).   
  

Cash	flow	statement
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PARENT	COMPANY	 	 	 	 GROUP

 2010 2011   2010 2011
 

EUR'000 EUR'000 Note  EUR'000 EUR'000 
   
    ASSETS

    Non-current assets  
 
   15 Intangible assets  
 
 0 0  Goodwill 796  908
 
 1,214 1,049  Acquired software 1,222  1,054
 
 1,214 1,049  Total intangible assets 2,018 1,962
 
   15 Property, plant and equipment  
 
 2,659 2,285  Leasehold improvements 3,867 3,275
 
 1,934 2,416  Technical equipment 2,384 2,882
 
 1,890 1,201  Other equipment, fixtures and fittings 2,528 1,656
 
 6,483 5,902  Total property, plant and equipment 8,779 7,813
 
    Other non-current assets  
 
 7,950 9,313 16 Investments in subsidiaries – –
 
 865 866 10 Investments in associates 1,120 1,214
 
 12,239 11,445 16 Receivables from subsidiaries – –
 
 158 60 10 Receivables from associates 158 60
 
 1,692 1,743 17 Deposits 1,969 2,062
 
 641 791 18 Deferred tax 5,163 3,897
 
 23,545 24,218  Total other non-current assets 8,410 7,233
 
 31,242 31,169  Total non-current assets 19,207 17,008
 
    Current assets  
 
 22,242 27,991 19 Receivables 44,105 47,826
 
 222 912 24 Income tax receivable 3,057 3,326
 
 2,332 1,587  Prepayments 3,953 3,169
 
 36,548 37,636  Cash and cash equivalents 42,689 48,149
 
 61,344 68,126  Total current assets 93,804 102,470

 92,586 99,295  Total assets 113,011 119,478

Balance sheet 31 December 
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PARENT	COMPANY	 	 	 	 GROUP

 2010 2011   2010 2011
 

EUR'000 EUR'000 Note  EUR'000 EUR'000 
 
    LIABILITIES
   20  Equity
 6,179 6,179  Share capital 6,179 6,179
 
 0 0  Exchange adjustment reserve (1,427) (999)
 
 40,491 44,551  Retained earnings 54,853 60,431
 
 17,915 17,573  Proposed dividend 17,915 17,573
 
 64,585 68,303  Total equity 77,520 83,184
 
    
    Liabilities  
 
    Non-current liabilities  
 
 0 0 18 Deferred tax 0 412
 
 1,120 1,230 21, 22 Provisions 2,257 2,563
 
 756 758  Employee bonds 756 758
 
 1,876 1,988  Total non-current liabilities 3,013 3,733
 
    Current liabilities  
 
 307 81  Prepayments from customers 3,216 2,296
 
 25,756 28,889 23 Trade payables and other payables 23,682 27,653
 
 0 0 24 Income tax 5,452 2,415
 
 62 34 21 Provisions 128 197
 
 26,125 29,004  Total current liabilities 32,478 32,561
 
 28,001 30,992  Total liabilities 35,491 36,294
 
 92,586 99,295  Total liabilities and equity 113,011 119,478
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PARENT COMPANY
 

      
   

Equity at 1 January 2010 6,179 32,592 18,212 56,983
Comprehensive income for the year    
Profit for the year 0 32,692 0 32,692

Other comprehensive income    
Foreign currency translation differences from functional currency 0 (139) 0 (139)

Total other comprehensive income 0 (139) 0 (139)

Total comprehensive income for the year 0 32,553 0 32,553

Transactions with owners    
Dividend paid to shareholders 0 (35) (18,212) (18,247)
Share-based payment, employee shares 0 2,351 0 2,351
Share-based payment, options 0 2,260 0 2,260
Tax, share-based payment 0 (513) 0 (513)
Purchase of treasury shares 0 (10,802) 0 (10,802)
Proposed dividends to shareholders 0 (17,915) 17,915 0

Equity at 31 December 2010 6,179 40,491  17,915 64,585 
    
Equity at 1 January 2011 6,179 40,491  17,915 64,585 
Comprehensive income for the year    
Profit for the year 0 32,185  0 32,185
 
Other comprehensive income    
Foreign currency translation differences from functional currency 0 253  0 253
 
Total other comprehensive income 0 253  0 253
 
Total comprehensive income for the year 0 32,438 0 32,438

Transactions with owners    
Dividend paid to shareholders 0 64  (17,915) (17,851)
Share-based payment, options 0 2,445 0 2,445
Tax, share-based payment 0 (119) 0 (119)
Purchase of treasury shares 0 (13,195) 0 (13,195)
Proposed dividend to shareholders 0 (17,573) 17,573 0

Equity at 31 December 2011 6,179 44,551 17,573 68,303

Total

Proposed
dividends for

the year

EUR'000

Retained
earnings

Share 
capital

Statement of changes in equity
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GROUP
 

      
   

Equity at 1 January 2010    6,179 (3,854) 55,117 18,212 75,654
 
 Comprehensive income for the year     
 
 Profit for the year    0 0 24,390 0 24,390
 
 Other comprehensive income     
 
 Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations 0 2,427 0 0 2,427
 
 Total other comprehensive income   0 2,427 0 0 2,427
 
 Total comprehensive income for the year 0 2,427 24,390 0 26,817
 
 Transactions with owners     
 
 Dividend paid to shareholders    0 0 (35) (18,212)  (18,247)
 
 Share-based payment, employee shares   0 0 2,351 0 2,351
 
 Share-based payment, options    0 0 2,260 0 2,260
 
 Tax, share-based payment    0 0 (513) 0 (513)
 
 Purchase of treasury shares    0 0 (10,802) 0 (10,802)
 
 Proposed dividend to shareholders   0 0 (17,915) 17,915 0
 
 Equity at 31 December 2010    6,179 (1,427) 54,853 17,915 77,520
 
 Equity at 1 January 2011    6,179 (1,427) 54,853 17,915 77,520
 
 Comprehensive income for the year     
 
 Profit for the year    0 0 33,956 0 33,956
 
 Other comprehensive income     
 
 Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations 0 428 0 0 428
 
 Total other comprehensive income   0 428 0 0 428
 
 Total comprehensive income for the year 0 428 33,956 0 34,384
 
 Transactions with owners     
 
 Dividend paid to shareholders    0 0 64  (17,915) (17,851)
 
 Share-based payment, options    0 0 2,445 0 2,445
 
 Tax, share-based payment    0 0 (119) 0 (119)
 
 Purchase of treasury shares    0 0 (13,195) 0 (13,195)
 
 Proposed dividend to shareholders   0 0 (17,573) 17,573 0
 
 Equity at 31 December 2011    6,179 (999) 60,431 17,573 83,184
 
 
 
 At 31 December 2011, the share capital amounted to DKK 46,000,000 divided into 46,000,000 shares of DKK 1 each  
 
(2010: DKK 46,000,000 divided into 46,000,000 shares of DKK 1). No shares shall confer  any special rights upon any shareholder.   
       
 
 
Dividend is distributed with DKK 30.00 per share of DKK 10 in 2011 (2010: 30.00 per share of DKK 10).    
     
 
          
The Board of Directors intends to recommend at the annual general meeting that dividends of DKK 30.00 per share of DKK 10 is distributed
 
in 2012.         
 
  
 Additional information, note 20.

Total

Proposed
dividends for

the year
Retained
earnings

Exchange
adjustment

reserve
Share 

capital

EUR'000
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GENERAL
SimCorp A/S is a public limited company based 

in Denmark. The annual report for the period 1 

January–31 December 2011 includes the consoli-

dated financial statements of SimCorp A/S and 

its subsidiary companies (the Group) as well as 

financial statements of the parent company.

The annual report of the parent company 

SimCorp A/S and the Group is presented in 

accordance with International Financial Report-

ing Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU and 

Danish disclosure requirements for the annual 

reports of listed companies.

The annual report also complies with the Inter-

national Financial Reporting Standards issued by 

the IASB.

The Board of Directors and the Executive 

Management Board considered and approved 

on 29 February 2012 the annual report for 

2011 of SimCorp A/S. The annual report will be 

presented to shareholders at the annual general 

meeting to be held on 29 March 2012.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The functional currency of the parent company 

SimCorp A/S is DKK.

The annual report is presented in EUR as most 

of the Group’s transactions are in this currency, 

rounded off to the nearest EUR 1,000.

The annual report has been prepared in accor-

dance with the historical cost convention, except 

for the measurement at fair value of derivative 

financial instruments.

The accounting policies described below have 

been applied consistently during the financial 

year and for the comparative figures. For stan-

dards implemented prospectively, the compara-

tive figures are not restated.

NEW	FINANCIAL	REPORTING	STANDARDS
Effective 1 January 2011, SimCorp A/S has 

implemented a number of mandatory accounting 

standards and interpretations which have not had 

any effect on the recognition or measurement of 

the Group’s results, assets, liabilities or equity. 

DESCRIPTION	OF	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements comprise 

SimCorp A/S (the parent company) and subsid-

iaries in which the parent company directly or 

indirectly holds more than 50% of the votes or 

otherwise exercises a controlling influence.

Companies in which the Group holds between 

20% and 50% of the voting rights and/or other-

wise exercises a significant but not a controlling 

influence are considered associates.

The consolidated financial statements have been 

prepared by including the financial statements of 

the parent company and the subsidiaries, which 

have all been prepared in accordance with the 

Group’s accounting policies. On consolidation, 

intra-group income and expenses, shareholdings, 

balances, dividends and realised and unrealised 

gains and losses on intra-group transactions are 

eliminated.

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions with 

associates are eliminated in proportion to the 

Group’s share in the associate. Unrealised losses 

are eliminated in the same way as unrealised 

gains, to the extent there is no impairment. 

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Newly acquired or newly established enterprises 

are recognised in the consolidated financial 

statements from the date of acquisition. Com-

panies divested or wound up are consolidated in 

the income statement until they are divested or 

wound up.

The takeover method is applied on acquisitions 

if the parent company gains control of the 

company acquired. Identifiable assets, liabilities 

and contingent liabilities in companies acquired 

are measured at the fair value at the date of 

acquisition. Identifiable intangible assets are 

recognised if they can be separated or arise from 

a contractual right. Deferred tax is recognised on 

revaluations.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the 

fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and 

contingent liabilities acquired is recognised as 

goodwill under intangible assets. Goodwill is not 

amortised, but is tested for impairment at least 

once a year.

FOREIGN	CURRENCY	TRANSLATION
For each of the reporting entities in the Group, a 

functional currency is determined. The functional 

currency is the currency in the primary economic 

environment in which the individual reporting 

entity operates. Transactions in currencies other 

than the functional currency are transactions 

denominated in foreign currencies.

On initial recognition, transactions denomi-

nated in foreign currencies are translated into 

the functional currency at the exchange rate 

ruling at the transaction date. The average rate 

of exchange for the month is used to reflect 

the transaction date’s exchange rate. Exchange 

differences arising between the exchange rate 

at the transaction date and the exchange rate 

at the date of actual payment are recognised in 

the income statement under financial income or 

financial expenses.

Receivables, payables and other monetary items 

denominated in foreign currencies are translated 

to the functional currency at the exchange rates 

ruling at the balance sheet date. The difference 

between the exchange rate ruling at the balance 

sheet date and the exchange rate ruling at the 

date when the receivable or payable arose or the 

exchange rate applied in the most recent annual 

report is recognised in the income statement 

under financial income and financial expenses.

Foreign exchange adjustment of intra-group 

accounts between SimCorp A/S and subsidiaries 

that are considered as part of the net investment 

in the enterprise in question are recognised 

directly in equity in the consolidated financial 

statements. Corresponding foreign exchange 

adjustments are recognised in the income state-

ment in SimCorp A/S’ financial statements. 

On consolidation of foreign subsidiaries and  

associates with functional currencies differing 

from SimCorp A/S’ presentation currency, the in-

come statements are translated at the exchange 

rates ruling at the transaction date and the bal-

ance sheets are translated at the exchange rates 

ruling at the balance sheet date. The average 

exchange rate for each individual month is used 

as the transaction date exchange rate. Exchange 

differences arising on the translation of foreign 

subsidiaries’ opening equity at the exchange 

rates ruling at the balance sheet date and on  

the translation of the income statements from 

the exchange rates ruling at the transac-

tion date to the exchange rates ruling at the 

balance sheet date are taken directly to other 

comprehensive income in a separate exchange 

adjustment under equity.

Settlement of intra-group balances considered 

part of the net investment are not per se consid-

ered a partial divestment of a subsidiary.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are initially re-

cognised in the statement of financial position at 

fair value on the trade date and are subsequently 

measured at fair value through profit or loss in 

financial income or financial expenses. Attribut-

able transaction costs are recognised in the 

income statement.

 

INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue
Revenue from sales of standard software licences 

is recognised at the time of delivery provided the 

delivery of standard software does not depend 

on acceptance of its functionality. If there is a 

requirement for customer acceptance of func-

Note

1
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tionality, the licence revenue is recognised at the 

time of acceptance.

The total contract sum is allocated to the 

separate components of those standard software 

contracts which comprise several components. 

The individual allocations are recognised accord-

ing to the principles described above.

Lease revenue under an operating lease is recog-

nised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Professional service fees are recognised as and 

when the work is performed. Revenue from 

maintenance agreements is recognised on a 

straight-line basis over the contract period.

Other revenue, such as revenue from training 

course activities, is recognised in the income 

statement when the products and services  

have been delivered.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales comprises costs incurred to achieve 

the year’s revenue, including costs of delivering 

and implementing systems, training courses 

and support. Cost of sales primarily comprises 

salaries, share-based payments, other staff-

related costs, depreciation and amortisation, 

and indirect costs such as rent and technological 

infrastructure.

Research and development costs
Research and development costs comprise 

salaries, share-based payments, depreciation and 

amortisation, and other costs directly or indirectly 

attributable to the Group’s research and develop-

ment activities.

Research and development costs are expensed in 

the year in which they are incurred, when they 

do not qualify for capitalisation, see the section 

‘Capitalisation of software development costs’.

Sales and distribution costs
Sales and distribution costs primarily comprise 

salaries, share-based payments and other sales 

staff-related costs, travel and meeting expenses, 

marketing expenses, depreciation and amortisa-

tion, and indirect costs such as rent and techno-

logical infrastructure.

Administrative	expenses
Administrative expenses comprise expenses 

related to management, administrative staff, 

office costs, depreciation, amortisation and 

indirect costs such as rent and technological 

infrastructure.

Other operating income
Other operating income comprises income of a 

secondary nature relative to the activities of the 

Group, including gains on the sale of intangible 

assets and property, plant and equipment, rental 

income, and for the parent company, invoicing 

to subsidiaries of costs incurred.

Other	operating	expenses
Other operating expenses comprise expenses of 

a secondary nature relative to the activities of the 

Group, including losses on the sale of intangible 

assets and property, plant and equipment.

Share	of	profit	after	tax	in	associates
The proportionate share of the profit or loss 

of associates after tax and elimination of the 

proportionate share of intra-group gains or 

losses is recognised in the consolidated income 

statement.

Financial	income	and	expenses
Financial income and expenses include interest 

income and expenses and realised and unrealised 

capital gains and losses on securities and realised 

and unrealised exchange gains and losses on 

foreign currency, amortisation of financial assets 

and liabilities as well as surcharges and refunds 

under the Danish tax prepayment scheme and 

changes related to the fair values of derivative 

financial instruments. Dividends on investments 

in subsidiaries and associates are recognised in 

the parent company’s income statement in the 

financial year in which the dividend is declared. 

Tax	on	profit	for	the	year
The tax charge on taxable income for the year is 

recognised in the income statement, the year’s 

change in deferred tax and any changes in prior-

year taxable income is recognised in profit or loss 

for the year, in other comprehensive income or 

directly in equity for the part relating to charges 

recognised directly in equity.

BALANCE SHEET

Intangible assets

Goodwill
On initial recognition, goodwill is recognised in 

the balance sheet at cost as described in ‘Busi-

ness combinations’. Subsequently, goodwill is 

measured at cost less accumulated impairment. 

Goodwill is not amortised.

The carrying amount of goodwill is tested for 

impairment at least annually. Any impairment 

losses are recognised directly in the profit for  

the year and are not subsequently reversed.

Intangible assets with limited  
economic lives
Intangible assets with limited economic lives are 

measured at cost less accumulated amortisation 

and impairment losses. Intangible assets include 

proprietary and acquired software. Amortisa-

tion is provided on a straight-line basis over the 

estimated useful lives of the assets, which are 

as follows: 

Software up to  5 years

Capitalisation of software development 
costs

Proprietary software for resale
Costs of development projects for software for 

resale are recognised as intangible assets where 

they are clearly defined and identifiable, where 

there are sufficient resources to implement the 

project, and where it is certain that identifiable 

future income or cost reductions will cover the 

development and future operating costs.

Capitalised development costs comprise salaries 

plus overheads. Overheads comprise staff costs, 

rent, IT and communications. 

Development costs comprise costs attributable 

to the Group’s development functions, including 

salaries, wages and other staff costs, amortisa-

tion and other indirect costs. To the extent that 

the development costs are not capitalised, they 

are recognised under Research and development 

costs in the income statement. 

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at 

acquisition cost or historical cost less accumulat-

ed depreciation and impairment. Property, plant 

and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line 

basis over the estimated useful lives of the as-

sets, which are as follows:

Leasehold improvements up to  10 years

Technical equipment   3 years

Other fixtures and fittings, tools   5 years 

and equipment

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over 

the expected remaining term of the lease up to a 

maximum of 10 years.

The basis of depreciation is calculated with due 

consideration to scrap values and any prior 

impairment write downs. Scrap value is deter-

mined at the date of acquisition and reassessed 

annually. Where the scrap value exceeds the 

carrying amount of the asset, the asset ceases to 

be depreciated.

Any change in depreciation period or scrap 

value is recognised as a change in accounting 

estimate.

Depreciation is recognised in the income 

statement as production costs, research and 

development costs, sales and distribution costs 

or administrative expenses.

Note

1
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Impairment of non-current assets
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually by 

comparing the carrying values of the assets with 

their recoverable amounts. The carrying values of 

other non-current assets are reviewed annually 

for impairment, except for tax assets, to assess 

if there is an indication of depreciation beyond 

what is expressed through normal depreciation. 

If the carrying amount of a non-current asset 

exceeds its recoverable amount, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down to the 

recoverable amount.

Investments in associates in the consoli-
dated financial statements
Investments in associates are recognised accord-

ing to the equity method and measured in the 

balance sheet at the proportionate share of the 

enterprises’ net asset values calculated in accor-

dance with the Group’s accounting policies less 

or plus the proportionate share of any unrealised 

intra-group gains and losses and plus the carry-

ing amount of goodwill.

Associates with a negative equity value are 

measured at nil. A provision is made if SimCorp 

A/S has a legal obligation to cover the negative 

balance of any associate.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates 
in the parent company’s financial 
statements
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are 

measured at cost in the parent company’s finan-

cial statements. Where the recoverable amount is 

lower than cost, the investment is written down 

to the lower value.

Contracts in progress
Contracts in progress relating to professional ser-

vices are measured at the estimated sales value 

of the proportion of the contract completed at 

the balance sheet date.

Amounts invoiced on account in excess of work 

completed are included in prepayments under 

current liabilities.

Receivables
Receivables are measured at amortised cost. If 

there is objective evidence of impairment of a 

receivable, it is written down. Write-downs are 

made individually. The write-down is recognised 

in the income statement under administrative 

expenses.

EQUITY

Dividend
Dividends are recognised as a liability when 

declared by the shareholders in general meeting. 

Dividends recommended to be paid for the year 

are stated as a separate line under equity.

Treasury shares
Treasury shares acquired by the parent company 

or subsidiaries are recognised at cost directly in 

equity under retained earnings. Gains on the 

sale of treasury shares are recognised directly in 

equity. Dividends in respect of treasury shares 

are recognised in equity under retained earnings. 

Proceeds from the sale of treasury shares or the 

issue of shares in SimCorp A/S in connection 

with the exercise of options or employee shares 

are taken directly to equity.

Exchange	adjustment	reserve
The exchange adjustment reserve in the con-

solidated financial statements comprises foreign 

exchange differences arising on the translation of 

the financial statements of enterprises from their 

functional currencies to the SimCorp Group’s 

presentation currency (EUR).

On full or partial realisation of a net investment, 

foreign exchange adjustments are recognised in 

the income statement.

INCENTIVE SCHEMES 
The Board of Directors, the Executive Manage-

ment Board and the employees are covered 

by one or more incentive schemes. The most 

important terms and conditions of the schemes 

are disclosed in notes 6 and 7 to the financial 

statements.

Stock options 
For equity-settled stock options, the fair value is 

measured at the grant date and recognised in 

the income statement under staff costs over the 

vesting period. The counter entry is recognised 

directly in equity.

On initial recognition of stock options, the num-

ber of options expected to vest is estimated. Sub-

sequently, adjustment is made only for changes in 

the number of employees estimated to become 

entitled to options. Regulations are recognised in 

the income statement under staff costs. 

The fair value is measured using the Black-

Scholes model.

Employee shares
When the SimCorp Group’s employees are 

given the opportunity to acquire or subscribe 

for shares at a price below the market price, 

the discount is recognised as an expense in staff 

costs. The counter entry is recognised directly in 

equity. The discount is calculated at the acquisi-

tion date as the difference between fair value 

and the acquisition price of the shares acquired 

or subscribed.

Restricted Stock units
For restricted stock units, fair value is measured 

at the grant dates and recognised in the income 

statement as staff costs over the vesting period. 

The counter entry is recognised directly in equity. 

On initial recognition of restricted stock units, 

the number of restricted stock units expected to 

vest is estimated. Subsequently, adjustment is 

made only for changes in the number of employ-

ees estimated to become entitled to restricted 

stock units. The number of the restricted units 

are adjusted when conditions are only partly met 

and the adjustment is recognised in the income 

statement as staff costs. 

Pension obligations
The Group has entered into pension and similar 

agreements with most employees.

Obligations relating to defined contribution 

plans are recognised in the income statement 

in the period in which they are earned, and 

payments due are recognised in the balance 

sheet under other payables. For defined benefit 

plans, annual actuarial calculations are made of 

the net present value of future benefits to be 

paid under the plan. The net present value is 

calculated based on assumptions of the future 

developments of salary, interest, inflation and 

mortality rates. 

The net present value is only calculated for 

those benefits earned to date by employees. 

The present value of future pension payments is 

estimated actuarially and shown net of the fair 

value of any plan assets in the balance sheet as 

pension obligations.

Differences between expected pension assets 

and liabilities and their realised values are termed 

actuarial gains and losses. If the accumulated 

actuarial gains or losses at the beginning of a 

financial year exceed the higher numerical value 

of 10% of pension liabilities or 10% of the fair 

value of pension assets, the excess amount is 

recognised in the income statement over the 

expected average working lives of the covered 

employees in the company. Actuarial gains and 

losses that do not exceed the above limits are 

not recognised in the income statement or the 

balance sheet, but are disclosed in note 22 to 

the financial statements.

Any change in benefits earned to date are 

actuarially calculated and expensed immedi-

ately when the employees have already earned 

the right to the changed benefits. Otherwise, 

they are recognised in the income statement 

over the period during which the employees 

earn the right to the benefits. Any pension plan 

net asset is recognised only to the extent that 

it offsets unrecognised actuarial losses, will be 

received as future repayments from the plan, 

or will result in reductions to future payments 

to the plan.

Note

1
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Corporation	tax	and	deferred	tax
Estimated tax payable or receivable on the 

taxable income for the year is recognised in the 

balance sheet as current tax liabilities and re-

ceivables adjusted for tax on prior years’ taxable 

income and payments on account.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability 

method on all temporary differences between 

the accounting value and the tax value of assets 

and liabilities, excluding temporary differences 

relating to goodwill which is not amortisable for 

tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets, including the tax value of tax 

losses carried forward, are recognised in other 

non-current assets and measured at the amount 

at which they are expected to be realised, either 

by setting off tax on future earnings or by setting 

off deferred tax liabilities within the same legal 

entity.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rules 

and rates in the respective countries that will 

apply under the legislation in force on the bal-

ance sheet date when the deferred tax asset is 

expected to crystallise as current tax. Changes in 

deferred tax resulting from changes in tax rates 

are recognised in the income statement.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Group has 

a legal or actual obligation as a result of a past 

event and it is probable that an outflow of the 

Group’s resources will be required to settle the 

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made 

of the amount of the obligation.

Obligations to re-establish and refurbish leased 

offices when the premises are vacated are 

recognised at the estimated costs at the time of 

vacation.

In measuring provisions, the costs estimated 

to settle the liability are discounted if such 

discounting would have a material effect on the 

measurement of the liability. A pre-tax discount 

rate is used that reflects the level of interest rates 

and risks associated with the liability. Changes 

in the discounting element during the year are 

recognised as financial expenses. 

Liabilities
Other liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Discontinued operations and assets held 
for sale
Where the sale is expected to be effected within 

one year, assets held for sale are presented sepa-

rately in the balance sheet in the items assets 

held for sale and liabilities regarding assets held 

for sale, respectively. 

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower 

of carrying amount at the date when the assets 

were classified as held for sale and fair value 

less costs to sell. Depreciation and amortisation 

of assets held for sale cease at the date when 

the assets are classified as held for sale. Certain 

assets held for sale, including deferred tax assets 

and financial assets, are measured according to 

the usual principles for such assets.

Profit after tax of discontinued operations is 

presented in a separate line item in the income 

statement. Value adjustments and gains or losses 

after tax resulting from the discontinuance of 

operations are recognised in the same separate 

line item in the income statement. Value adjust-

ments, gains and losses are disclosed in the 

financial statements.

Cash flows from operating, investing and financ-

ing activities for discontinued operations are 

presented in one line in the cash flow statements 

in the financial statements.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The cash flow statement shows the parent com-

pany’s and the Group’s cash flows divided into 

operating, investing and financing activities as 

well as cash and cash equivalents at the begin-

ning and end of the year. 

Cash flows from operating activities are 

calculated as the profit for the year before tax 

adjusted for non-cash operating items, changes 

in working capital, interest received and paid and 

income taxes paid.

Cash flows from investing activities comprise 

receipts and payments in connection with 

acquisitions and disposals of companies and 

operations, intangible assets and property, plant 

and equipment as well as other non-current  

assets and liabilities.

Cash flows from financing activities comprise 

changes in share capital and related costs, re-

ceipts from or repayments of long-term liabilities, 

purchase or sale of bonds and treasury shares 

and distributions of dividends to shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and 

bank deposits.

SEGMENT	INFORMATION
The Group develops and sells standard software 

and related services through a number of market 

units. Segment reporting reflects development 

activities and the market units used in the 

internal management reporting for performance 

management and resource allocation. Information 

on these is disclosed in note 3 to the financial 

statements.

Note

1

To CONTENTS



Notes    Financial statements    49

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES  

AND ASSESSMENTS   

 

Estimation uncertainty  

The calculation of carrying amounts of certain 

assets and liabilities requires an estimate of 

how future events will affect the value of such 

assets and liabilities on the balance sheet date. 

Estimations of significance to the financial 

statement are made in recognition of, inter 

alia, revenue, sales value of contracts in 

progress relating to professional services, 

receivables and deferred tax.  

     

The estimates applied are based on assump-

tions which management believes to be 

reasonable, but which are inherently uncertain 

and unpredictable. Such assumptions may 

be incomplete or inaccurate, and unexpected 

events or circumstances may arise. In addition, 

the company is subject to risks and uncertain-

ties encountered in the ordinary course of busi-

ness that may cause actual results to deviate 

from the estimates. Risk factors specific to the 

SimCorp Group are described in the manage-

ment report on page 23 and the financial risks 

in note 29.    

   

The notes to the financial statements contain 

information about the assumptions and 

estimation of uncertainty at the balance sheet 

date involving the risk of changes that could 

lead to an adjustment of the carrying amount 

of assets or liabilities within the upcoming 

financial year.   

    

Accounting policies  

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, in 

addition to estimations, management makes 

other judgments that may impact the amounts 

recognised in the annual accounts.  

     

Such judgments include, inter alia, the timing 

of income recognition and whether leases 

should be treated as operating or finance 

leases.    

Note

2

2011

Segment revenue 49,806 64,534 17,365 28,897 12,726 20,258 1,205 24 194,815 0 194,815

Revenue between segments 4,876 4,605 1,182 3,792 1,598 352 64,382 189 80,976 (80,976) 0

Total segment revenue 54,682 69,139 18,547 32,689 14,324 20,610 65,587 213 275,791 (80,976) 194,815 
     
Segment profit from 14,614 19,023 912 3,850 393 3,712 21,629 (17,793) 46,340 0 46,340

operations (EBIT)           

Total assets 15,250 21,000 4,955 21,272 7,193 9,001 3,065 5,820 87,556 31,922 119,478

2010           

Segment revenue 42,888 63,332 15,456 29,876 13,775 18,746 1,290 12 185,375 0 185,375

Revenue between segments 5,905 4,009 1,331 2,663 2,098 94 60,966 436 77,502 (77,502) 0

Total segment revenue 48,793 67,341 16,787 32,539 15,873 18,840 62,256 448 262,877 (77,502) 185,375

Segment profit from 12,429 16,059 (2,094) 5,127 214  2,270 17,728 (16,534) 35,199 0 35,199

operations (EBIT)           

Total assets 13,595 20,233 4,647 20,470 6,966 7,976 3,334 3,860 81,081 31,930 113,011

           

Revenue disclosures are based on SimCorp’s market units and development activities while asset allocation is based on the physical location of the assets.

Unallocated assets relate to non-current headquarter assets, cash, taxes and investments in associates.     
      

Segment information is prepared in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

Transactions between segments are made on market terms.

Nordic 

region
GROUP

Central

Europe

UK and

Ireland

Benelux

and

 France

Asia

and Au-

stralia

North

America

Software

develop-

ment

Corpo-

rate

functions Total

Elimina-

tion/not

allocated Group

SEGMENT DATA

     
   
EUR'000 2010 2011 
   
Reconciliation	of	the	profit	before	tax
Total segment profit reported (EBIT) 35,199  46,340

Share of profit after tax in associates 48  107

Financial income   1,983  2,610

Financial expenses   3,993  1,884

Profit for the period before tax, see income statement 33,237  47,173

EUR'000

Note

3
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

  2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

4    REVENUE BY TYPE OF SERVICE

    
  25,432 23,215 Licences 49,148 47,207
 
  7,984 10,357 Professional services 55,312 57,003
 
  43,132 48,736 Maintenance 77,739 88,581
 
  167 85 Training activities etc. 3,176 2,024
 
  
  76,715 82,393 Total 185,375 194,815
   

The SimCorp Group has no customers with revenue of more than 4% (2010: 5%) of total revenue.

   GROUP
       2010 2010  2011 2011
      
 EUR'000 Allocation EUR'000 Allocation

Revenue allocation by country (significant)
Germany 41,597 22% 42,522  22%

Denmark 20,710 11% 24,574  13%

Holland 17,063 9% 17,574  9%

Switzerland 11,667 6% 13,881  7%

USA 8,154 4% 13,393  7%

England 8,626 5% 11,660  6%

Sweden 8,776 5% 11,234  6%

Norway 9,042 5% 9,711  5%

Canada 10,908 6% 8,744  4%

France 8,584 5% 8,395  4%
 

Non-current assets allocation by country (significant)   

Denmark 7,697 64% 6,951 63%

England 2,076 17% 2,082 19%

SEGMENT DATA

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

  2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

5    FUTURE REVENUE, OPERATING LEASES

    
    Rental of software  
 
  574 435 Future revenue within 1 year 1,307 1,055

  698 383 Future revenue within 2-5 years 1,816 1,088
      
 
  1,272 818 Total operating leases 3,123 2,143

Revenue from rental of software is based on agreements giving customers the right to use SimCorp's standard software over a limited period of time. The term 

of these agreements is typically five years, however may be up to eight years. Clients subsequently have an option to extend the lease period.
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note 2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

6    PERSONNEL EXPENSES

    Staff costs:
 
  43,807 45,856 Wages and salaries 87,909 91,377
 
  0 0 Defined contribution plans 1,072 1,235 
 
  0 0 Defined benefit plans 998 396 
 
  3,194 1,565 Share-based payment 3,194 1,565 
 
  139 134 Social security costs 6,120 6,532 
     
 
  47,140 47,555 Total	personnel	expenses 99,293 101,105 
 
     
  472 459 Average number of employees 1,077 1,048 
 
     
    Remuneration to parent company management:  
    
    Board of Directors:  
 
  215 215 Remuneration 215 215 
 
  25 18 Other benefits 25 18 
 
  138 109 Share-based payment 138 109 
 
     
  378 342 Total remuneration to the Board of Directors 378 342 
 

    Remuneration to members of the Executive Management Board:  
 
    Peter L. Ravn:  
 
  407 415 Salary 407 415 
 
  27 45 Other benefits (2011: Including anniversary bonus) 27 45 
 
  16 65 Performance-related bonus 16 65 
 
  159 137 Share-based payment 159 137 
     
 
  609 662 Total 609 662 

 
    Torben Munch:  
 
  338 344 Salary 338 344 
 
  24 18 Other benefits 24 18 
 
  13 54 Performance-related bonus 13 54 
 
  152 137 Share-based payment 152 137 
 
 
  527 553 Total 527 553 
 
   
    Georg Hetrodt:  
 
  302 309 Salary 302 309 
 
  48 18 Other benefits 48 18 
 
  13 49 Performance-related bonus 13 49 
 
  100 102 Share-based payment 100 102 
 
     
  463 478 Total 463 478 
 
 
    Thomas Johansen: 2011 for the period 1 April to 31 December  
 
   200 Salary  200 
 
   13 Other benefits  13 
 
   33 Performance-related bonus  33 
 
   40 Share-based payment  40 
 
     
   286 Total  286 
 
  
  Shares Shares  Shares Shares
 
  of DKK 10 of DKK 10 Restricted stock units awarded to parent company management: of DKK 10 of DKK 10
  86 75 Board of Directors* 86 75 
 
  4,524 6,012 Executive Management Board 4,524 6,012 

 
  4,610 6,087 Total restricted stocks awarded to parent company management 4,610 6,087 
 
     
    Employee shares acquired by parent company management:  
 
  120 0 Board of Directors* 120 0 
 
  1,295 0 Executive Management Board 1,295 0 
 

  1,415 0 Total number of employee shares acquired by parent company management 1,415 0 
 
     
    Shares alloted to parent company management:  
 
  944 887 Board of Directors** 944 887

  944 887 Total number of shares alloted to parent company management 944 887

 * Restricted stocks and employee shares acquired in capacity as employees of SimCorp A/S. ** Alloted as part of the remuneration of the Board of Directors.
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SHARE-BASED REMUNERATION

SimCorp’s Board of Directors has adopted an overall policy for remuneration and incentive programmes and the policy has been adopted by the annual 

general assembly. The overall objective being to promote awareness of profitable growth and the Group’s long-term goals. The Board of Directors wishes 

the company to offer employee shares. The Board of Directors also believes that it is a natural decision for a company such as SimCorp to offer shares to 

its Board members as a minor part of their overall remuneration. Shares are granted to members of the Board of Directors subject to approval by the com-

pany in general meeting. The calculated value of such grants cannot exceed one third of the total Board remuneration at the time of grant.  

       

Since 2000, the company has operated incentive programmes for members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and the employees. 

Such incentive programme have from 2003 to 2009 comprised stock options and have from 2010 been replaced by a restricted stock unit programme. In 

addition, employee shares have been granted or shares have been sold to the employees. From 2008 the members of the Board of Directors have received 

shares as a part of their remuneration.          

         

Stock options granted in 2006         
A total of 37,200 options at DKK 10 were granted to members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and the employees in May 

2006. When issued, the stock options had terms of between one and three years. The subscription price was fixed subject to the term of the stock options 

at a minimum of 5, 10 or 15%, respectively, above the market price at the time of issue for options with terms of 1, 2 and 3 years, respectively. This 

programme was fully charged in previous years. The remaining part of this programme was cancelled in 2010.     

     

Stock options granted in 2007         
A total of 68,000 options at DKK 10 were granted to members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management Board and the employees in May 

2007. When issued, the stock options had terms of between one and five years. The subscription price was fixed subject to the term of the stock options 

at a minimum of 5, 10 or 15%, respevtively, above the market price at the same time of issue for options with minimum terms of 1, 2 and 3 years, re-

spectively. This programme was fully charged in previous years (2010: EUR 128 thousand).       

   

Stock options granted in 2008         

A total of 71,180 options at DKK 10 were granted to members of the Executive Management Board and the employees in April 2008 and additional 800 

in July 2008 to an employee. When issued, the stock options had terms of between one and five years. The subscription price was fixed subject to the 

term of the stock options at a minimum of 5, 10 or 15%, respevtively, above the market price at the same time of issue for options with minimum terms 

of 1, 2 and 3 years, respectively. EUR 159 thousand (2010: EUR 373 thousand) was charged to the income statement in respect of this programme in the 

2011 financial year.          

         

Stock options granted in 2009         

A total of 81,399 options at DKK 10 were granted to members of the Executive Management Board and the employees in April 2009. When issued, the 

stock options had terms of between one and five years. The subscription price was fixed subject to the term of the stock options at a minimum of 5, 10 

or 15%, respevtively, above the market price at the same time of issue for options with minimum terms of 1, 2 and 3 years, respectively. EUR 353 thousand 

(2010: EUR 557 thousand) was charged to the income statement in respect of this programme in the 2011 financial year.    

      

Note

7
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Executive	Management	Board	remuneration	policy	for	2011      

The aggregate remuneration of the Executive Management Board consists of a fixed salary and a bonus component subject to the financial results achieved in a 

given financial year, as well as eligibility for the share based incentive programme. The bonus component will generally make up about 45% of the fixed remunera-

tion. The value of the share based incentive programme, defined as the aggregate theoretical value at the time of grant, will represent up to around 55% of the 

fixed salary and the value of the employee shares will make up about 6% of the fixed salary. Each year, the Board of Directors determines the fixed remuneration 

and the size of the performance-related bonus for the Executive Management Board and the specific targets that will trigger a bonus.    

    

Members of the Executive Management Board can terminate their service contracts giving six months’ notice. The company can terminate the service contracts 

giving 12 months’ notice. Termination on the part of the company triggers a severance pay of 6–9 months’ salary subject to the term of employment. In case of very 

material changes to the company’s ownership, the company’s term of notice to members of the Executive Management Board is prolonged for a two-year period 

up to 24 months.       

        

Remuneration policy for the Board of Directors       

The remuneration is composed of a cash remuneration and a number of SimCorp shares. The value of the shares allotted was determined immediately prior to the 

annual general meeting at which the shareholders approved the remuneration and represent one third of the total remuneration. The remuneration is paid on a 

quarterly basis.
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Restricted stock units granted in 2010         
A total of 14,705 restricted stock units at DKK 10 each were granted to members of the Executive Management Board and key employees in April 2010 

and an additional 255 restricted stock units at DKK 10 each were granted in connection with the appointment of three Senior Vice Presidents in second 

half of 2010. The restricted stock units will vest after three years, subject to continuing employeement. Furthermore, the restricted stock units are subject 

to conditions with respect to average annual minimum revenue growth and annual average net operating profit after tax for the financial years 2010–

2012. If the two last conditions are only partial satisfied, the undertaking with respect to the number of shares transferred after three years will be re-

duced, and may possible lapse completely. EUR 475 thousand (2010: EUR 495 thousand) was charged to the income statement in respect of this pro-

gramme in the 2011 financial year.          

         

Restricted stock unit granted in 2011         
A total of 16,598 restricted stock units at DKK 10 each were granted to members of the Executive Management Board and key employees in April 2011 

and an additional 122 restricted stock units at DKK 10 each were granted in connection with the employment of a Senior Vice Presidents in second half 

of 2011. The restricted stock units will vest after three years, subject to continuing employeement. Furthermore, the restricted stock units are subject to 

conditions with respect to average annual minimum revenue growth and annual average net operating profit after tax for the financial years 2011–2013. 

If the two last conditions are only partial satisfied, the undertaking with respect to the number of shares transferred after three years will be reduced, and 

may possible lapse completely. EUR 424 thousand (2010: EUR 495 thousand) was charged to the income statement in respect of this programme in the 

2011 financial year.          

         

Employee shares granted in 2010         
The company sold on 15 March 2010 16,598 treasury shares at DKK 10 each to 528 employees of the parent company and foreign subsidiaries. The price 

was DKK 369 per share, corresponding to 40% of the average market price from 25 February to 1 March 2010. EUR 1.5m was charged to the income 

statement in connection with the programme in the 2010 financial year.        

 

Employee shares granted in 2011         

The conditions for the short-term corporate incentive programme 2010 for granting employee shares in 2011 were not met.    

      

As provided of Danish law, the employee shares are held in restricted accounts until the end of the fifth calendar year after the purchase. Employees  

cannot sell or otherwise dispose of the shares during the period they are subject to selling restrictions.     

    

Shares to Board of Directors in 2010         
In 2010 the company alotted 944 treasury shares of DKK 10 to members of SimCorp's Board of Directors. In the financial year 1 January to 31 December 

2010 EUR 107 thousand was charged to the income statement in respect of this program.      

   

Shares to Board of Directors in 2011         
In 2011 the company alotted 887 treasury shares of DKK 10 to members of SimCorp's Board of Directors. In the financial year 1 January to 31 December 

2011 EUR 109 thousand was charged to the income statement in respect of this program.      

   

         

Total number of stock options issued, 1 January 2010       

Purchase price 1076, exercise period Aug. 07–Aug. 10   200 1,900 1,800 1,400 5,300 0.31 
 
Purchase price 1128, exercise period Aug. 08–Aug. 10   300 2,850 3,600 2,760 9,510 0.31 
 
Purchase price 1179, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 10   500 4,750 6,000 4,600 15,850 0.31 
 
Purchase price 1200, exercise period Aug. 08–Aug. 12   380 1,900 2,560 6,790 11,620 1.31 
 
Purchase price 1258, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 12   570 2,850 3,840 10,160 17,430 1.31 
 
Purchase price 1315, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 12   950 4,750 6,400 16,950 29,050 1.61 
 
Purchase price 1058, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 13   100 2,120 2,926 8,150 13,296 1.81 
 
Purchase price 1108, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 13   150 3,180 4,389 12,225 19,944 2.11 
 
Purchase price 1159, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 13   250 5,300 7,315 20,375 33,240 2.61 
 
Purchase price  574, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 14   100 2,732 4,000 9,346 16,178 2.61 
 
Purchase price  601, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 14   150 4,100 6,000 14,020 24,270 3.11 
 
Purchase price  629, exercise period Aug. 12–Aug. 14   250 6,834 10,000 23,367 40,451 3.62 
 

Total number of stock options issued, 1 January 2010   3,900 43,266 58,830 130,143 236,139 2.17

Avg.

remain-

ing

termTotal

Other

employ-

ees

Senior

manage-

ment

Board of

DirectorsNumber of stock options of DKK 10

Executive

Manage-

ment

Board
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Cancelled in 2010       

Purchase price 1076, exercise period Aug. 07–Aug. 10   (200) (1,900) (1,800) (1,400) (5,300)  
 
Purchase price 1128, exercise period Aug. 08–Aug. 10   (300) (2,850) (3,600) (2,760) (9,510)  
  
Purchase price 1179, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 10   (500) (4,750) (6,000) (4,600) (15,850)  
  
Purchase price 1200, exercise period Aug. 08–Aug. 12   0 0 (160) (100) (260)  
  
Purchase price 1258, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 12   0 0 (240) (150) (390)  
  
Purchase price 1315, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 12   0 0 (400) (250) (650)  
  
Purchase price 1058, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 13   0 0 (226) (300) (526)  
  
Purchase price 1108, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 13   0 0 (339) (450) (789)  
  
Purchase price 1159, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 13   0 0 (565) (750) (1,315)  
  
Purchase price  574, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 14   0 0 (400) (100) (500)  
  
Purchase price  601, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 14   0 0 (600) (150) (750)  
  
Purchase price  629, exercise period Aug. 12–Aug. 14   0 0 (1,000) (250) (1,250)  
  

Total number of stock options cancelled   (1,000) (9,500) (15,330) (11,260) (37,090)

Exercised	in	2010	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 
Purchase price  574, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 14   (100) (400) (1,800) (5,246) (7,546)  
  

Total stock options exercised   (100) (400) (1,800) (5,246) (7,546)  
  

Transferred between categories in 2010        
 
Purchase price 1200, exercise period Aug. 08–Aug. 12   0 0 320  (320) 0  
   
Purchase price 1258, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 12   0 0 480  (480) 0  
  
Purchase price 1315, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 12   0 0 800  (800) 0  
  
Purchase price 1058, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 13   0 0 320  (320) 0  
  
Purchase price 1108, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 13   0 0 480  (480) 0  
  
Purchase price 1159, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 13   0 0 800  (800) 0  
  
Purchase price  574, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 14   0 0 300  (300) 0  
  
Purchase price  601, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 14   0 0 450  (450) 0  
  
Purchase price  629, exercise period Aug. 12–Aug. 14   0 0 750  (750) 0  
  

Total stock options   0 0 4,700  (4,700) 0 

 
Total number of stock options issued, 31 December 2010        
 
Purchase price 1200, exercise period Aug. 08–Aug. 12   380 1,900 2,720 6,370 11,370 0.81 
 
Purchase price 1258, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 12   570 2,850 4,080 9,530 17,030 0.81 
 
Purchase price 1315, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 12   950 4,750 6,800 15,900 28,400 0.81 
 
Purchase price 1058, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 13   100 2,120 3,020 7,530 12,770 1.31 
 
Purchase price 1108, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 13   150 3,180 4,530 11,295 19,155 1.31 
 
Purchase price 1159, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 13   250 5,300 7,550 18,825 31,925 1.63 
 
Purchase price  574, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 14   0 2,332 2,100 3,700 8,132 1.81 
 
Purchase price  601, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 14   150 4,100 5,850 13,420 23,520 2.13 
 
Purchase price  629, exercise period Aug. 12–Aug. 14   250 6,834 9,750 22,367 39,201 2.63 
 

Total number of stock options at 31 December 2010   2,800 33,366 46,400 108,937 191,503 1.61 
 

Cancelled in 2011       

Purchase price 1058, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 13   0 0 0 (100) (100)  
  
Purchase price 1108, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 13   0 0 0 (150) (150)  
  
Purchase price 1159, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 13   0 0 0 (250) (250)  
  
Purchase price  574, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 14   0 0 0 (100) (100)  
  
Purchase price  601, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 14   0 0 0 (150) (150)  
  
Purchase price  629, exercise period Aug. 12–Aug. 14   0 0 (250) (500) (750)  
  

Total number of stock options cancelled   0 0 (250) (1,250) (1,500)  
   

Avg.

remain-

ing

termTotal

Other

employ-

ees

Senior
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ment

Board of

DirectorsNumber of stock options of DKK 10

Executive

Manage-
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Board
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Exercised in 2011        
 
Purchase price  574, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 14    0 0 (800) (860) (1,660)  
  
Purchase price  601, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 14   (150) (600) (1,200) (7,960) (9,910)  
   

Total stock options exercised   (150) (600) (2,000) (8,820) (11,570)  
  

Transferred between categories in 2011        
 
Purchase price 1200, exercise period Aug. 08–Aug. 12   (80) 0 (600) 680 0  
  
Purchase price 1258, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 12   (120) 0 (900) 1,020 0  
  
Purchase price 1315, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 12   (200) 0 (1,000) 1,200 0  
  
Purchase price 1058, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 13   0 0 (400) 400 0  
  
Purchase price 1108, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 13   0 0 (600) 600 0  
  
Purchase price 1159, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 13   0 0 (1,000) 1,000 0  
  
Purchase price  601, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 14   0 0 (600) 600 0  
  
Purchase price  629, exercise period Aug. 12–Aug. 14   0 0 (1,000) 1,000 0  
  

Total stock options   (400) 0 (6,100) 6,500 0  
  

Total number of stock options issued, 31 December 2011        
 
Purchase price 1200, exercise period Aug. 08–Aug. 12   300 1,900 2,120 7,050 11,370 0.31  
 
Purchase price 1258, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 12   450 2,850 3,180 10,550 17,030 0.31  
 
Purchase price 1315, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 12   750 4,750 5,800 17,100 28,400 0.31  
 
Purchase price 1058, exercise period Aug. 09–Aug. 13   100 2,120 2,620 7,830 12,670 0.81  
 
Purchase price 1108, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 13   150 3,180 3,930 11,745 19,005 0.81  
 
Purchase price 1159, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 13   250 5,300 6,550 19,575 31,675 0.81  
 
Purchase price  574, exercise period Aug. 10–Aug. 14   0 2,332 1,300 2,740 6,372 1.31  
 
Purchase price  601, exercise period Aug. 11–Aug. 14   0 3,500 4,050 5,910 13,460 1.31  
 
Purchase price  629, exercise period Aug. 12–Aug. 14   250 6,834 8,500 22,867 38,451 1.63  
 

Total number of stock options at 31 December 2011   2,250 32,766 38,050 105,367 178,433 0.88

The table shows the number of shares and exercise prices.

    

The average market price at the time of exercise was DKK 850 (2010: DKK 851) per share of DKK 10.

Number of stock options of DKK 10

Avg.

remain-

ing

termTotal

Other

employ-

ees

Senior

manage-

ment

Board of

Directors

Executive

Manage-

ment

Board

Number of restricted stock units at DKK 10       

Granted restricted stock units 1 April 2013  86 4,524 4,669 5,681 14,960 1.62 

Cancelled restricted stock unit 1 April 2013  0 0 (371) (86) (457)  

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2013) at 31 December 2010 86 4,524 4,298 5,595 14,503  2.25 
       

Cancelled restricted stock unit 1 April 2013  0 0 (134) (215) (349)  

Reclassified restricted stock unit 1 April 2013  0 0 (742) 742  0  

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2013) at 31 December 2011 86 4,524 3,422 6,122 14,154  1.25 
       

Number of restricted stock units at DKK 10       
Granted restricted stock units 1 April 2014  75 6,012 4,682 5,567 16,336 1.87 

Cancelled restricted stock unit 1 April 2014  0 0 (380) 0 (380)  

Reclassified restricted stock unit 1 April 2014  0 0 (380) 380 0  

Total number of restricted stock units (April 2014) at 31 December 2011 75 6,012 3,922 5,947 15,956  2.25 

       
Total number of restricted stock units at 31 December 2011  161 10,536 7,344 12,069 30,110  1.75 

* Restricted stock units acquired in capacity as employees of SimCorp A/S. 

The table shows the number of restricted stock units and the fair value at the time of grant.     

 

EUR 1.6m (2010: EUR 3.2m) was charged to the income statement in respect of share-based payments in the financial year.

Fair value

at time

of grant

(EURm)

Avg.

remain-

ing

termTotal

Other
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manage-
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ment
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

8    AMORTISATION AND DEPRECIATION

    Amortisation and depreciation for the year is recognised

    in the income statement as follows:  

  478 489 Cost of sales 1,215 1,072
 
  1,898 1,883 Research and development costs 2,466 1,948
 
  223 239 Sales and distribution costs 415 428
 
  610 596 Administrative expenses 627 611
 
    
  3,209 3,207 Total amortisation and depreciation 4,723 4,059
 
    
    Of which amortisation of intangible assets:  
 
  58 41 Cost of sales 59 42
 
  665 612 Research and development costs 1,388 612
 
  30 23 Sales and distribution costs 30 23
 
  74 51 Administrative expenses 75 53
 
    
  827 727 Total amortisation of intangible assets 1,552 730
 
  
9    FEES TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

    Audit fees  

  147 38 PricewaterhouseCoopers/Grant Thornton 480 57
 
  38 130 KPMG  38 308
 
    
  185 168 Total audit fees 518 365
 
    
    Other services with assurance fees  
 
  4 0 PricewaterhouseCoopers/Grant Thornton 14 0
 
  0 0 KPMG  0 4
 
    
  4 0 Total other services with assurance fees 14 4
 

    Tax	and	VAT	advice	fees  
 
  17 9 PricewaterhouseCoopers/Grant Thornton 54 12
 
  0 87 KPMG  0 99
    
 
  17 96 Total	Tax	and	VAT	advice	fees 54 111
    
 
    Other services fees  
 
  13 20 PricewaterhouseCoopers/Grant Thornton 46 24
 
  0 68 KPMG  0 82

 
  13 88 Total other fees 46 106
 
 
10    INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES  

 
  865 865 Cost at 1 January 865 865

  0 1 Foreign exchange adjustment 0 1 

  865 866 Cost at 31 December 865 866
       
     
  0 0 Adjustments at 1 January 204 255

  0 0 Foreign exchange adjustment 10  (6)

  0 0 Share of profit for the year 48 107

  0 0 Dilution of ownership (7) (8)

  0 0 Adjustments at 31 December 255 348

  865 866 Carrying amount at 31 December 1,120 1,214
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Name

2010
Dyalog Ltd. UK 23.5% 1,926 195 2,314 884  34

Equipos Ltd. UK 20.0% 3,174 111 1,050 604  14
        
 
       1,120 48

2011
Dyalog Ltd. UK 23.3% 2,128 195 2,291 606  57

Equipos Ltd. UK 20.0% 4,769 198 1,823 1,049  50
        
 
       1,214 107

Profit for

the yearEquityLiabilities

Total

assets

Profit for

the period

Country of

incorporation Revenue

Ownership

interest

EUR'000

Share attributable to the

SimCorp Group

Investments in associates are measured in the consolidated balance sheet according to the equity method. Investments in associates are measured at cost 

or recoverable amount in the parent company’s balance sheet.       

 

The dilution of ownership relates to Dyalog Ltd. which issued employee shares in 2011 and 2010.

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

  2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

    RECEIVABLES FROM ASSOCIATES   
     
       
  150 158 Cost at 1 January 150 158 
 
  8 0 Foreign exchange adjustment 8 0

  0 (98) Disposals 0 (98)

  158 60 Cost at 31 December 158 60

 
  158 60 Carrying amount at 31 December 158 60

 

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note 2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

11    FINANCIAL INCOME

  29,833 24,272 Dividend from subsidiaries –  – 
 
  236 367 Interest income, subsidiaries –  – 
 
  365 598 Interest income, cash etc. 668 672
 
  1 1 Interest income, associates 1 1
 
  0 1,339 Fair value adjustments, derivates 0 1,339
 
  1,556 590 Foreign exchange adjustments 1,314 598
    
 
  31,991 27,167 Total financial income 1,983 2,610
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note 2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

13    TAX

    Tax for the period:

  1,230 1,967 Tax for the period 8,847 13,217
 
  492 122 Tax on equity  492 122

 
  1,722 2,089 Total tax 9,339 13,339
 
   
    Tax on profit for the year breaks down as follows:  
 
  1,868 2,826 Current tax 11,227 12,152
 
  (566) (149) Deferred tax (1,821) 994
 
  (72) (710) Prior-year adjustment (556) 38
 
  0 0 Adjustment of tax rate (3) 33

 
  1,230 1,967 Total	tax	on	profit	for	the	year 8,847 13,217
     
 
  1,104 2,923 Tax	paid	during	the	year 11,028 15,379

 
    Tax on profit for the year breaks down as follows:  
 
  8,475 8,538 Tax calculated on the year's pre-tax profit, 25%  8,348 11,793
 
  0 0 Difference in tax in subsidiaries relative to 25%  506 754
 
  0 0 Change in tax rate (3) 33
 
  (7,454) (6,074) Dividend and value adjustment, subsidiaries – –
 
    Tax effect:  
 
  (20) (44) Non-taxable income (178) (159)
 
  628 97  Non-deductable expenses 944 323
 
  –  – Share of profit after tax in associates 25 36
 
  (399) (550) Other, including prior-year adjustments (795) 437
     
 
  1,230 1,967 Total	tax	on	profit	for	the	year 8,847 13,217

    
  4% 6% Effective	tax	rate 27% 28%

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note 2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

12    FINANCIAL EXPENSES

   
  323 391 Interest expenses, subsidiaries –  – 
 
  0 0 Loss, dilution of ownership in associates 7 8
 
  36 38 Interest expenses, financial assets carried at amortised cost 57 63
 
  394 359 Other financial expenses 734 512
 
  4,395 1,034 Foreign exchange adjustments 3,195 1,301
 
    
  5,148 1,822 Total	financial	expenses 3,993 1,884
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     GROUP

Note     2010 2011
 
14  EARNINGS PER SHARE

 Profit for the year (EUR´000)  24,390 33,956 
  

Average number of shares at DKK 1  46,000,000 46,000,000

Average number of treasury shares at DKK 1 (1,001,075) (1,892,921)

Average number of shares at DKK 1 in circulation 44,998,925 44,107,079

Average dilutive impact of outstanding stock options at DKK 1 244,910 174,402

Average dilutive impact of outstanding restricted stock units at DKK 1 108,945 236,884

Average number of diluted shares at DKK 1 in circulation 45,352,780 44,518,365

   
Basic earnings per share at DKK 1 – EPS (EUR)  0.54 0.77

Diluted earnings per share at DKK 1 – EPS-D (EUR)  0.54 0.76

The dilutive effect of 120,150 stock options of DKK 10 each, equivalent to 1,201,500 shares of DKK 1 each (2010: 120,650 stock options of DKK 10 each, 

equivalent to 1,206,500 shares of DKK 1 each) that are out-of-the-money was not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share. Likewise, the 

dilutive effect of 3,006 restricted stock units of DKK 10 each, equivalent to 30,060 shares of DKK 1 each, was not included as the conditions stipulated 

in note 7 are only expected to be partly met. They could potentially dilute earnings per share in the future. See also the Management report concerning 

share-based remuneration on page 33.   

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

PARENT COMPANY

Cost at 1 January 2010  6,074 6,074 3,630 3,309 3,348 10,287

Foreign exchange adjustment  (10) (10) (7) (5) (6) (18)

Additions  408 408 76 1,705 15 1,796

Disposals  (319) (319) 0 (467) 0 (467)

Cost at 31 December 2010  6,153 6,153 3,699 4,542 3,357 11,598

       
Depreciation at 1 January 2010  4,440 4,440 590 1,819 786 3,195

Foreign exchange adjustment  (9) (9) (1) (4) (1) (6)

Amortisation  827 827 451 1,249 682 2,382

Disposals  (319) (319) 0 (456) 0 (456)

Amortisation at 31 December 2010  4,939 4,939 1,040 2,608 1,467 5,115

       
Carrying amount at 31 December 2010  1,214 1,214 2,659 1,934 1,890 6,483

Cost at 1 January 2011  6,153 6,153 3,699 4,542 3,357 11,598

Foreign exchange adjustment  17 17  10 12 9 31 

Additions  561 561 0 1,905 15 1,920

Disposals  0 0 0 (388) (52) (440)

Cost at 31 December 2011  6,731 6,731 3,709 6,071 3,329 13,109

       
Depreciation at 1 January 2011  4,939 4,939 1,040 2,608 1,467 5,115

Foreign exchange adjustment  16 16 3 12 4 19 

Amortisation  727 727 381 1,422 677 2,480

Disposals  0 0 0 (387) (20) (407)

Amortisation at 31 December 2011  5,682 5,682 1,424  3,655  2,128  7,207 

       
Carrying amount at 31 December 2011  1,049 1,049 2,285 2,416 1,201 5,902

Amortisation period  Up to 5 years  Up to 10 years 3 years 5 years 

 

Note

15

Property, plant

and equip-

ment total

Equipment,

fixtures and

fittings

Technical

equipment

Leasehold

improve-

ment

Acquired

software
Intangible

total

EUR'000
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Significant estimates for intangible assets and for property, plant and equipment have not been changed.     

  

All intangible assets apart from goodwill are considered to have limited useful economic lives.       

 

Goodwill       

As at 31 December 2011, management performed an impairment test of the carrying amount of goodwill in SimCorp Asia Pty. Ltd. of AUD 0.3m (2010: 

AUD 0.3m) and SimCorp Development Centre UK Limited of GBP 0.5m (2010: GBP 0.5m).       

 

The recoverable amount, calculated as the present value of expected future cash flows based on the companies’ plans for 2012 as approved by man-

agement, the expected revenue and cost performance for the next eight years related to SimCorp Dimension for SimCorp Asia Pty. Ltd. and FIX.Net for 

SimCorp Development Centre UK Limited, is assessed to be adequate to offset the carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2011. Determination 

of the cash flow period is based upon experience with similar group companies. A discount rate of 9.5% (2010: 10.3%) p.a before tax. consisting of a 

risk free interest rate of 3.9% (2010: 4.4%) p.a., a risk premium of 5.0% (2010: 4.5%) p.a. and a Beta of 1.2 (2010: 1.3) is used according to market 

evaluation of comparable companies.

       

Sensitivity analyses show that discount rates can be increased with up to 5% (2010: 5%) points, without resulting in impairment of goodwill.  

          

Software       

The addition in software 2010 and 2011 are primary related to purchase for use in operation.      

 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

GROUP

Cost at 1 January 2010 768 9,429 10,197 5,895 3,775 5,040 14,710

Foreign exchange adjustment 28 191 219 152 11 100 263

Additions 0 415 415 294 2,203 73 2,570

Disposals 0 (4,495) (4,495) (9) (777) (231) (1,017)

Cost at 31 December 2010 796 5,540 6,336 6,332  5,212  4,982  16,526 

Depreciation at 1 January 2010 0 7,106 7,106 1,513  2,282  1,574  5,369 

Foreign exchange adjustment 0 155 155 78  24  50  152 

Amortisation 0 1,552 1,552 877  1,301  993  3,171 

Disposals 0 (4,495) (4,495) (3) (779) (163) (945)

Amortisation at 31 December 2010 0 4,318 4,318 2,465  2,828  2,454  7,747 

       
Carrying amount at 31 December 2010 796 1,222 2,018 3,867  2,384  2,528  8,779 

       
Cost at 1 January 2011 796 5,540 6,336 6,332 5,212 4,982 16,526

Foreign exchange adjustment 112 17 129 54 27 30 111

Additions 0 561 561 141 2,103 154 2,398

Disposals 0 0 0 0 (451) (115) (566)

Cost at 31 December 2011 908 6,118 7,026 6,527 6,891 5,051 18,469

       
Depreciation at 1 January 2011 0 4,318 4,318 2,465 2,828 2,454 7,747

Foreign exchange adjustment 0 16 16 33 19 18 70

Amortisation 0 730 730 754 1,611 964 3,329

Disposals 0 0 0 0 (449) (41) (490)

Amortisation at 31 December 2011 0 5,064 5,064 3,252 4,009 3,395 10,656

       
Carrying amount at 31 December 2011 908 1,054 1,962 3,275 2,882 1,656 7,813

Amortisation period  Up to 5 years  Up to 10 years 3 years 5 years

Property, plant

and equip-

ment total

Equipment,

fixtures and

fittings

Technical

equipment

Leasehold

improve-

ment

Acquired

software
Intangible

totalGoodwill

EUR'000
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PARENT COMPANY    

Note  2010 2011    
  EUR'000 EUR'000    

16    INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES  
      15,996 7,950 Cost at 1 January 

   (27) 22  Foreign exchange adjustment 

  47 1,341 Additions 

   (8,066) 0 Disposal 

 
  7,950 9,313  Cost at 31 December
   

  7,950 9,313  Carrying amount at 31 December
   

  29,833 24,272 Dividends paid 

  
    RECEIVABLES FROM SUBSIDIARIES 

   
  12,772 12,239 Cost at 1 January 

   1,016  216 Foreign exchange adjustment 

  1,163 1,197 Additions 

   (2,712) (2,207) Disposals 

  12,239 11,445 Cost at 31 December 

  12,239 11,445 Carrying amount at 31 December

The addition, investments in subsidiaries, 2011 relates to SimCorp Hong Kong and in 2010 to SimCorp Luxembourg S.A . Disposal in 2010 relates to payout 

of the share premium account in SimCorp Ltd. There are no ownership changes in the Group's subsidiaries.

Name

SimCorp Ltd. London, United Kingdom 100% 100 T GBP 

SimCorp GmbH Bad Homburg, Germany 100% 102 T EUR

SimCorp Österreich GmbH Vienna, Austria 100% 18 T EUR

SimCorp Norge AS Oslo, Norway 100% 1,000 T NOK

SimCorp Sverige AB Stockholm, Sweden 100% 100 T SEK 

SimCorp Benelux SA/NV Brussels, Belgium 100% 62 T EUR

SimCorp USA Inc. New York, USA 100% 10 T USD

SimCorp Schweiz AG Zurich, Switzerland 100% 100 T CHF

SimCorp Asia Pty. Ltd. Sydney, Australia 100% 1,000 T AUD

SimCorp Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Singapore 100% 1    SGD

SimCorp Development Centre UK Limited Shenfield, United Kingdom 100% 200    GBP

SimCorp Ukraine LLC Kiev, Ukraine 100% 2,968 T UAH

SimCorp Canada Inc. Vancouver, Canada 100% 1    CAD

SimCorp France S.A.S. Paris, France 100% 37 T  EUR

SimCorp Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong, China 100% 14,000 T HKD

SimCorp Luxembourg S.A.  Luxembourg, Luxembourg 100% 31 T EUR

SimCorp Benelux SA/NV has a branch in the Netherlands and France.       
 
SimCorp Ltd. has a branch in the United Arab Emirates.       
 
SimCorp Sverige AB has a branch in Finland       
 
The name of Solutionforge Limited has been changed to SimCorp Development Centre UK Limited.       
  

Share 

capital

Ownership

interest

in 2011Registered office

The	Group's	subsidiaries	are	at	31	December	2011:
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

17    DEPOSITS

 
  1,618 1,692 Cost at 1 January 1,910 1,969
 
  (3) 4 Foreign exchange adjustment 28 8
 
  78 54 Additions 129 105
 
  (1) (7) Disposals (98) (20)
 
 
  1,692 1,743 Carrying amount at 31 December 1,969 2,062
 
  
18    DEFERRED TAX

   (96) (641) Deferred tax at 1 January (3,557) (5,163)
 
  0 5  Foreign exchange adjustment (125) 321 
 
  0 (3) Prior-year adjustment, profit 322 333 
 
  (566) (149) Adjustment of deferred tax, profit for the year (1,821) 994 
 
  21 (3) Adjustment of deferred tax, equity 21 (3)
 
  0 0 Adjustment of tax rate (3) 33

  (641) (791) Deferred	tax	at	31	December (5,163) (3,485)

 
    Deferred tax recognised in the balance sheet as follows:  
 
  641 791 Deferred tax (asset) 5,163 3,897
 
  0 0 Deferred tax (liability) 0 412
 

  (641) (791) Net	deferred	tax	at	31	December (5,163) (3,485)
 

    Deferred tax (asset)  
 
  (303) (262) Intangible assets  (303) (262)
 
  50 221 Property, plant and equipment 402 510
 
  0 0 Current assets (141) (100)
 
  296 316 Long-term liabilities 621 808
 
  44 44 Short-term liabilities 1,238 308
 
  554 472 Share-based payment 554 472
 
  0 0 Tax losses 2,792 2,161
 
    
  641 791 Deferred	tax	(asset)	at	31	December 5,163 3,897
 

    Deferred tax (liability)  
 
  0 0 Intangible assets 0 0
 
  0 0 Property, plant and equipment 0 (122)
 
  0 0 Current assets 0 540
 
  0 0 Long-term liabilities 0 (5)
 
  0 0 Short-term liabilities 0 (1)
 
  0 0 Share-based payment 0 0
 
  0 0 Tax losses 0 0
    
 
  0 0 Deferred	tax	(liability)	at	31	December 0 412

Tax value of the activated tax losses are expected to be realised within a few years, as the affected subsidiaries expect a positive taxable income going 

forward. In 2012, EUR 1.7m is expected to be utilised.     
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2010
Intangible assets (601) (3) 301 0 (303)

Tangible assets 117 9 276 0 402

Other short-term assets (910) 0 769 0 (141)

Provisions 371 3 247 0 621

Other items 1,046 37 155  0 1,238

Share-based payments 328 0 247 (21) 554

Tax loss carry-forwards 3,206 79 (493) 0 2,792

 3,557 125  1,502  (21) 5,163

     
2011     

Intangible assets (303) 3  38 0 (262)

Tangible assets 402 (23) 253 0 632

Other short-term assets (141) 13 (512) 0 (640)

Provisions 621 (30) 222 0 813

Other items 1,238 (106) (823) 0 309

Share-based payments 554 (5) (80) 3 472

Tax loss carry-forwards 2,792 (173) (458) 0 2,161

 5,163 (321) (1,360) 3  3,485

Balance

31 December

Recognised

in equity

Recognised

in profit 

and loss

Foreign

exchange

adjustment

Balance

1 January

CHANGES IN TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES DURING THE YEAR

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note  2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

19    RECEIVABLES

 
  3,429 3,115 Receivables from customers 30,559 27,256
 
  18,178 20,677 Receivables from subsidiaries –  – 
 
  549 1,742 Accrued revenue 13,084 17,190
 
  86 2,457 Other receivables 462 3,380
 
    
  22,242 27,991 Total receivables at 31 December 44,105 47,826
 

    The aging of trade receivables from customers was at 31 December:  
 
  3,030 2,233 Not due 26,179 20,651
 
  157 743 Not more than 30 days 2,094 5,326
 
  203 139 More than 30 days but not more than 90 days 1,685 1,155
 
  39 0 More than 90 days 601 124

 
  3,429 3,115 Total 30,559 27,256

EUR'000

GROUP

Accrued revenue consists mainly of revenue from sale of software licences and receivables from contracts in progress, see note 25.  

 

No security has been received with respect to trade receivables.  

 

 The need for impairment was based on an individual assessment of each receivable.   

 

 No writedown has been made in 2010 and 2011 for trade receivables.  

 

 The Group's exposure to currency and credit risk for trade receivables is disclosed in note 29.   
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EQUITY, TREASURY SHARES AND DIVIDEND

At 1 January 46,000,000 46,000,000 6,179 6,179

At 31 December 46,000,000 46,000,000 6,179 6,179

20
Nominal

value

EUR'000

2011

Nominal

value

EUR'000

2010

Number of

shares

of DKK 1

2011

Number of

shares

of DKK 1

2010

Share capital

At 31 December 2011, the share capital amounted to DKK 46,000,000 divided into 46,000,000 shares of DKK 1 nominal value each (2010: DKK 

46,000.000 divided into 46,000,000 shares of DKK 1 nominal). The company’s shares are traded on NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen in unchanged denomi-

nations of DKK 10. No shares confer any special rights upon any shareholder. No shares are subject to restrictions on transferability or voting rights. 

          

The share capital may be increased in one or more issues by a total nominal amount of up to DKK 10,000,000 (10,000,000 shares of DKK 1 nominal value each) 

as directed by the Board of Directors with respect to time and terms. This authority is valid for a period of five years, expiring on 1 March 2013, and may be 

extended by the shareholders for one or more periods of up to five years at a time. The capital increase may be effected without pre-emption rights to the 

company's existing shareholders if the shares are issued at market price or as consideration for the company’s acquisition of an existing operation or specific 

assets of a value that equals the value of the shares issued. Except for the cases specified in the preceding period, the company's existing shareholders shall have 

a right to subscribe new shares proportionately to their existing holdings. The new shares shall be negotiable instruments, and no restrictions shall apply to the 

transferability of the shares. No shareholders shall be under an obligation to have their shares redeemed in full or in part by the company or any other party. 

          

Unless Danish legislation provides for a greater majority or unanimity, the adoption of resolutions regarding amendments to the company’s articles of 

association and the company's dissolution or merger with another company requires a majority of not less than two-thirds of all the votes cast as well as 

of the voting share capital represented at the relevant general meeting, and that not less than two-thirds of the share capital is represented at the  

general meeting. In case less than two-thirds of the share capital is represented at the general meeting, and the resolution is adopted by not less than 

two-thirds of the votes cast as well as of the voting share capital represented at the general meeting, another general meeting may be called within 14 

days after the preceding general meeting. At the new general meeting, the resolution can be adopted by not less than two-thirds of the votes cast as well 

as of the voting share capital represented at the general meeting.        

   

At 1 January 825,760 1,483,600 7,063 15,338 1.8 3.2

Foreign exchange adjustment –  –  6 31 –  – 

Purchases 909,220 1,093,460 10,802 13,195 2.0 2.4

Delivery of shares/options exercised (85,400) (124,500) (859) (1,193) (0.2) (0.3)

Sold to employees (165,980) 0 (1,674) 0 (0.4) 0

At 31 December 1,483,600 2,452,560 15,338 27,371 3.2 5.3

Percent of

share capital

2011

Percent of

share capital

2010

Acquisition

value

EUR'000

2011

Treasury shares

The market value of treasury shares at 31 December 2011 was EUR 28.9m (2010: EUR 17.8m). The shares are carried at EUR 0.0m in the financial statements. 

The Board of Directors has been authorised to let the company acquire treasury shares of up to a total nominal value of 10% of the company’s share capital 

including the company’s own holding of treasury shares.          

  

SimCorp A/S acquired 1,093,460 treasury shares at an average price of DKK 897.01 per share of DKK 10 equal to a purchase price of EUR 13.2m in 2011 

(2010: 909,220 treasury shares at an average price of DKK 885.63 per share of DKK 10 equals to a purchase price of EUR 10.8m). In addition, SimCorp A/S in 

2010 disposed of treasury shares in relation to the sale of shares to employees under the employee share program, for a nominal value of DKK 165,980 at a 

calculated market price of DKK 1,056.07 per share of DKK 10, equal to a calculated selling price of EUR 2.4m. The company has delivered shares in connection 

with remuneration of the Board of Directors and exercise of options for a nominal value of DKK 124,500 (2010: DKK 85,400) calculated at an average market 

price of DKK 850.06 per share of DKK 10 (2010: DKK 850.70 per share of DKK 10), equal to a selling price of EUR 1.4m (2010: EUR 0.9m). The proceeds of the 

sale totalled EUR 0.9m (2010: EUR 0.7m).          

 

The company acquires treasury shares for the purpose of covering the Group’s incentive programmes, among other things.    

       

Capital management and dividend policy          

The Board of Directors regularly assesses the need for adjusting the capital structure, including the requirement for cash, credit facilities and equity.  

         

SimCorp pursues a dividend policy to the effect that, when cash resources exceed 10% of an upcoming year’s projected revenue, the company will pay minimum 

50% of the profit for the year by way of dividend. In addition, the company will buy treasury shares provided it does not anticipate specific cash requirements.

Acquisition

value

EUR'000

2010

Number of

shares

of DKK 1

2011

Number of

shares

of DKK 1

2010
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Distribution of dividends to shareholders has no tax consequences for the company.       

    

The Board of Directors intends to recommend to the shareholders at annual general meeting that dividends of EUR 17.6m (2010: EUR 17.9m), equal to DKK 

30.00 (2010: DKK 30.00) per 10 shares, be distributed. Further, the Board of Directors intends to recommend to the shareholders at annual general meeting 

that the authorisation to increase the share capital with up to DKK 10,000,000 (10,000,000 of DKK 1 nominal value each) as per the Articles of Association, 

section 4, be extended to 1 March 2017.

21 PROVISIONS

PARENT COMPANY

2010
Liability at 1 January 721 362 1,083

Foreign exchange adjustment 0 (2) (2)

Used during the year 0 (23) (23)

Reversal of unused liabilities 0 (17) (17)

Provisions for the year 36 105 141

   
Total provisions 757 425 1,182

   
Expected due dates for provisions:   

Falling due within 1 year 0 62 62

Falling due within 2 to 5 years 0 118 118

Falling due after 5 years 757 245 1,002

Total provisions 757 425 1,182

   
2011   

Liability at 1 January 757 425 1,182

Foreign exchange adjustment 2 1  3 

Used during the year 0 (49) (49)

Reversal of unused liabilities 0 (12) (12)

Provisions for the year 38 102 140

   
Total provisions 797 467 1,264

   
Expected due dates for provisions:   

Falling due within 1 year 0 34 34

Falling due within 2 to 5 years 0 102 102

Falling due after 5 years 797 331 1,128

Total provisions 797 467 1,264

Provisions cover the costs of restoring leasehold premises and provisions for anniversary bonuses. The latter resulting from the Group's commitment of one 

month's pay in connection with employees' 25th and 40th anniversary.   
   

 When the Group has an obligation to restore leasehold premises on expiry of the lease, a provision corresponding to the present value of the expected future 

expenses is recognised.      
 
     

Total

Anniversary

bonuses

Reestablishment

costs for

rented premises

EUR'000
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PROVISIONS

GROUP

2010
Liability at 1 January  1,151 362 47 51 1,611

Foreign exchange adjustment  (47) 0 3 0 (44)

Used during the year  0 (23) 0 0 (23)

Reversal of unused liabilities  0 (17) 0 0 (17)

Provisions for the year  66 251 541 0 858

     
Total provisions  1,170 573 591 51 2,385

     
Expected due dates for provisions:     

Falling due within 1 year  15 62 0 51 128

Falling due within 2 to 5 years  398 177 0 0 575

Falling due after 5 years  757 334 591 0 1,682

Total provisions  1,170 573 591 51 2,385

     
2011     

Liability at 1 January  1,170 573 591 51 2,385

Foreign exchange adjustment  8  5  14  0 27 

Used during the year  (13) (49) 0 (51) (113)

Reversal of unused liabilities  0 (12) 0 0 (12)

Provisions for the year  151 159 84 79 473

     
Total provisions  1,316 676 689 79 2,760

     
Expected due dates for provisions:     

Falling due within 1 year  0 124 0 73 197

Falling due within 2 to 5 years  334 221 0 6 561

Falling due after 5 years  982 331 689 0 2,002

Total provisions  1,316 676 689 79 2,760

TotalOtherPension

Anniversary

bonuses

Reestablishment

costs for

rented premises

Provisions cover the costs of restoring leasehold premises and provisions for anniversary bonuses. The latter resulting from the Group's commitment of one 

month's pay in connection with employees' 25th and 40th anniversary.   
   
      

When the Group has an obligation to restore leasehold premises on expiry of the lease, a provision corresponding to the present value of the expected future  

expenses is recognised.      
 
      
See note 22 regarding pension obligations.     
 

EUR'000

PENSIONS AND SIMILAR LIABILITIES

The Danish and certain foreign companies’ pension obligations are covered by insurance (defined contribution plans).    

  

Foreign companies' pension obligations not or only partly covered by insurance (defined benefit plans) are recognised in accordance with IAS 19.  

    

For defined contribution plans, the employer is obliged to pay a defined contribution (for example a fixed percentage of an employee’s salary) to indepen-

dent insurance companies or the like. For a defined contribution plan, the Group runs no risk in respect of future developments in interest rates, inflation, 

mortality or disability.      

      

Under defined benefit plans, the employer is obliged to pay a defined benefit (for example a fixed percentage of an employee’s final salary) to the  

employee after retirement. Under a defined benefit plan, the Group carries the risk in respect of future developments in interest rates, inflation, mortality 

or disability.      

   

     

Note

22

To CONTENTS



Notes    Financial statements    67

     GROUP

     2010 2011
 
      EUR'000 EUR'000

Charged to the income statement 
Contributions for current financial year 1,072 1,235

  
Defined benefit plans:  

Expenses related to current financial year 338 385

Interest expenses   136 147

Recognised actuarial gains   (135) (143)

Amortisation of accumulated actuarial gains/loss 8 7

Reclassification of pension scheme * 651 0

 
    998 396

Charged to the income statement, total 2,070 1,631

  
Liability recognised in respect of defined benefit plans:  

At 1 January   1,514 4,342

Reclassification of pension scheme * 1,749 –

Foreign exchange adjustment   432 78

Participants contribution   118 120

Expensed in the income statement  338 385

Interest expenses   136 147

Actuarial gains/loss   202 (237)

Payroll taxes   (20) (24)

Benefits paid   (127) (101)

Liabilities at 31 December   4,342 4,710

  
Recognised value of plan assets:  

At 1 January   1,174 3,367

Reclassification of pension scheme * 1,311 0

Foreign exchange adjustment   327 59

Expected return of plan assets   135 143

Actuarial gains/loss   166 (621)

Participants contribution   118 120

Employer contribution   263 289

Benefits paid   (127) (101)

Assets at 31 December   3,367 3,256

  
Specification of recognised net liabilities:  

Present value of defined benefit plan 4,342 4,710

Fair value of plan assets   (3,367) (3,256)

Unrecognised actuarial loss   (384) (765)

Net liability before limitation of assets ceiling 591  689

Net liability after limitation of asset ceiling 591  689

  
Actual return on plan assets   301  (478)

  

Average assumptions for actuarial calculations at the balance sheet day were as follows:  

  

Average discount rate   3.3–4.0% 2.5–2.6%

Expected return on plan assets   3.8–5.4% 3.5–4.1%

Future salary increases   2.2–4.0% 2.2–3.5%

Expected pension increases   0.3–1.3% 0.1%

Increase in social benefit contributions 3.8% 3.3%

Actuarial gains/losses have been reduced to nil at 1 January 2004.  
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     GROUP
     2010 2011

   
 EUR'000 EUR'000

 
Administrative expenses 619 409

Research and development costs 65 54

Cost of sales 1,027 922

Sales and distribution costs 359 246

Total 2,070 1,631

Asset allocation at 31 of December  

Shares 8% 6%

Bonds 8% 7%

Mortgage bonds 12% 13%

Property 8% 6%

Insurance policies 52% 61%

Other financial assets 12% 7%

Total 100% 100%

The expense is recognised in the following income statement items:      

   GROUP
       2007 2008 2009  2010 2011
      
 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000

Actuarial calculation of pension liabilities (1,541) (1,568) (1,514) (4,342) (4,710)

Plan assets 1,096 948 1,174 3,367  3,256 

Overfunding/underfunding (445) (620) (340) (975) (1,454)
     
 
Experience adjustment, assets (37) (158) (165) 166  (621)

Experience adjustment, liability (actuarial gain/loss) 119  84  (608) 202  (237)

*  The pension scheme entered by the Swiss subsidiary has been evaluated by the national audit and accounting committees, and accordingly the classifica-

tion of the pension scheme has been changed from a defined contribution plan to a defined benefit plan. The reclassification has been recognised as at 1 

January 2010.      

      

The Group's Norwegian and Swiss subsidiaries have pension plans comprisinging a total of 29 employees (2010:31). The plans entitle the employees to 

defined future benefits. These principally depend on the number of years of service, salary level at retirement age and the size of the national pension. The 

obligations are funded through insurance companies and actuarially calculated.      

      

The expected return on the plan has been calculated by Storebrand Pensjonstjenester AS (Norway) on the basis of standardised assumptions, prepared by For-

sikringsnæringens Hovedorganisasjon (Norway), regarding life expectancy and other demographic factors. Specifically the tariff K1963 has been applied. 

     

The expected return on the Swiss plan has been calculated by Allea Ltd (Switzerland) on the basis of standardised assumptions, prepared by Swiss Association 

of Actuaries, regarding life expectancy and other demographic factors.      

      

The calculations have been made on the basis of exact ages and employment dates. Up to the age of 51 years, a resignation rate of 8% is assumed. After 

the age, the resignation rate is assumed to be 0%.       

      

The Group expects to pay EUR 291 thousand (2010: EUR 248 thousand for the year 2011) to the defined benefit pension plan in 2012.   

    

The Group's pension liability for the current and preceding financial years is as follows:
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PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note 2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

23    TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER PAYABLES

  3,045 2,753 Trade payables 6,156 5,796

  14,699 15,594 Debt to subsidiaries –  – 

  6,424 6,833 Due holiday pay 8,100 8,641

  1,495 3,655 Wages and commissions payable 4,915 8,402

  93 54 Payroll taxes, VAT etc., payable 4,511 4,814

    
  25,756 28,889 Total trade payables and other payables 23,682 27,653

The Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risk for trade payables and other payables is disclosed in note 29.

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note 2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

24    INCOME TAX
  

   (1,412) (222) Payable at 1 January 2,474  2,395
 
  6  1  Foreign exchange adjustment 62 (16)
 
  (72) (716) Prior-year adjustments (832) (185)
 
  1,868 2,826 Current tax on profit for the year 11,227 12,152
 
  492 122 Tax on equity items 492 122
 
  (1,104) (2,923) Income tax paid (11,028) (15,379)
 
 
  (222) (912) Total	payable	income	tax,	net 2,395  (911)
 
    
    which is distributed as follows:  
 
  222 912 Income tax receivable 3,057 3,326
 
  0 0 Income tax payable 5,452 2,415
 
 
  (222) (912) Total	payable	income	tax,	net 2,395  (911)
 
  
25    CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS RELATING TO 

    PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

  0 0 Sales value of contracts in progress 8,988 616

  0 0 Payments received on account (8,154) (580)

  0 0 Contracts in progress 834 36

    
    which are recognised as follows:  

  0 0 Contracts in progress relating to professional services (assets) 869 188

  0 0 Contracts in progress relating to professional services (liabilities) (35) (152)

  
  0 0 Contracts in progress 834 36

Contracts in progress relating to professional services are recognised in accrued revenue, see note 19.
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In some contracts, as part of building long-term customer relationships, the company has made a commitment to provide SimCorp Dimension product 

support for up to eight years from the date of the contract.     

     

SimCorp A/S has issued guarantees for its subsidiaries’ delivery commitments to customers for a total of EUR 24.6m (2010: EUR 18.5m).  

   

The parent company has issued letters of support to certain subsidiaries.      

     

Bank guarantees have been provided for rent commitments in Australia, Belgium, France, Luxembourg, Germany, USA and Austria.   

  

The Group is a party to inquires from authorities when investigating various issues. The outcome of such is not expected to have significant effect on profit 

for the year and the assessment of the Group's the financial position.     

Note

27

70    Financial statements    Notes    

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note 2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

26    OPERATING LEASES  

    Rent commitments  
 
  5,657 6,455 Payable within 1 year 9,042 9,942
 
  19,759 22,099 Payable within 2 to 5 years 26,483 29,066
 
  13,014 8,370 Payable after 5 years 13,368 9,667
 
    
  38,430 36,924 Rent	commitments	until	expiry	of	minimum	term	of	tenancy 48,893 48,675
 
    
    Other commitments  
 
  95 130 Payable within 1 year 490 540
 
  50 133 Payable within 2 to 5 years 559 594
 
  15 0 Payable after 5 years 15 0
 
  
  160 263 Total other commitments 1,064 1,134
 
    
    Total commitments  
 
  5,752 6,585 Payable within 1 year 9,532 10,482
 
  19,809 22,232 Payable within 2 to 5 years 27,042 29,660
 
  13,029 8,370 Payable after 5 years 13,383 9,667
 
    
  38,590 37,187 Total commitments 49,957 49,809

 

Amounts of EUR 10.2m (2010: EUR 8.8m) relating to operating leases in the Group and EUR 6.2m (2010: EUR 5.2m) in the parent company have been 

recognised in the income statement for 2011. The Group’s other liabilities comprise operating leases for operating equipment, generally with a lease period 

of between two and five years.

      

In November 2008 SimCorp moved into the headquarters at Weidekampsgade 16, Copenhagen. The lease has been entered into on market terms and with 

normal rent adjustment clauses. The lease is non-terminable for a period of ten years, with an option to extend for up to 20 years from the commencement 

of the lease.       

      

All the Group’s leases are with an option to extend and are made on market terms with normal rent adjustment clauses and no right of first refusal.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS    

SimCorp's related parties exercising a significant influence comprise the company’s Board of Directors and Executive Management Board as well as relatives 

of these persons. Related parties also comprise companies in which the individuals mentioned above have material interests.   

    

For the parent company, related parties also comprise subsidiaries and associates, see notes 16 and 10, in which SimCorp A/S has a controlling or significant 

influence.        

       

The Group did not enter into any agreement, deals or other transactions in 2011 in which the parent company’s Board of Directors or Executive Management 

Board had a financial interest, except for transactions following from the employment relationship. See note 6.

Note

28

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

  2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

    Subsidiaries and associates
    Trading with subsidiaries and associates
    
    has involved the following:
       
  14,834 16,046 Purchases of services from subsidiaries – –

  612 836 Purchases of services from associates 672 836

  72,121 72,008 Sale of services to subsidiaries – –

Transactions with subsidiaries have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statement in accordance with the accounting policies applied.  

     

The parent company’s outstanding balance with subsidiaries and associates is specified in notes 16 and 10. Loans account for a total of EUR 11.5m (2010: 

EUR 12.4m) of the outstanding balances with subsidiaries. The loans fall due for payment when the companies have excess liquidity.   

    

In addition, balances with subsidiaries and associates comprise ordinary trade balances relating to the purchase and sale of services. Outstanding balances 

carry interest and are subject to terms and conditions identical to those made with the parent company’s and the Group’s customers and suppliers. 

      

Trading with subsidiaries and associates of the SimCorp Group is conducted on arm’s length terms. Ownership interests appear from notes 16 and 10. 

      

Interest on outstanding balances with subsidiaries and associates is specified in notes 11 and 12.      

 

The parent company has in 2011 received dividends of EUR 24.3m (2010: EUR 35.8m) from subsidiaries.     

  

No dividends have been received from associates.       

       

The parent company has provided delivery bonds to certain customers of its subsidiaries, and the parent company has issued letters of support to certain 

subsidiaries, see note 27.       
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      2010 2011
 
      Numbers Numbers

      of DKK 10 of DKK 10

   The interests in the company of members of the board of Directors and 

  the Executive Management Board are listed below:   
 

  Shareholdings	by	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors	and	the	Executive	Management	Board:	 	 	
 

 Board of Directors:    

Jesper Brandgaard   5,847 7,647

Carl Christian Ægidius   1,431 1,596

Herve Couturier   353 463

Simon Jeffreys   –  580

Susan Hakki-Haroun   353 – 

Jacob Goltermann   1,413 1,423

Raymond John   344 314

    
Board of Directors, total   9,741 12,023

Executive Management Board:    

Peter L. Ravn   23,450 23,450

Torben B. Munch   10,864 10,864

Georg Hetrodt   7,841 8,441

Thomas Johansen   –  175

Executive Management Board, total 42,155 42,930

    
Total	shareholdings	by	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors	and	the	Executive	Management	Board 51,896 54,953

    
Restricted	stock	units	granted	to	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors	and	the	Executive	Management	Board:   
 
Board of Directors:    

Jacob Goltermann   86 161

Board of Directors, total   86 161

Executive Management Board:    

Peter L. Ravn   1,508 3,011

Torben B. Munch   1,508 3,011

Georg Hetrodt   1,508 3,011

Thomas Johansen   –  1,503

 
Executive Management Board, total 4,524 10,536

    
Total	restricted	stock	units	granted	to	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors	and	the	Executive	Management	Board 4,610 10,697

    
Stock	options	held	by	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors	and	the	Executive	Management	Board:   
 
Board of Directors:    

Jesper Brandgaard   600 600

Carl Christian Ægidius   400 400

Susan Hakki-Haroun   400 – 

Jacob Goltermann   1,400 1,250

Board of Directors, total   2,800 2,250

Executive Management Board:    

Peter L. Ravn   14,383 14,383

Torben B. Munch   14,383 14,383

Georg Hetrodt   4,600 4,000

    
Executive Management Board, total 33,366 32,766

    
Total	stock	options	held	by	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors	and	the	Executive	Management	Board 36,166 35,016

Key Management Personnel (cf. IAS 24) consists of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board.    

   

Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management Board is disclosed in note 6.    

   

Members of the Board of Directors are elected by the shareholders at the annual general meeting for terms of one year. Members of the Board of Directors 

elected by the employees are elected among SimCorp A/S employees every four years. Election was held in March 2009.     

   

Candidates for Board membership may not have turned 70 years of age on the date of the general meeting at which the election takes place.
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Note  

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK 

Due to the nature of its operations, investments and financing, the Group is exposed to changes in exchange rates and interest rates. The Group’s policy 

is to direct financial management towards the management of financial risks related to operations and finance. The Group’s financial risks are managed 

centrally by the Parent Company's Finance department according to policies committed to in writing and approved by the Board of Directors.  

      

The scope and nature of the Group’s financial instruments appear from the income statement and the balance sheet in accordance with the accounting 

policies applied. Provided below is information about factors that may influence amounts, time of payment or reliability of future payments, where such 

information is not provided directly in the financial statements or is subject to customary practise.     

   

This note addresses only financial risks directly related to the Group's financial instruments. The Group’s most important operational and commercial risk 

factors are described in more detail on page 23 ff of the report.       

 

Currency risk        

The Group’s foreign subsidiaries are not severely impacted by foreign exchange fluctuations, as both income and costs are generally settled in the func-

tional (local) currency of the individual entity.        

        

The consolidated income statement is impacted by changes in exchange rates. The results of foreign subsidiaries are translated from their functional 

currency to EUR at the exchange rate ruling on the transaction date. The average exchange rate for the month is used to reflect the transaction date’s 

exchange rate.        

        

The Group’s foreign exchange policy is to balance incoming and outgoing payments in local currency as much as possible and generally seek to ensure 

that an increasing number of contracts entered into are EUR-denominated. When placing surplus funds, the Group generally seeks to minimise its net 

exposure in individual currencies. At the balance sheet date, SimCorp A/S had financially hedged CHF 14m relating to future short-term investments of 

liquidity from a subsidiary.         

        

Currency exposures of investments in subsidiaries had not been hedged. The related exchange rate adjustments are recognised in other comprehensive income. 

       

The table below shows currency exposure to each currency as at the balance sheet date based on the functional currencies of the individual Group companies. 

       

Currency

The parent company's currency risks recognised 
in the balance sheet at 31 December 2010:   
DKK  31,226 7,523 12,671 26,078

SEK  0 1 1,223 (1,222)

NOK  1 0 2,073 (2,072)

EUR  5,306 13,135 7,762 10,679

GBP  0 2,403 1,769 634

CHF  0 400 0 400

USD  15 0 850 (835)

AUD  0 0 1,435 (1,435)

SGD  0 911 0 911

HKD  0 2,756 0 2,756

UAH  0 0 218 (218)

  36,548 27,129 28,001 35,676

The parent company's currency risks recognised 
in the balance sheet at 31 December 2011:   
DKK  33,771 10,998 15,150 29,619

SEK  1 6 159 (152)

NOK  1 0 3,024 (3,023)

EUR  2,819 17,668 5,981 14,506

GBP  18 752 1,655 (885)

CHF  958 0 13,048 (12,090)

USD  68 0 404 (336)

AUD  0 0 2,667 (2,667)

SGD  0 0 182 (182)

CAD  0 1,003 0 1,003

HKD  0 1,685 0 1,685

UAH  0 0 239 (239)

  37,636 32,112 42,509 27,239

Net positionDebtReceivablesCash/equivalents

EUR'000
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Sensitivity	analysis	of	the	Group's	currency	exposure       

Based on the net exposure of the parent company and the Group, the hypothetical impact on the profit for the year and equity before tax of exchange 

rate fluctuations is as follows:       

Currency

The	Group's	currency	risks	recognised	
in	the	balance	sheet	at	31	December	2010:	 	 	
EUR/DKK  5,306 1,410 251 6,465

EUR/CHF  474 0 0 474

GBP/DKK  0 20 220 (200)

USD/DKK  14 0 162 (148)

USD/GBP  33 937 0 970

CAD/USD  146 1,306 194 1,258

NZD/AUD  0 2,636 0 2,636

The	Group's	currency	risks	recognised	
in	the	balance	sheet	at	31	December	2011:	 	 	
EUR/DKK  2,818 431 93 3,156

EUR/CHF  23 0 0 23

CHF/DKK  958 0 11,517 (10,559)

GBP/DKK  18 0 146 (128)

USD/DKK  68 0 4 64

USD/GBP  0 395 0 395

USD/HKD  0 2,227 0 2,227

CAD/USD  169 458 0 627

Net positionDebtReceivablesCash/equivalents

EUR'000
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PARENT COMPANY     
SEK 15% (183) 10% (15)

NOK 10% (207) 10% (302)

GBP 10% 63  10% (89)

CHF 20% 80  10% (1,209)

USD 20% (167) 20% (67)

AUD 25% (359) 15% (400)

SGD 20% 182  15% (27)

CAD 0% 0 15% 150 

HKD 15% 413  20% 337 

UAH 10% (22) 10% (24)

GROUP	 	 	 	 	
EUR/CHF 20% 95 10% 2

CHF/DKK 0% 0 10% (1,056)

GBP/DKK 10% (20) 10% (13)

USD/DKK 20% (30) 20% 13

USD/GBP 10% 97 10% 40

USD/HKD 5% 132 5% 111

CAD/USD 10% 126 15% 94

20112010

Change in

exchange rate
Change in

exchange rate

Impact on net position

A corresponding fall in the cross rate would have an equivalent opposite effect on profit after tax and equity.    

    

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared at the balance sheet date based on the exposure towards the listed currencies at the balance sheet date, without 

taking in to account potential effects on interest rate leves, effect on other currencies etc.

EUR'000EUR'000

Change in

cross rate
Change in

cross rate EUR'000EUR'000
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Interest risk         

The Group’s and the parent company’s interest rate risks are generally related to its bank deposits.      

    

SimCorp A/S had bank deposits of EUR 37.6m at 31 December 2011 (2010: EUR 36.5m) carrying a variable rate of interest based on the money market 

rate. The effective rate of interest varies with the currency and, made up at the balance sheet date, fluctuated between 0.3 and 1.4% in 2011 (2010: 

0.7–1.3%) for significant deposits.         

         

Part of the Parent Company's cash is placed on time deposits of up to 6 months, carrying fixed interest rates.     

     

The Group had bank deposits of EUR 48.1m at 31 December 2011 (2010: EUR 42.7m) carrying a variable rate of interest based on the money market 

rate. The effective rate of interest varies with the currency and, made up at the balance sheet date, fluctuated between 0.3 and 1.4% in 2011 (2010: 

0.7–1.3%) for significant deposits.         

         

The Group had no long-term loans except for EUR 0.76m bonds issued to the employees in SimCorp A/S. The bonds mature end of 2014 and carry a fixed 

interest rate of 2% p.a.        

         

Accordingly, a change in interest rate levels as at the balance sheet date would have very little impact on profit before tax or equity.   

      

If interest rates increased by one percentage point, the interest rate sensitivity as calculated based on quarterly cash deposits at the end of the quarters in 

2010 and 2011, respectively, would have a positive profit impact of EUR 0.38m (2010: EUR 0.37m) in the parent company and of EUR 0.48m (2010: EUR 

0.43m) in the Group. A corresponding fall in interest rates would have an opposite impact.       

   

The impact of change in interest levels on the equity of the parent company and the Group does not deviate significantly from the impact on the profit 

for the year.         

     

Liquidity risk        

It is SimCorp's policy that cash reserves must exceed 10% of the coming year's expected revenue.     

   

The Group’s cash reserve comprises cash and cash equivalents, treasury shares and unutilised credit facilities. The Group aims to have sufficient cash 

resources to allow it to continue to operate adequately in case of unforeseen fluctuations in cash. The Group has unused credit facilities in banks of EUR 

7.7m (2010: EUR 7.4m).         

        

The following table indicates when the current and non-current liablities including interest per 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, respectively, 

are expected to fall due:        

PARENT COMPANY

Prepayments from customers 119 81 47 0 141 0 0 0

Trade payables 3,045 2,744 0 9 0 0 0 0

Provisions 44 6 18 28 118 102 1,002 1,128

Other payables 4,801 6,121 3,212 3,262 0 1,159 0 0

Bonds 0 0 15 15 801 788 0 0

Payables to subsidiaries 14,845 15,750 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 22,854  24,702  3,292  3,314  1,060  2,049  1,002  1,128 

GROUP     

Prepayments from customers 1,624 1,605 1,371 691 221 0 0 0

Trade payables 5,535 5,205 335 157 286 434 0 0

Provisions 95 115 33 82 575 561 1,682 2,002

Other payables 2,991 3,157 10,018 10,677 4,517 8,023 0 0

Income tax and deferred tax 5,224 1,886 10 941 218 0 0 0

Bonds 0 0 15 15 801 788 0 0

Total 15,469  11,968  11,782  12,563  6,618  9,806  1,682  2,002 

Later than

5 years

2010

Later than

5 years

2011

1 – 5 

years

2011

1 – 5 

years

2010

6 –12

months

2011

6 –12

months

2010

Within 6

months

2011

Within 6

months

2010

At 31 December

EUR'000

Current Non-current

Financial liabilities are classified as ‘Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost’ in the balance sheet.     

The fair value of the bonds essentially equals their carrying amount.       

Interest payments are estimated based on current market conditions.       

The maturity profile of the Group's operational leasing obligations appears from note 26.
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Time of recognition      

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised at the trading day.       

 

Credit risk        
The Group is not exposed to significant risks concerning individual customers or business partners. Customers are generally major investment managers 

in the financial sector. Under the Group’s policy for assuming credit risk all major customers and other business partners are assessed prior to any contract 

being signed and a substantial amount is paid on entering into licence agreements.       

 

The maximum exposure to credit risk equals the carrying amounts:       

 

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

  2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

  36,548 37,636 Cash and cash equivalents 42,689 48,149
 
  22,242 27,991 Receivables 44,105 47,826
 

  58,790 65,627 Maximum	credit	exposure 86,794 95,975

Financial assets are classified as 'Loans and receivables’ and 'Derivative financial instruments at fair value via income statement' in the balance sheet. 

       

Credit risk relating to cash funds comprising current account deposits and fixed term deposits is deemed to be immaterial as the accounts are held with 

selected recognised international banks with high credit ratings. No security has been received.      

        

The table shows trade receivables by credit quality categorised by geographic regions:

Fair values        
SimCorp measures derivative financial instruments, comprising forward exchange transactions for the sale of CHF 14m against DKK in the period from 

February 2012 to August 2013 at fair value. The fair value is determined using generally accepted valuation techniques based on observable exchange rates 

and yield curves.         

        

The forward exchange contracts are included in level 2 (observable input), EUR 1.3m (2010: EUR 0).

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

  2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

  3,407 3,115 Europe 26,569 22,379

  0 0 North America 2,061 3,860

  0 0 Asia 1,397 167

  0 0 Australia 448 519

  22 0 Other 84 331

  3,429 3,115 Total 30,559 27,256

 

The Group’s trade receivables at 31 December 2011 include no impairments (2010: no impairments), see note 19. Impairments are based on individual 

assessments and result from objective indication of impairment. The impairments will be charged to administrative expenses.   

Maturity dates for receivables are specified in note 19. No single customer represents more than 11% (2010: 13%) of total trade receivables.  

      

Categories of financial instruments        

The parent company and Group have the following financial instruments:

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

  2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

  73,741 74,675 Loan and receivables 93,962 92,655

  0 1,253 Derivate at fair value via income statement 0 1,253

  (18,500) (19,105) Financial obligations measured at amortised cost (6,912) (6,554)
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31 NEW ACCOUNTING REGULATIONS

The following changes to existing and new standards as well as interpretation have been publish but are not applicable for the preparation of the 2011 

Annual Report: IFRIC 20, IFRS 9-13, IAS 27 (2011) and 28 (2011), adjustments to IFRS 1 and 7 and amendments to IAS 1, 12, 19 og 32.   

      

IFRS 7 is approved by the EU.        

        

The SimCorp Group expects to implement the new accounting standards in connection with the reporting for 2012, or when they take effect.   

      

IAS 19 changes the treatment of defined benefit plans and the corridor approach for measuring actuarial gains or losses. The SimCorp Group expects that 

this standard will have minor impact on the Group. At 31 December 2011 the actuarial loss is EUR 765 thousand. The standard is applicable for reporting 

year beginning 1 January 2013.        

        

Other changes or interpretation are not expected to have monetary effect on the statements of the SimCorp Group's results, assets and liabilities or the 

equity in connection with their taking effect.

Note  

30 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Group
No material events have occurred after 31 December 2011 that have consequences for Annual Report 2011.

PARENT COMPANY    GROUP

Note 2010 2011  2010 2011
 
  EUR'000 EUR'000   EUR'000 EUR'000

32    ADJUSTMENTS, CASH FLOW

    
  3,209 3,207 Depreciation 4,723 4,059
 
  – – Share of profit in associates (48) (107)
 
  (31,991) (27,167) Financial income (1,983) (2,610)
 
  5,148 1,822 Financial expenses 3,993 1,884
 
  1,230 1,967 Tax on profit for the year 8,847 13,217
 
  3,792 2,445 Other 3,792 2,445
 
     
  (18,612) (17,726) Total adjustments 19,324  18,888 
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Jesper Brandgaard
Business address: Novo Nordisk A/S, Novo 
Allé, 2880 Bagsværd, Denmark

Personal and educational background
Born 1963, Danish citizen, MSc (Econ. and 
Audit.) and MBA from Copenhagen Business 
School.

Directorships
Chairman of SimCorp A/S’ Board of Directors 
since 2008 and Vice Chairman since 2007. 
Also Chairman of the Board of Directors of 
NNE Pharmaplan A/S and NNIT A/S.

Independence
Executive Vice President and CFO of Novo 
Nordisk A/S. Is regarded as independent. 

Carl Christian Ægidius
Business address: 2 Rue Jean Engling, 1466 
Luxembourg, Luxembourg

Personal and educational background
Born 1944, Danish citizen, MSc (Econ.).

Directorships
Vice Chairman of SimCorp A/S’ Board of 
Directors since 2008 and member of the 
Board of Directors since 2004. Also member 
of the Board of Directors of Industriens 
Pension.

Independence
Is regarded as independent.

Hervé Couturier
Business address: SAP BusinessObjects,  
157–159 rue Anatole France,  
92309 Levallois-Perret Cedex, France

Personal and educational background
Born 1958, French citizen, MSc (Industrial 
Engineering) from École Centrale de Paris.

Directorships
Member of SimCorp A/S’ Board of Directors 
since 2008. Also member of the Board of 
Directors of AVEVA Group plc since 2010.

Independence
Executive Vice President of SAP Group.  
Is regarded as independent. 

From left to right: Jacob Goltermann, Simon Jeffreys, Raymond John, Carl Christian Ægidius, Hervé Couturier and Jesper Brandgaard

Board of Directors 31 December
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Simon Jeffreys
Business address: Wellcome Trust,  
215 Euston Road, London NW1 2BE,  
United Kingdom.

Personal and educational background
Born 1952, British citizen, B.Com (Hons) from 
University of Cape Town, FCA, CPA.

Directorships
Member of SimCorp A/S’ Board of Directors 
since 2011. Member of the Board of Directors 
of Aon Limited, Wellcome Trust Finance plc., 
Genome Research Ltd, MSD Wellcome Trust 
Hilleman Laboratories Pvt. Ltd. (India), 
Diamond Light Source Ltd. 

Independence
Chief Operating Officer of the Wellcome 
Trust. Is regarded as independent.

Jacob	Goltermann
Business address: SimCorp A/S, Weidekamps-
gade 16, 2300 Copenhagen S, Denmark.

Personal and educational background
Born 1970, Danish citizen, MSc (Math. and 
Econ.).

Directorships
Employee-elected member of SimCorp A/S’ 
Board of Directors since 2007. 

Independence
Chief Business Consultant in SimCorp A/S.  
Is not regarded as independent due to 
employment with SimCorp A/S.

Raymond John
Business address: SimCorp A/S,  
Weidekampsgade 16, 2300 Copenhagen S, 
Denmark.

Personal and educational background
Born 1965, US citizen, B.S. Industrial 
Engineering, MSc. (Applied Economics and 
Finance)

Directorships
Employee-elected member of SimCorp A/S’ 
Board of Directors since 2009. 

Independence
Senior Technical Writer in SimCorp A/S. Is not 
regarded as independent due to employment 
with SimCorp A/S. 

The composition of the Board of Directors ensures its ability to act as an efficient, visionary and result-oriented dialogue partner for SimCorp’s Exe-
cutive Management Board, independent of any special interests, just as it reflects diversity in terms of age and international experience, among other 
characteristics. The Board of Directors has defined an ideal profile for the Board’s composition. The ideal profile reflects the Board competences that 
are considered important for supporting SimCorp’s strategic development, and it describes business and financial skills as well as industry insight and 
professional qualifications. Thus, it is considered important that the Board includes experience in managing an international business and experience 
in strategic and business development within SimCorp’s industry. The ideal profile focuses specifically on experience in managing a listed company 
with foreign subsidiaries, knowledge of relevant legislation and specialised accounting and audit knowledge. Other qualifications described in the 
ideal profile include knowhow relating to IT, software product development, development process management, service business and managing 
highly specialised employees. The company believes that the Board of Directors as a collective body meets the ideal profile and equally complies  
with the requirements to act as an audit committee under section 31 of the Danish Financial Statements Act.

B
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Executive	Management	
Board

Peter L. Ravn
Born 1955
Chief Executive Officer
Present position held since 2001
Member of the Board of  
Systematic A/S

Torben B. Munch
Born 1958
Chief Operating Officer,  
Executive Vice President
Present position held since 2001
Member of the Board of  
Directors of Equipos Ltd.,  
TIA Holding III A/S and  
Traen A/S

From left to right: Peter L. Ravn, Thomas Johansen, Torben B. Munch and Georg Hetrodt

Executive	Management	Board	and	Senior	Management		 31 December

Georg	Hetrodt
Born 1966
Chief Technology Officer,  
Executive Vice President
Present position held since 2009
Chairman of the Board of Directors  
of Dyalog Ltd.

Thomas Johansen 
Born 1970 
Chief Financial Officer,  
Executive Vice President 
Present position held since 2011 
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Michael H. Andersen Born 1964 Senior Vice President IMS Development Present position held since 2008
Lars Bjørn Falkenberg Born 1969 Senior Vice President Global Product & Marketing Management Present position held since 2010 
Karin	van	Goinga	Middelburg	 Born 1969 Senior Vice President Corporate HR Present position held since 2011 
Marc Schröter Born 1969 Senior Vice President Strategic Research Present position held since 2010 
Peter Sørensen Born 1965 Senior Vice President Internal Systems Present position held since 2008

Klaus Andersen Born 1964 Senior Vice President SimCorp Ltd. Present position held since 2008
Arnt Eilertsen Born 1960 Senior Vice President SimCorp Nordic Present position held since 2001
Peter Hill Born 1955 Senior Vice President SimCorp Asia Present position held since 2006
Troels Philip Jensen Born 1967 Senior Vice President SimCorp Western Europe Present position held since 2000
David Kubersky Born 1966 Senior Vice President SimCorp North America Present position held since 2008
Jochen Müller Born 1966 Senior Vice President SimCorp Central Europe Present position held since 2009

Management in SimCorp market units  31 December

Senior Managers  31 December

Arnt Eilertsen Peter Hill David KuberskyTroels Philip Jensen Jochen Müller

Michael H. Andersen Karin van Goinga  
Middelburg

Lars Bjørn Falkenberg Marc Schröter Peter Sørensen

Klaus Andersen

Marc Schröter Peter Sørensen
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SimCorp corporate 
headquarters

SIMCORP A/S
Weidekampsgade 16
2300 Copenhagen S.
Denmark
Phone +45 35 44 88 00
Fax +45 35 44 88 11

SimCorp Nordic

SIMCORP	SVERIGE	AB
Sergelgatan 1
111 57 Stockholm
Sweden
Phone +46 8 528 015 00
Fax +46 8 528 015 15

SIMCORP	NORGE	AS
Biskop Gunnerusgate 14A
0185 Oslo
Norway
Phone +47 23 10 41 00
Fax +47 23 10 41 49

SIMCORP FINLAND
(Finnish branch of
SimCorp Sverige AB)
Salomonkatu 17
00100 Helsinki
Finland
Phone +358 9685 2010
Fax +358 9685 2012

SIMCORP UKRAINE LLC 
V. Stusa 35–37
2nd floor
Kiev
Ukraine
Phone +380 44 495 86 00
Fax +380 44 495 86 11

SimCorp Central Europe

SIMCORP	GMBH
Justus-von-Liebig-Straße 1
61352 Bad Homburg
Germany
Phone +49 6172 9240-0
Fax +49 6172 9240-40

SIMCORP	ÖSTERREICH	GMBH
Wollzeile 16
1010 Vienna
Austria
Phone +43 1 5120099
Fax +43 1 5120183

SIMCORP	SCHWEIZ	AG
Sihlquai 253
8005 Zurich
Switzerland
Phone +41 44 360 59 00
Fax +41 44 360 59 01
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SimCorp Western Europe 

SIMCORP BENELUX SA/NV
Building Stéphanie 1
Avenue Louise 54
1050 Brussels
Belgium
Phone +32 2 213 30 00
Fax +32 2 213 30 01

SIMCORP NETHERLANDS
(Dutch branch of SimCorp Benelux SA/NV)
Gustav Mahlerplein 109-111 
1082 MS Amsterdam
The Netherlands
Phone +31 (0)20 708 57 64
Fax +32 2 213 30 01

SIMCORP FRANCE S.A.S.
29/31 rue Saint-Augustin
75002 Paris
France
Phone +33 1 5535 5454
Fax +33 1 5535 5455

SIMCORP	LUXEMBOURG	S.A.
20, rue Eugène Ruppert
2453 Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Phone +32 2 213 30 00
Fax +32 2 213 30 01

SimCorp UK
 

SIMCORP LTD.
2nd floor
100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7AN
United Kingdom
Phone +44 20 7260 1900
Fax +44 20 7260 1911

SIMCORP DEVELOPMENT  
CENTRE UK LIMITED
Whitegates Business Center
Alexander Lane, Shenfield
Essex CM15 8QF
United Kingdom
Phone +44 1277 312300
Fax +44 1277 848727

SimCorp North America 

SIMCORP USA INC.
17 State Street
New York, NY 10004
USA
Phone +1 212 994 9400
Fax +1 212 994 8826

SIMCORP USA INC.
1999 Avenue of the Stars
Suite 1100
Los Angeles, CA 90067
USA
Phone +1 424 354 5151
Fax +1 424 354 5150

SIMCORP CANADA INC.
401 Bay Street 
Suite 1600
Toronto, Ontario M5H 2Y4
Canada 
Phone +416 363 0400
Fax 

SimCorp Asia 

SIMCORP ASIA PTY. LTD.
Level 13, 68 Pitt Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia
Phone +61 2 9241 4222
Fax +61 2 9221 5100

SIMCORP	HONG	KONG	LTD.
21st floor
The Center
99 Queen’s Road
Hong Kong
Phone +852 2521 2680
Fax +852 2887 2711

SIMCORP	SINGAPORE	PTE.	LTD.
#58-03/05, Republic Plaza
9 Raffles Place
Singapore 048619
Singapore
Phone +65 6823 1517
Fax +65 6823 1376

www.simcorp.com

info@simcorp.com
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Announcements and definition of ratios

Announcements to NASDAQ OMX Copenhagen A/S
1	January	2011–31	December	2011
 1/2011 12 January 2011 New CFO to join SimCorp’s Executive Management 
 2/2011 13 January 2011 SimCorp’s Financial calendar 2011
 3/2011 28 February 2011 SimCorp’s Annual Report 2010 
 4/2011  4 March 2011 Notice of annual general meeting in SimCorp A/S 
 5/2011 28 March 2011 Business transacted at the annual general meeting held on 28 March 2011 
 6/2011 31 March 2011 SimCorp and MN Services N.V. enter into a strategic cooperation agreement 
 7/2011  8 April 2011 Notice of extraordinary general meeting in SimCorp A/S 
 8/2011  4 May 2011 Business transacted at the extraordinary general meeting in SimCorp A/S held on 4 May 2011 
 9/2011 19 May 2011 Interim report as of 31 March 2011 – SimCorp A/S 
10/2011 30 May 2011 SimCorp signs large North American asset manager 
11/2011 29 June 2011 SimCorp signs large US asset manager 
12/2011 30 June 2011 Large German fund administrator extends its SimCorp Dimension license agreement 
13/2011 26 August 2011 Interim report as of 30 June 2011 – SimCorp A/S 
14/2011 16 November 2011 German bank chooses SimCorp Dimension 
15/2011 17 November 2011 Interim report as of 30 September 2011 – SimCorp A/S 
16/2011 18 November 2011  SimCorp’s Financial calendar 2012 
17/2011 23 December 2011 SimCorp client signs strategic cooperation agreement 
18/2011 27 December 2011 Eagle Asset Management selects SimCorp Dimension 

After 31 December 2011
 1/2012  3 January 2012 SimCorp updates its expectations of the financial results for 2011 
 2/2012  1 February 2012  SimCorp Dimension to support BMO Global Asset Management’s investment operations in Toronto, Chicago 

and Milwaukee 

Financial calendar 2012
15 February 2012   Deadline for submission by shareholders of SimCorp of resolutions to be considered by the  

Annual General Meeting 2012
29 February 2012  Publication of Annual Report 2011
29 March 2012 Annual General Meeting
 4 April 2012 Expected date for payout of dividend
16 May 2012 Publication of interim financial report Q1 2012
28 August 2012 Publication of interim financial report H1 2012
26 November 2012 Publication of interim financial report first nine months of 2012

Ratio definitions 
Key ratios
EBIT margin Operating profit / Revenue x 100
ROIC  Operating profit / Average operating assets x 100
Debtor turnover ratio Revenue / Receivables at year-end
Equity ratio  Equity at year-end / Total assets at year-end x 100
Return on equity (ROE) Profit for the year /Average equity x 100

Per share data
Earnings per share (EPS) Profit for the year / Average number of shares
Diluted earnings per share Profit for the year / Average number of diluted shares 
(EPS-D)
Cash flow per share (CFPS) Cash flow from operating activities / Average number of diluted shares
Book value per share (BVPS) Equity at year-end / Average number of shares
Dividend per share Dividends paid / Number of shares at year-end
of DKK 10 (DPS)
Payout ratio Dividends / Profit for the year x 100

The key ratios have been calculated in accordance with IAS 33 and 'Recommendations and Ratios 2010' 
issued by the Danish Financial Analyst Association
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